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Prospectus
This Prospectus contains information relating to the bonds to be issued by National
Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C. (hereinafter referred to as the “Issuer”). The Issuer is
offering nominal bonds with a total value of up to KWD 25,000,000 (Twenty-Five Million
Kuwaiti Dinars) (hereinafter referred to as the “Bonds”).

The Bonds shall be issued at 100% (One Hundred Percent) of their nominal value for a period
of 5 (Five) years from the date of issuance. The Bonds shall be with a floating interest,
whereby the total nominal value of the issued Bonds shall not exceed KWD 25,000,000
(Twenty-Five Million Kuwaiti Dinars). The floating interest rate will be 2.25% over the
Discount Rate declared by the Central Bank of Kuwait. The interest rate shall apply from the
date of issuance, payable in arrears on a quarterly basis from the date of issuance.

The Bonds were assigned a “BBB” rating as local Bonds by Capital Intelligence Ltd (the
“Rating Agency”) on 01/09/2016. The Rating Agency agreed to include the rating of the
Bonds in this Prospectus. The security rating is not a recommendation by the Rating Agency
to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision, suspension or withdrawal at any
time by the Rating Agency.

The Issuer shall repay the nominal value of the Bonds within 5 (Five) years from the date of
issuance, which will be repaid on the interest payment date applicable for the last quarter of
the 5 (Five) year term of the Bonds from the date of issuance, unless the Bonds have been
redeemed at the option of the Issuer and repaid after 3 (Three) years from the date of issue
or earlier for tax reasons in accordance with the conditions of the Bonds issue set out in this
Prospectus. Please read the chapter “Bonds Terms and Conditions” in this Prospectus.

The Bonds shall be in the form of a nominal Global Bond Certificate (the “Global Bond”),
without interest coupons exchangeable in specific circumstances set forth in the Global Bond
to 2500 registered individual Bonds, for an individual value of KWD 10,000 (Ten Thousand
Kuwaiti Dinars) each. Please see Chapter on “Summary of Provisions Relating to the Global
Bonds” in this Prospectus.

The Bonds have been approved by the General Assembly Meeting of the Issuer on
20/05/2015 and Board of Directors on 08/02/2016. The Issuer has obtained the



approval from the Capital Markets Authority in the State of Kuwait, to authorise the issue of
the Bonds on 13/04/2016 and on this Prospectus on 07/11/2016.

The subscription period for the Bonds will commence from 17/11/2016 to 29/12/2016.
The Subscription Agent may, after the approval of the Capital Market Authority, extend the
subscription period for other period(s) provided that the total extension periods shall not
exceed 60 days.

For the purpose of this Prospectus, a Business Day means any day on which the Kuwait Stock
Exchange operates for general trading business.

NOTE FOR INVESTORS
INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO CONSULT WITH A LICENSED PERSON

AUTHORISED BY LAW TO PROVIDE INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICES
AS DETAILED IN THIS PROSPECTUS PRIOR TO SUBSCRIPTION.

The Capital Markets Authority in the State of Kuwait has approved the Arabic version of
this Prospectus on 07/11/2016 and in case of contradiction between the Arabic version
and this translation, the Arabic version shall prevail. The Prospectus has been prepared
in accordance with the provisions of the Kuwait Capital Markets Authority Law No. 7

of 2010, establishing the Capital Markets Authority and its Executive Regulations

No. 72 of 2015 (as amended). The Board of Directors of the Issuer named in the
Prospectus (bear jointly and individually the full responsibility of the correctness and
completeness of the contents of this Prospectus) with respect to the information on
the Issuer and the Bonds.

The Board of Directors of the Issuer has made reasonable endeavours to confirm the
validity of the contents of this Prospectus and that no information and statement has
been omitted from the Prospectus according to their knowledge.

The Lead Manager and the Subscription Agent bear the complete responsibility of
inaccurate information presented. The Prospectus has been prepared, to their
knowledge and after making reasonable inquiries, the Prospectus does not omit any
material information and is prepared in accordance with the facts presented to them
as reflected herein.

The legal consultants to the Lead Manager and Subscription Agent acknowledge

that the contents of the Prospectus are based upon documents provided by the Issuer
which has been completed and compiled with all reasonable inquiries to obtain the
requisite legal formalities and necessary approvals. Therefore, the Issuer has
completed required obligations to issue the valid and effective Bonds.

The Capital Market Authority does not bear any responsibility for the contents of the

Prospectus and does not guarantee its accuracy or completeness and expressly is not

liable for any potential damages, losses or claims that may arise from or in connection
with the reliance upon this Prospectus or any part thereof.

Lead Manager & Subscription Agent Payment Agent
Ahli Capital Investment Company K.S.C.C. Al Ahli Bank of Kuwait K.S.C.P.
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Acknowledgement

Each of the Directors of the Issuer, whose names appear herein, bear responsibility for
any information contained in this Prospectus and that to the best of their knowledge
and belief, they have taken all reasonable care and conducted full due diligence to
ensure that such is the case. The information contained in this Prospectus is complete,
accurate and valid. The Issuer has disclosed complete information to the investors
regarding the financial instruments of the Issuer to assist them in deciding whether or
not to subscribe to the Bonds. This Prospectus complies with the requirements of the
Kuwait Capital Markets Authority Law No. 7 of 2010, establishing the Capital Markets
Authority, by Law No. 72 of 2015 and Book No. 11 from the By Law and regulating
trading in securities issued by the Capital Markets Authority.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Issuer

Name Position Signature

Mr. Saad Mohammed Abdullah Al Saad Chairman . —



CONFIRMATION AND NOTES BY THE ISSUER
IMPORTANT NOTE

This Prospectus includes information relating to National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C.
and the Bonds. The Issuer does not authorise any other company or third party to submit
any information pertaining to the Issuer and the Bonds except for those mentioned by
the Issuer for the purposes discussed in this Prospectus. The investor shall not rely on
statements, information or undertakings issued by a third party or assume that such
statements, information or undertakings are approved by the Issuer, Lead Manager or the
Subscription Agent whose names are in the preface of this Prospectus.

While the Issuer, after making reasonable inquiries relating to the accuracy of the
information contained in this Prospectus at the date hereof, some general information
contained in this Prospectus were obtained from independent sources. The Issuer, the
Lead Manager and the Subscription Agent and their advisors have no grounds to challenge
the accuracy of such information but they have not verified such general information
independently. As such, this Prospectus does not include any undertaking as to the validity
and completeness of such general information or their completeness.

Where the information in this Prospectus on the date hereof may become outdated and
require amendments. Particularly, adverse inflation, finance cost, expenses, taxes and any
other social, political, economic downturns and/or other circumstances beyond the control
of the Issuer, may impact the actual financial position of the Issuer and the value of the
Bonds. Delivery of this Prospectus does not act and may not be relied upon or interpreted to
mean any form of verbal or written undertaking, promise or assurance relating to the Bonds
of realizing any profit, results or future events. Delivery of this Prospectus and issuance,
offering and sale of the Bonds may not be considered that the information in the Prospectus
relating to the Issuer are correct on any date after the date herein. The Issuer cannot be
held responsible for such change and will make reasonable endeavours to compile an
accurate Prospectus. The Lead Manager and Subscription Agent has no obligation to revise
the financial position or affairs of the Issuer during the term of the Bonds or to advise any
investor about any information they become aware of relating to the foregoing or that there
will be no changes in the financial position or affairs of any party whose names appears in
this Prospectus following the date of this Prospectus.

This Prospectus does not act as a recommendation from the Issuer, the Lead Manager
and the Subscription Agent, their advisors, subsidiaries and or affiliates of the Issuer when
subscribing for the Bonds.



The information contained in this Prospectus is of a general nature and has been prepared
without considering investment targets, financial position of investment needs of any
potential investor. This Prospectus and any information therein are not meant to be basis
for granting credit facilities or any other finance transactions. Prior to making any decision
to subscribe in the Bonds, the potential investor is responsible to seek independent
professional advice on the Issuer and the Bonds from a licensed person authorised by the
Capital Market Authority, and shall be responsible to prepare its own independent valuation
of the Issuer and the investment in the Bond, the information and assumptions in this
Prospectus and to seek such consultations, analysis and expectations as it believe necessary
to make an investment decision. Potential investors should not view this Prospectus as

an investment, tax, business and legal advice. Before subscribing in the Bonds, potential
investors must consult with an investment advisor licensed by the Capital Market Authority,
in addition to seeking professional advice from its legal, tax and business advisors to
determine the appropriateness and consequences of investing in the Bonds for such investor
and to independently evaluate such investment. The sole purpose of this Prospectus is to
provide basic information relating to the Issuer to assist potential investors for whom this
Prospectus is addressed in making an independent valuation of the Bonds.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer, acceptance or invitation on behalf of the Issuer
and the Lead Manager for any other individual to join or purchase the Bonds.

Distribution of the Prospectus, offering and subscription in the Bonds is restricted in certain
jurisdictions outside the State of Kuwait. As such, any holder of this Prospectus must
ensure awareness and compliance with such restrictions whilst considering the subscription
conditions required by the Issuer, the Lead Manager and the Subscription Agent.

The Bonds may not be an appropriate investment for all investors. Prior to investing in the
Bonds, the investor will be expected to consider the following, namely:

1. The potential investor shall have sufficient knowledge and experience, with the specific
ability to evaluate the Bonds, specifically the associated advantages and risks of investing
in the Bonds, coupled with the information provided by the Prospectus;

2. The ability to analyse and evaluate his/her financial position prior to investing in the Bonds
and consequences of investing in the same Bonds and its implications on his/her general
investment portfolio;

3. He/she should have sufficient liquid monies to invest in such Bonds and be in a position to
absorb the associated risks of fluctuating currency exchange/value and associated interest;

4. He/she should have a complete understanding of the Bond’s terms and conditions and
possess the associated leadership knowledge of such business markets; and

5. To be capable (separately and or with the assistance of a financial consultant) to evaluate
the potential economic and or other factors bearing associated risk with such investment.

The Prospectus is limited to the advantages and associated benefits of investing in the Bonds
(or coupons) to the holder of the Bonds (or coupons) or the potential holder of the Bonds (or
coupons). Where the investor is concerned about the Bond, he/she may seek independent
advice from a financial consultant broker, Lead Manager of the Issuer, lawyer, accountant or
other financial consultant/affiliate. The value of the Bonds is subject to change, it can either
increase of decrease depending on the market conditions.



No individual or entity is entitled to give an undertaking pertaining to the subscription of
the Bonds except the individuals named in this Prospectus. Where information is obtained
from an alternative source, such information may not be relied upon as given or provided
by the Lead Manager and or the Issuer. Circulation of this Prospectus, the offering and the
subscription should not be made on the assumption that there are no actual or potential
changes in the position of the Issuer after the date hereof.

In relation to the Bonds subscription, the Lead Manager may (without imposing any
responsibility upon the Issuer) process market price of the Bonds and maintain a reasonable
level within the market place compared to the open market. The Issuer may stop any deal at
any given time pertaining to the Bonds without notice to any party.

The financial information contained in this Prospectus after 31/12/2015 has not been
audited. The financial information contained in the Prospectus for the period ended on
31/12/2015 was reviewed by the Issuer’s auditors in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations.

The numbers and percentages discussed in this Prospectus are rounded up. Therefore, the
current statistical information in the same may vary from a table to another.

“Kuwaiti Dinar” and “KWD” means Kuwaiti Dinar, the official currency of the State of Kuwait.

The financial information in this Prospectus may be considered as future predictions.

This Prospectus relates to the following namely, Issuer planning, targets, strategy, future
operation/performance and assumptions relating to general company performance. The
following words in this Prospectus: “expect”, “appreciate”, “see”, “intent”, “planning”,
“belief”, “target”, “seek”, “may”, “will”, “should” and any other similar expressions indicate
future statements. The Issuer will tailor its Prospectus statement based upon future
information pertaining to the Issuer Company’s historical performance.

The Issuer prepared forward looking information based on its expectation of future

events and future financial performance taking a reasonable approach on the date of this
Prospectus. However, if one or more of the risks occurred or the expectations and the
assumptions proved to be incorrect, the actual results may differ from those expected. The
future information presented in this Prospectus is limited to the date hereof and is made
without prejudice to any conditions stated by the applicable law and regulation. The Issuer,
therefore, will not be obliged to update such information and hereby releases itself of any
liability pertaining to information obtained following the publication date of this Prospectus.
In the event of any change of circumstances/position relating to future predictions of the
Issuer, the issuer of the Prospectus will not bear the responsibility of any such change.



RISK FACTORS

The Issuer believes that the following factors may affect the Issuer’s ability to meet its
obligations with respect to the Bonds. However, the majority of such factors are speculative
and may or may not happen. The Issuer is in no position to advise or provide opinion upon
such speculations becoming a reality.

In addition, before making any investment decision, the potential investors of the Bonds
should carefully take into account the following risks associated with investments in Kuwaiti
entities and organisations in general and in financial securities instruments issued by the
Issuer in particular, as the case maybe, along with other issues mentioned in this Prospectus.
These (not exhaustive though) may be instrumental for the purpose of evaluating market
risks associated with such Bonds. Furthermore, potential investors must attach special
importance to the fact that the Issuer is influenced by the legal and control environment
within the State of Kuwait which may be different in some aspects from the prevailing legal
and control environment in other countries.

In addition to the foregoing, below is a description of material factors which may affect the
evaluation of market risks associated with the Bonds.

The Issuer believes that the risks addressed below represent key risks involved in the
Bonds investment. The Issuer’s inability to repay interest or the principal amounts or any
other amounts with respect to the Bonds is likely for other reasons which in the opinion

of the Issuer are not material risks based on information available at present, or based

on information which the Issuer cannot predict at the present time. Potential investors
must also read the specific information contained in any part of this Prospectus and

must formulate their own opinion before making any investment decision. Furthermore,
potential investors must consult with their own financial and legal advisors with respect

to risks associated with any Bond investment and how convenient or attractive such Bond
investment is, having regard to their own position and circumstances without relying on the
Issuer or the Subscription Agent. Investors are advised to carry out their own due diligence
with regard to such factors and exposures before making any Bonds investment decision.
The Subscription Agent and the Issuer will assume that investors have already carried out
such analysis and due diligence.

FACTORS WHICH MAY AFFECT THE ISSUER’S ABILITY TO MEET ITS OBLIGATIONS WITH
RESPECT TO THE BONDS:

Geopolitical and Economic Factors

The operations and activities of the Issuer are largely concentrated in Kuwait in addition to
the Middle East and North Africa. Therefore, the operations of the Issuer are exposed to
such geopolitical risks associated with such countries that may affect the performance of
the Issuer. The Issuer is particularly exposed to the negative changes affecting the economic
conditions, as well as Kuwaiti, Middle Eastern and North African markets, as the same may
have adverse effects on demand for the services offered by the Issuer and its affiliates. In
addition, investors must be mindful that the activities of the Issuer and its performance may
be affected by the socio-economic developments and their repercussions and fallouts within
and outside of the countries in which the Issuer operates, bearing in mind the overlapping
nature of such relationships among the international financial markets.



The economy of the GCC countries is dependent on oil export income and its exposure to
turbulent oil markets and oil prices.

Moreover, investors must be aware that investment in developing countries like Kuwait are
exposed to significant risks compared to investment in more developed markets, including in
some cases but not limited to the material legal, economic and political risks. Furthermore,
the market prices of Bonds are exposed to material fluctuations and turmoil, which may

not be necessarily linked or associated with the financial performance of the Issuer.
Investors must exercise all due care in assessing the risks involved in Bond investments and
must decide for themselves whether their investment is a proper one in view of such risk
exposure.

In view of the recent geopolitical events in the Middle East and the terrorist acts in some of
these countries, the operations of the some of the subsidiaries of the Issuer remain exposed
to terrorist attacks, sabotage and similar threats.

Regulatory Environment

Ongoing changes of governmental policies and interpretation of legislative and regulatory
rules applicable in the markets within which the Issuer conducts business may have an
adverse impact on the activities of the issuer, its reputation, cost of operations and efforts
to progress a new investment or liquidation of existing assets, which impact the financial
position of the Issuer.

The Issuer works directly or through various entities within the legal framework of various
regulatory systems. The local legislation may restrict the actions of the Issuer and this may
result (but not limited to) increasing market competition for the issue of a license, associated
license conditions and adversely impacting the Issuer profits. The Issuer may therefore be
restricted in its scope of activities. The Issuer is further subjected to legal and regulatory
conditions in the State of Kuwait including execution of regulatory conditions of Ministry of
Commerce and Industry and the Capital Markets Authority in the State of Kuwait.

Force Majeure

Some unpredictable events may happen which in turn may affect the ability of the Issuer
to meet its obligations with respect to the current and planned operations. Force majeure
events include but are not limited to accidents, wars, revolutions, riots, civil resurrection,
acts of God, natural disasters, strikes or labour disputes.

There is no guarantee of steady performance for the Issuer in the future.

The Issuer may be exposed to risks including mismanagement, fraudulent acts and cheating.
FACTORS AFFECTING THE EVALUATION OF BONDS MARKET RISKS

Bonds may not be the right investment for all investors.

Each potential bond investor should decide on the suitability and convenience of investment
in view of his own position. In particular, each potential investor should:

(A) Have adequate knowledge and expertise to make a reasonable evaluation of the Bonds,
the benefits and risks of Bonds investment as well as the information contained in this
Prospectus or information referred to in this Prospectus or any of its attachments.



(B) The investor should have access to proper analysis tools with adequate knowledge of
such tools to examine and assess any investment in Bonds within the context of his own
financial position and evaluate the effects of Bonds on his investment portfolio.

(C) The investor should have adequate financial and liquidity resources to take all Bonds
investment risks, including such cases where the payment currency of the principle amounts
or interest payment amounts are different from the potential investor’s own currency.

(D) The investor should have fully familiarised himself/herself with the Bond’s terms and
conditions and must be aware of the conduct of business in any related financial market.

(E) The Investor (on his own or through a specialist financial and investment advisor)
should be able to examine and assess the potential scenarios of economic factor, interest
rate factors and other factors, which may affect his investment and his ability to take such
potential risks.

GENERAL RISKS OF BONDS

Below is a brief description of some of the general risks associated with Bonds and Bonds
investment.

Amendments of Bondholders’ Rights

Terms and conditions of Bonds call for a meeting for Bondholders to review such issues,
which may affect their interests in general. These terms and conditions allow specific
majorities to bind all Bondholders, including Bondholders who do not attend and do not vote
in such meetings as well as Bondholders who voted in a manner opposed to the majority.

Amendments of Legislations

The Bonds terms and conditions are dependent on and linked to the applicable Kuwaiti laws
on the date of this Prospectus. No guarantee may be provided with respect to the effects of
any decision or potential legal change in any of the Kuwaiti laws, controls or administrative
practices after the date of this Prospectus.

GENERAL MARKET RISKS

Below is a brief description of key markets risks including liquidity, exchange rates, interest
rate and credit risks:

Bonds Secondary Market in General

Bondholders may not be able to trade the Bonds after issuance thereof. The Bonds are

not planned to be listed in the Kuwait Stock Exchange or on any other securities market.
Therefore, the Bonds do not enjoy significant liquidity. Accordingly, investors may not be able
to readily sell their Bonds or sell the Bonds at prices achieving such return comparable to
similar investments which may have official trading market. Furthermore, the lack of liquidity
and active trading market for the Bonds may have a significant adverse effect on the market
price of the Bonds in case of trade or sale thereof.



Legal Investment Considerations that may Restrict Subscription in the Bonds

The investment activities of some investors are subject to investment laws, rules and
regulations and review or regularisation by some official authorities. Each potential investor
must seek proper legal advice from his own legal advisors to identify the following: (1)
Whether the Bonds are legal investments for such investor and to what extent, (2) Whether
Bonds can be used as guarantee and security for various kinds of loans and to what extent
they can be used for such purpose, (3) Whether there are other restrictions applicable to the
purchase or pledge of the Bonds and to what extent such restrictions apply to the Bonds.
Financial organisations and entities investing in the Bonds should seek the advice of their
legal advisors or related control authorities to identify proper handling tools of investment in
these Bonds with regard to the rules of risk capital.

Reducing the Credit Rating of the Issuer and the Bonds

The purpose of obtaining a credit rating of the Issuer from a substantial and recognised
credit ranking agent is to assess the Issuer’s ability to honour its obligations irrespective
of its debt. As such, the Issuer will be able to meet debt repayments upon the due date.
Therefore, the ranking agent shall determine the capability of the Issuer upon its ability to
honour its ongoing obligations.

Effects of New Regulations

The Issuer implements the requisite law, regulation, procedure and administrative policies
within the State of Kuwait. The same regulation may limit the Companies activities, financial
activities, operational and future activities during the existence of the Issuer in the State of
Kuwait, namely as the State of Kuwait is at liberty to change any policies at any given time.
Whilst the Issuer is working with regulatory entities, the regulatory bodies will be monitoring
the development of the same in the State of Kuwait. Further, future regulatory changes

may occur impacting financial policies, other policies and therefore, the same changes are
unpredictable and beyond the control of the Issuer.

Risks related to the State of Kuwait

Investment in Securities Instruments and Generally Developing Markets Involves High Risk

The investors in the new market such as in the State of Kuwait shall have the knowledge

of this market, specifically the understanding of high risk compared to investment in more
developed markets, including in some cases but not limited to legal, economic and political
risks. Furthermore, the market prices of Bonds are exposed to material fluctuations and
turmoil, which may not be necessarily linked or associated with the financial performance of
the Issuer in any other country, particularly in a new market.

The determined risk in the State of Kuwait and Middle East may cause a substantial adverse
effect on the Issuer’s activity, the Issuer Company’s financial position and the result of future
operations including but not limited to the following:

e Political, economic and social instability;

e Acts of war; conflict; and/or another acts of violence;

e Instability and/or violence inside the State of Kuwait;

e Increased inflation and living expenses;

e Change of tax law and regulation, including imposed tax in a tax free country, increase tax
in a country of law tax;



e Government intervention and policies protecting economic stability;

e The change in negative policies relating to law and regulation, including legal structure and
tax law;

e Challenging obstacles to appoint an employee and general management of operations;

e The restrictions imposed on the right to transfer, refund currencies and exporting assets;

e Currencies fluctuating; and

e Logistical challenges and associated communications.

Rights of Bondholders in Case of Bankruptcy or Liquidated under the Kuwaiti
Bankruptcy Law

In the event of the Issuer becoming bankrupt, the Kuwaiti law may impact the Issuer’s ability
to honour its obligations by virtue of the Bonds, in order to obtain a bankruptcy judgment, it
may take several years. Therefore, there is no certainty that the Bondholder will fully recover
or recover any claims in case of bankruptcy of the Issuer.

Change of Law

The terms and conditions relating to the Bonds are subject to the Kuwaiti law which is
applicable in the State of Kuwait as mentioned in this Prospectus. The Issuer will take no
responsibility for any subsequent changes in Kuwaiti law (and administration) after the date
hereof and the Issuer’s ability to pay interest, principal amounts or any other payments
under the Bonds.

GCC States May Enter into a Monetary Union

The Kingdom of Bahrain, the State of Kuwait, Saudi Arabia and Qatar can abandon their
National currencies in favour of union gulf currencies in the future. If the same countries
rely upon such union gulf currencies, the same will have a positive effect on the economic
and socio political infrastructure of the Middle East, namely the GCC. The GCC is unable to
declare a time scale for the union gulf currency and no legislation and or policy currently
exist for the same. Although, the investor will be expected to possess knowledge of new
legislation or any policy that may impact the capability of the Issuer to honour its obligation
by virtue of such a guarantee.

Risks related to the Bonds

Fluctuation of the Market Price of the Bonds

The market value fluctuation may predict the operational result of the Issuer and its
competitors. Factors such as political, socio economic instability or social strikes in the
Middle East and the country the Issuer is in and affiliated subsidiaries may adversely impact
the course of business.

Further, in the last few years, the international market had seen large financial fluctuation, if
this crisis is repeated, it may have a negative effect on the value of the Bonds, regardless of
the Issuer activity, financial position or future operations.

Bonds are connected to Un-Pledged Securities Portfolio

The potential investors shall be aware of the obligations of the Issuer arising from the Bonds
are not a secured debt and such obligations rank pari passu with other un-pledged and



un-secured general debts and obligations of the Issuer. In case of default by the Issuer to
pay interest or principal amount of the Bonds on their due dates are subject to contractual
arrangements to enforce such obligations against a Securities Portfolio made by an affiliate
of the Issuer. Recovery proceeds from the liquidation of the Securities Portfolio may be
adversely affected by the market price of the shares deposited in such Securities Portfolio or
the manner of liquidation of such shares.

Redemption for Tax Reasons

Redemption of the Bonds for tax reasons means that the Issuer is or will be obliged to
pay further amounts as a result of tax deduction or tax retention obligation as discussed
in this Prospectus while the Issuer cannot avoid any of the foregoing despite reasonable
precautionary measures available.

Interest Rate Risk

The Bonds investment may have a consequential risk relating to change in interest rate
where such rate changes depending on the market climate and can cause adverse impact on
the value of the Bonds.

Risks related to Taxation of Payments under the Bonds

Article 150 of the Capital Market Law provides that “without prejudice to any tax exemptions
on the profit arising from disposal of securities issued by companies listed on the Stock
Exchange, proceeds of securities, bonds and Sukuk and all other similar securities are
exempted from tax regardless of the issuer thereof”. However, there is no guarantee that
such tax exemption may not be amended in the future, and if amended, payments paid by
the Issuer relating to the Bonds may be subject to taxation and will trigger the Issuer’s right
to redeem all the Bonds and not only a part thereof.

Possible Application of Income Tax on Non GCC Bondholders

There can be no assurance whether the Kuwait income tax will apply upon Bondholders that
are not GCC citizens. However, there is a possibility that in the future, income taxes may
apply for Bondholders that are not GCC nationals if the Department of Income Tax at the
Kuwait Ministry of Finance (“Tax Department”) or the Kuwaiti Courts decide that proceeds
from the Bonds are considered “lending of funds in the State of Kuwait (where as holding
the Bonds will be considered exercising business in Kuwait for the purpose of application of
the income tax laws) even if the Bondholder is not resident in Kuwait or registered outside
Kuwait.

The Tax Department in the State of Kuwait have not yet made any official declaration on its
interpretation or implementation of such tax in connection with any bonds issued in the
State of Kuwait. There is no published court precedents relating to application of income
tax in connection with bonds. Therefore, it is difficult to assure how the position of the Tax
Department or the Kuwaiti Courts will be in connection with the application of the income
tax on the Bonds in practice. In addition, the position of the Tax Department in connection
with the application of tax laws was not generally unified.



In the event that the Tax Department or the Kuwaiti Courts decide that income tax applies
upon the non-GCC Bondholders for lending funds in Kuwait (considering that holding

the Bonds is business activity within the State of Kuwait for income tax purposes), such
Bondholders will be subject to taxation in Kuwait (at a tax rate of 15%) applicable on the net
profit and probably on the capital gain and such Bondholders will be required to register with
the Tax Department and file complete tax returns within certain time periods. The Issuer in
this case will be required to retain 5% from the amounts payable to Bondholders until the
Bondholder clear their tax positions. It should be noted that the Issuer will be obliged in this
case to gross up any payments to the Bondholders with the amount of the tax retention and
also entitled to redeem the Bonds for taxation reasons.

The provisions relating to Kuwaiti tax laws are not certain and the Issuer cannot guarantee
that the Bondholders (whether or not they are GCC nationals) will not be subject to income
tax in Kuwait in the future. Therefore, potential investors must obtain a tax advice from a
tax advisor to assist and understand the potential tax implications within the State of Kuwait
and other countries that may have tax implications upon subscribing, purchasing, holding or
trading the Bonds and receipt of interest or principal amounts thereof.

SUMMARY OF ISSUE TERMS

The summary below is a brief description and introduction to the main terms of the Bonds
appearing in this Prospectus and do not represent all information relating to the Bonds.
Potential investors are advised to read the full Prospectus and seek independent advice
before investing in the Bonds. Any investment decision by any potential investor must be
based on studying the full Prospectus and not only a part thereof.

Capitalized terms below and not defined herein shall have the same meaning assigned to
them in the section titled “Conditions of the Bonds” in this Prospectus.

m National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C.
Address of Issuer P.O. Box 417, Safat 13005, Kuwait.
Nominal Value Up to KWD 25,000,000 (Twenty-Five Million Kuwaiti Dinars).

The Bonds are not listed on Kuwait Stock Exchange and will
Listing not be listed or traded on any securities exchange at any
time in the future.

Nominal debt Bonds issued in KWD.

Subscription shall commence from the date determined and
announced by the Lead Manager and Subscription Agent af-
ter the approval of the CMA of this Prospectus and shall ex-
pire within a period not more than 30 Business Days there-
after, unless the Bonds are fully subscribed to before the
expiry of such period. The Lead Manager and Subscription
Agent may, with the prior approval of the Capital Market
Authority, extend such period for other similar period(s) or
less provided that the total extention period will not exceed
60 days.

Subscription Period



Duration of Bonds

Bond Rating

Number & Domination
of Bonds

Interest Rate

Interest Payment
Dates

Redemption of
the Nominal Value
of Bonds

Converting the
Bonds to Shares

Purpose and Use
of Proceeds:

Cost of Issue

Refunding Subscription
Excess Cash

Securities Portfolio

5 (Five) years from the issue date of the Bonds.

BBB by Capital Intelligence Ltd. The Rating Agency agreed to
inclusion of the rating in this Prospectus and that this rating
is still valid.

The Bonds are issued in form of a single Global Bond
certificate without interest coupons and exchangeable in
certain circumstances into 2,500 individual Bond certificates
each of a nominal value of KWD 10,000 (Ten Thousand
Kuwaiti Dinars).

The rate of interest is variable and consists of a margin of
(225) basis point (i.e. 2.25%) over the KWD Discount Rate
declared by Central Bank of Kuwait.

Interest shall apply from the date on which the Bonds are
issued and is payable in arrear every 3 (Three) months until
the final maturity date.

The Issuer shall pay the principal nominal value of Bonds
and redeem the Bonds after 5 (Five) years from the date of
issue which will be paid on the interest payment date appli-
cable for the last 3 (Three) month period of the 5 (Five) year
term, from the date of issue, unless the Bonds have been
redeemed and settled earlier for tax reasons in accordance
with the Conditions of the Bonds set forth in this Prospec-
tus.

Bonds are not convertible into shares.

Proceeds shall be used to finance the Issuer’s general corpo-
rate purposes.

The total costs of the issue including marketing, legal con-
sultancy fees, and printing costs of the Prospectus as well as
other costs and expenses are expected to be KWD 125,000
(One Hundred and Twenty-Five Thousand Kuwaiti Dinars).

Subscription amounts shall be paid by subscribers during
the subscription period and no later than the date of closing
the subscription. Any excess amounts paid by subscribers
into the subscription account shall be refunded to such
subscribers without interest no later than 7 (Seven) Business
Days after the date of allocation of the Bonds.

The Bonds will be supported by the allotment portfolio,
including shares that are listed on the Kuwait Stock
Exchange and owned by the provider of such portfolio.



Previous Bonds & Securities:

Bonds and Sukuk

Issue Rate . Rating Lead Type of
m

Kuwait
Financial
KWD . Centre
35 Million 1998 3Years 7.875% - - Gulf Bonds
Investment
Corporation
) National Bank
KWD Capital of Kuwait None
e 2001 5 Years 6.25% BBB+ Intelligence o . Secured
35 Million Ltd Kuwait Financial
Centre Bonds
City Bank
USD 0.9% + Capital Group None
e 2004 5Years Liboré6 A- Intelligence Secured
60 Million Months Ltd International g .
Gulf Bank
Bahrain
Capital
1.05 % + Intelligence BNP
USD " 5007 S5Years Liborz A Ltd Mudaraba
475 Million Month BBB Sukuk
el Moody’s WEST L.B
Shares
Capital Post
e |
2004 70,618,210 15% from the Capital ~ Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record
2005 74,674,121 5% from the Capital ~ BONUS stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record
2006 107,032,907 10% from the Capital  BONus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record.
2007 117,736,197 10% from the Capital  Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record
2008 129,509,816 10% from the Capital  Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record
2014 135,985,307 5% from the Capital  BONUS stock distributed to the

Shareholders in record



Approval Date of
the Issuer’s General
Shareholders Assembly

Issuer’s Capital

In-kind Contributions

Potential
Bondholders

Bondholders
Association

Portfolio Manager

Credit Rating

Final Maturity Date

Repayment of
Nominal Value

Discount Rate

Call Option

20/05/2015

The Issuers issued and paid-up capital as on 31st December
2015 is KWD 135,985,307.500 divided into 1,359,853,075
shares, each with a nominal value of 100 fils (KWD 0.100)
per share and fully paid, including 34,796,079 treasury shares.

None

Ahli Capital Investment Co. K.S.C.C.
P.O. Box 1387, Safat 13104, Kuwait

Ahli Capital Investment Co. K.S.C.C.
P.O. Box 1387, Safat 13104, Kuwait

Al Ahli Bank of Kuwait K.S.C.P.
P.O. Box 1387, Safat 13104, Kuwait

Kuwait Clearance Company K.S.C.C.
P.O. Box 22077, Safat, 13081, Kuwait

All natural persons and legal entities including companies,
businesses and banks unless restricted from acquiring the
Bonds.

The Bondholders Association established in accordance with
the provisions of the Capital Markets Law No. 7 of 2010 and
its Executive Regulations No. 72 of 2015 (as amended).

Ahli Capital Investment Co. K.S.C.C.
P.O. Box 1387, Safat 13104, Kuwait

BBB from Capital Intelligence Ltd who approved the credit
rating to be used as part of this publication and deemed it
as valid.

KWD

5 years from the issue date of the Bonds.

One payment on the Final Maturity Date.

The discount rate announced by the Central Bank of Kuwait
for KWD at 12 noon Kuwait time on the interest determi-
nation date (as shown on the Central Bank of Kuwait web
page, or, if not so available, the Central Bank Kuwait
Discount Rate as determined by the Paying Agent in good
faith and if the Paying Agent cannot determine such rate in
good faith, the Central Bank Kuwait Discount Rate last
determined in respect of the last interest period).

The Issuer has the right to redeem all the outstanding Bonds
at par on an interest payment date at any time commencing
from the third anniversary of the date of the issue of the
Bonds or to redeem the Bonds for taxation reasons as set
forth in the Condition of the Bonds.



Portfolio
Provider

Portfolio

Securities in
the Portfolio

LTV - Loan to
Value Ratio

Business Day

Initial LTV

Liquidation
Trigger LTV

Liquidation
Shares

Pearl National Holding Company K.S.C.C., an affiliate of the Issuer,
that is subject to legal and contractual restrictions and undertakings
that reduce bankruptcy exposure, is not subject to material secured
debts and have sufficient assets in excess of the nominal value of the
Bonds that are free of any encumbrances. Such affiliate has granted
the Bondholders through the Bondholders’ representative the right
of recourse to the Securities Portfolio it opened with the Portfolio
Custodian (Ahli Capital Investment Company K.S.C.C.).

The securities portfolio consisting of shares owned by the Portfolio
Provider and listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange issued by
selected companies and/or (ii) cash. All assets in the portfolio will
be registered in the name of the Portfolio Custodian (Ahli Capital
Investment Company K.S.C.C.). Any dividends and distribution on
the securities will be deposited in the Portfolio and may be released
to the Portfolio Provider after ensuring that they exceed the
applicable LTV.

The Portfolio will initially include shares issued by the following
companies

1. National Industries Company (K.S.C.)

2. Ikarus Petroleum Industries Company (K.S.C)

3. Mabanee Company (K.S.C.)

4. Kuwait Cement Company (K.S.C.)

5. Al Ahleia Insurance Company (S.A.K.P.)

6. Kuwait Finance House (K.S.C.)
Any share that becomes delisted will be replaced by another
listed share.

The ratio of the principal amount of the Bonds compared to the
market value of the Portfolio is 83% provided that the value of the
following securities in the Portfolio at any time will not be less than
25% of the total market value of all securities in the Portfolio:-
Kuwait Finance House (K.S.C.)

Mabanee Company (K.S.C.)

Kuwait Cement Company (K.S.C.)

Means a day on which the Kuwait Stock Exchange is opened
for normal business.

83%

89%

In the event the LTV becomes 89% or more, the Issuer shall be
obliged to cure within 30 Business Days by adding cash or shares to
the Portfolio, failing which, the Payment Agent shall be entitled to
instruct the Portfolio Custodian to liquidate securities in the
Portfolio so that the LTV is 89% or less.



Legal Counsel to
Lead Manager
& Subscription
Agent

Legal Counsel
to Issuer

Applicable Law

Members of the
Board of Director

Al Ruwayeh & Partners (“ASAR”).

Al-Hossam Legal - Al-Turqi & Partners, Legal Consultants
& Attorneys (Al-Hossam Legal).

The Laws of the State of Kuwait.

Kuwaiti Courts.

e Mr. Saad Mohammed Al-Saad - Chairman;

e Mr. Sulaiman Hamad Al-Dalali - Deputy Chairman;

e Mr. Ali Morad Behbehani - Board Member;

e Mr. Salah Khalid Al-Fulaij - Board Member;

e Mrs. Maha Khalid Al-Ghunaim - Board Member;

e Mr. Husam Fawzi Al-Kharafi - Board Member;

e Mr. Abdul Aziz Ibrahim Al-Rabiah - Board Member;

e Mr. Mohammed Abdulmohsen Asfour - Board Member; and

e Dr. Abdul Aziz Al-Rashed Abdul Aziz Al- Rashed - Board Member.



Subscription
Period

Minimum
Subscription

Subscription
Applications

Payment of
Subscription
Amount

Bonds
Allotment

SUBSCRIPTION TERMS

Subscription shall be opened from 17/11/2016 and shall expire on
29/12/2016 within the official business hours designated for
receiving subscribers at the headquarters of the Subscription Agent.
The Lead Manager and the Subscription Agent may, subject to the
prior approval of the Capital Market Authority, extend the
subscription period for similar period(s) or less provided that the
total extension period(s) shall not exceed 60 days. Subscription
shall close at the end of official business hours designated for
receiving subscribers, unless the Bonds are subscribed to in full
prior to such date.

Minimum subscription shall be KWD 50,000 (Fifty Thousand Kuwaiti
Dinars) and multiples of KWD 10,000 (Ten Thousand Kuwaiti Dinars)
thereafter.

All natural persons and legal entities including companies,
businesses and banks unless restricted from acquiring the Bonds.
Subscription entails deemed acceptance of the Bonds’ issue terms
and conditions as well as this Prospectus by the Subscriber.

Subscription applications are made on a special application form
available with the Lead Manager and the Subscription Agent. The
application information must be complete, in clear legible
handwriting and duly signed by the applicant, supported by the
required documents. Individual subscribers’ applications shall be
submitted and due amount paid within the subscription period.
Subscribers must produce their original and a copy of their civil ID.
Subscription applications by legal entities must be submitted signed
by their authorised signatory along with the required evidence

of authority to represent the legal entity and valid extract of the
entity’s commercial registration, commercial license and articles of
associations.

The subscription amount shall be paid by a bank cheque or a bank
transfer as indicated in the subscription application. No cash pay-
ments are accepted. The subscription amount must be received in
full into the subscription account with the Subscription Agent for
full value before the closing date of the subscription

Bonds shall be allotted to subscribers within a maximum period of 7
Business Days, after the closing date of subscription. The
Subscription Agent may reject any subscription application or any
part thereof or cancel all or part of subscription as it deems
appropriate. The Subscription Agent is under no obligation to apply
a specific method for Bonds allotment. Subscribers shall be
informed of the number and value of Bonds allotted to them.



Refund

of Excess
Subscription
Amounts

Subscription
Conditions

Subscription amounts shall be paid prior to closing of he
subscription. No payments are expected to be received in excess
of the value of Bonds to be allotted to the subscriber. However,
excess amounts, if any, shall be refunded to subscribers without
interest no later than 7 Business Days after the allotment date
of the Bonds.

Subscriptions are final and cannot be reversed for any reason,
even before the date of closing the subscription. The subscriber

is not entitled to add any conditions or restrictions upon the
subscription application. Subscriptions must be serious. Any
subscription using false names and or any other methods in which
the veracity of the subscription may be challenged are prohibited.
The subscription form must conform to the requirements of the
Prospectus and be made before the subscription closing date.
Subscription Agent is entitled to ignore any incomplete, repeated
or illegal subscription applications, unless corrected.

The subscription application should include the subscriber’s name
so that the Bonds may be allocated accordingly. The Subscription
Agent, without reverting to the subscriber, has the right to refuse
any subscription application that breaches any terms or condition
of the Prospectus, or if the information provided are incomplete,
or requested documents are not attached and or the application
has incomplete documents that the Subscription Agent will
require to process such subscription. The Subscription Agent or
the Issuer will issue the allotment notification for each subscriber
with the number of allotted bond number and nominal value
thereof. The Clearing Agent will deliver to the subscriber a receipt
confirming the allotted number of Bonds which represent part of
the Global Bond Certificate with a value of 10,000 Kuwaiti Dinars
(Ten Thousand Kuwaiti Dinars) for each respective Bond.

(For more details please refer to the summary of the section
below relating to the Global Bond).



TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE BONDS

The following are the terms and conditions of the Bonds, which will appear on the reverse of
the Global Bond and each Bond.

Official Approvals

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Capital Markets Law No. 7 of 2010 and its Executive
Regulations No. (72) of 2015 (as amended).

The issue of the Bonds was authorised by the resolutions of the General Shareholders
Assembly meeting of the National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C. The same being passed
on 20/05/2015 and the Board of Directors of the Issuer passing by way of board meeting on
08/02/2016.

Regulatory Approvals

Permission has been granted for the Issuer to issue the Bonds and the Prospectus to offer
the Bonds for public subscription by the Capital Markets Authority on 13/04/2016, pursuant
to the Capital Markets Law No. 7 of 2010 and its Executive Regulations No. (72) of 2015 (as
amended).

The Capital Markets Authority in the State of Kuwait approved this Prospectus on 2016/11/07.

AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE BONDS
(SUBSCRIPTION & SALE)

Subscription Agreement

The Lead Manager and Subscription Agent agreed with the Issuer by virtue of a subscription
agreement dated 17/11/2016, and subject to satisfaction of certain conditions, to make
appropriate endeavours to offer the Bonds for subscription at par value of the Bonds

(100% of the nominal amount of the Bonds). The Lead Manager and Subscription Agent do
not have any underwriting obligations to subscribe in the Bonds that are not subscribed to.

Sale of Bonds

The Lead Manager and Subscription Agent agree to comply with the complete regulations
and law applicable in the State of Kuwait. The same shall ensure that the Bonds are issued,
sold and allocated in accordance with the appropriate subscription method.

The Issuer, Lead Manager and Subscription Agent undertake to comply with the complete
law and regulations relating to the Bonds which is valid in any foreign country. The same
individuals will market, sell and distribute the Prospectus in bid to promote the requisite
Bonds.

The Issuer, Lead Manager and Subscription Agent should possess the requisite qualifications
and certificates required to practice such activities within the State of Kuwait and the
associated law and regulation in each related foreign country. The Issuer and the Lead
Manager are not guaranteed to sell the Bonds within a specific time frame and or within



a specific foreign country, or in accordance with any exemptions in the same foreign
countries, neither do the same have specific responsibilities for the selling facilities of the
Bonds.

Subscription Process

The subscription application in the Bonds shall be filed with the Lead Manager and
Subscription Agent. Subscription shall be opened from 17/11/2016 and shall expire on
29/12/2016 within the official business hours designated for receiving subscribers at the
headquarters of the Subscription Agent. The Lead Manager and the Subscription Agent may,
subject to the prior approval of the Capital Market Authority, extend the subscription period
for similar period(s) or less provided that the total extension period(s) shall not exceed 60
days (“Subscription Period”). Subscription shall close at the end of official business hours
designated for receiving subscribers, unless the Bonds are subscribed to in full prior to such date.

The Issuer has the right to close subscription before the expiry of the Subscription Period or
close the subscription to the Bonds upon full subscription in the Bonds.

In this section day, Business day means a day that Kuwait Stock Exchange is opened for
normal business.

Subscribers

All natural persons and legal entities including companies, businesses and banks unless
restricted from acquiring the Bonds. Subscription entails deemed acceptance of the Bonds’
issue terms and conditions as well as this Prospectus by the Subscriber.

Subscription Applications

Subscription applications are made on a special application form available with the Lead
Manager and the Subscription Agent. The application information must be complete, in clear
legible handwriting and duly signed by the applicant, supported by the required documents.
Individual subscribers” applications shall be submitted and due amount paid within the
subscription period. Subscribers must produce their original and a copy of their civil ID.
Subscription applications by legal entities must be submitted and signed by their authorised
signatory along with the required evidence of authority to represent the legal entity and
valid extract of the entity’s commercial registration, commercial license and articles of
associations.

Payment of Subscription Amount

The subscription amount shall be paid by a bank cheque or a bank transfer as indicated in
the subscription application. No cash payments are accepted. The subscription amount must
be received in full into the subscription account with the Subscription Agent for full value
before the closing date of the subscription.



Allotment of Bonds

Bonds shall be allotted to subscribers within a maximum period of 7 Business Days, after the
closing date of subscription. The Subscription Agent may reject any subscription application
or any part thereof or cancel all or part of subscription as it deems appropriate. The
Subscription Agent is under no obligation to apply a specific method for Bonds allotment.
Subscribers shall be informed of the number and value of Bonds allotted to them.

Refund of Excess Subscription Amounts

In case of cancellation or incompletion for any reason of the Bonds issuance process, or

in case of over subscription in the bonds issuance which is not allotted; a written notice
shall be forwarded to subscribers within (7) business days from the date of cancelation of
the bond issuance or within a maximum period of (7) business days after the closing of
the subscription period. Any subscription amounts that are due to the subscriber’s will be
returned either by a bankers cheque or through a bank transfer not later than (7) business
days from the date of informing the subscribers of the matter or a maximum period of

(7) business days after the closing date of the subscription period. In case of delay in
transferring the due amounts after the (7) business days from the date of cancelation of
the bond issuance or after the maximum period of (7) business days after the closing of
the subscription period; a fee of 0.25% over Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate will be
applied starting from the seventh business day mentioned as mentioned earlier and until the
settlement date.

Other Subscription Rules

Subscriptions are final and cannot be reversed for any reason, even before the date of
closing the subscription. The subscriber is not entitled to add any conditions or restrictions
upon the subscription application. Subscriptions must be serious. Any subscription using
false names and or any other methods in which the veracity of the subscription may be
challenged are prohibited. The subscription form must conform to the requirements of the
Prospectus and be made before the subscription closing date. Subscription Agent is entitled
to ignore any incomplete, repeated or illegal subscription applications, unless corrected.
The subscription application should include the subscriber’s name so that the Bonds may
be allocated accordingly. The Subscription Agent, without reverting to the subscriber, has
the right to refuse any subscription application that breaches any terms or conditions of
the Prospectus, or if the information provided is incomplete, or requested documents are
not attached and or the application has incomplete documents that the Subscription Agent
will require to process such subscription. The Subscription Agent or the Issuer will issue the
allotment notification for each subscriber with the number of allotted bond number and
nominal value thereof. The Clearing Agent will deliver to the subscriber a receipt confirming
the allotted number of Bonds which represent part of the Global Bond Certificate with a
value of 10,000 Kuwaiti Dinars (Ten Thousand Kuwaiti Dinars) for each respective Bond. (For
more details please refer to the summary of the section below relating to the Global Bond).



CONDITIONS OF THE KWD 25,000,000
BONDS DUE 2021

The KWD 25,000,000 Bonds (the “Bonds”) of National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C. (the
“Issuer”) are issued subject to an Agency Agreement dated as of issuance date (the “Agency
Agreement”), as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, made
between the Issuer and Al Ahli Bank of Kuwait K.S.C.P. as the paying agent and any other
paying agent appointed by it from time to time (each the “Paying Agent”) and Kuwait
Clearance Company K.S.C. as registrar (the “Registrar”) and clearing agent (the “Clearing
Agent”) (together the Paying Agent, the Registrar and the Clearing Agent are the “Agents”).

The statements in these Conditions include summaries of and are subject to, the detailed
provisions of and definitions in the Agency Agreement. Copies of the Agency Agreement
are available for inspection during normal business hours by the holders of the Bonds (the
“Bondholders”) appertaining to the Bonds at the specified office of the Paying Agent. The
Bondholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by and are deemed to have notice
of, all the provisions of the Agency Agreement applicable to them. References in these
Conditions to the Paying Agent, the Clearing Agent and the Registrar shall include any
successor appointed under the Agency Agreement.

1. Form, Denomination and Title

1.1 The Bonds are issued in a global form, without interest coupons, in a form of a Global
Bond certificate (the “Global Bond Certificate”) in the abovementioned original principal
amount of the Bonds (the “Principal Amount”).

1.2 The Global Bond Certificate will be exchangeable in whole but not in part for 2,500
individual definitive and registered Bond certificates (each a “Certificate”) in registered
form in denominations of KWD 10,000 (Ten Thousand Kuwaiti Dinars) each, in the following
circumstances: (i) if any Bond becomes due and payable in accordance with Condition

8; (ii) if the Clearing Agent is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 Business
Days (other than by reason of holidays, statutory or otherwise) or announces its intention
to permanently cease business or, in fact, does so; or (iii) if the Issuer would suffer any
disadvantage as a result of a change in any applicable laws or regulations in the State of
Kuwait (or change in the interpretation thereof by the relevant supervisory and official
authorities) or as a result of a change in the practice of the Clearing Agent which would not
have been suffered had the Bonds been in definitive form.

For the purposes of these Conditions (other than Condition 8), “Business Day” means a day
that the Kuwait Stock Exchange is open for normal business in the State of Kuwait. Each
Certificate, upon exchange of the Global Bond Certificate, will be numbered serially with an
identifying number which will be recorded on the relevant Global Bond and in the Registrar
and at the registered office of the Issuer.

1.3 Title to the Bonds passes by registration in the register of Bondholder with the Registrar.
The Issuer shall keep a register at the specified office of the Registrar. No Bondholder may
require the transfer of a Bond to be registered during the period of 15 Days ending on the



due date for any payment of principal or interest on that Bond. All transfers of Bonds and
entries on the register of Bondholders will be made subject to the detailed regulations
concerning transfer of Bonds applicable in accordance with the laws of Kuwait and at the
Registrar and Clearing Agent. The regulations may be changed by the Registrar and Clearing
Agent without prior notice. The record of the Registrar and Clearing Agent shall be an
absolute evidence of title to the Bonds. In these Conditions, Bondholder (in relation to a
Bond) means the person in whose name a Bond is registered in the register of Bondholders
with the Registrar. Upon exchange of the Global Bond Certificate, the holder of any Bond
will (except as otherwise required by law) be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes
(whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or any interest
or any writing on, or the theft or loss of, the Global Bond issued in respect of it) and no
person will be liable for so treating the holder.

2. Bonds Status

The Bonds are direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer
and rank at least pari passu among themselves and other unsecured obligations without any
preference among themselves and all other present and future unsecured obligations other
than those obligations which are preferred by mandatory provisions of the law, without
prejudice to the recourse right to the securities held in the portfolio submitted by the
subsidiary of the Issuer and registered under the name of the custodian of such portfolio.

3. Negative Pledge

So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the Issuer shall not create or permit to be
created (either directly or indirectly through whatever means) any mortgage, charge, pledge,
lien or other encumbrance upon the whole or any part of its undertakings or assets, present
or future, to secure the repayment of any bonds or issued securities (in whatever form),

or any guarantee or indemnity in respect of bonds or issued securities (in whatever form);
unless prior to or simultaneously with the creation of such liability or giving of such pledge,
guarantee priority or indemnity, the Bonds are equally and rateably secured (at same terms)
so as to rank pari passu with such indebtedness, guarantee or indemnity, as the case may be
unless a waiver and/or consent from the Bondholders Association is obtained.

4. Bond Interest

4.1 Interest accrues on the Bonds at the Interest Rate (as determined below) from (the
“Issue Date”) and will be paid in arrears on a quarterly basis of each year (each of these
dates an “Interest Payment Date”) the first interest payment being made on beginning on
the Issue Date or any Interest Payment Date and ending on the date falling three month
after the preceding payment of the Interests (herein called an “Interest Period”. Interest
will cease to accrue on the Bonds on the Final Redemption Date (as defined below) unless
payment of the Principal Amount is withheld or refused for any reason whatsoever. In such
event, interest will continue to accrue (both before and after any judgment) up to the date
on which payment in full of the principal thereof is made without accruing interest on the
payment date.

4.2 The interest rate applicable to the relevant Interest Period shall be the Central Bank
Kuwait Discount Rate (as defined below) plus a margin of (225) basis points (i.e. 2.25%) per



annum (the “Interest Rate”). The Interest Rate is determined every 3 months by the Paying
Agent two Business Days prior to the relevant Interest Period (the “Interest Determination
Date”). The discount rate is the rate announced by the Central Bank of Kuwait for KWD at
12 noon Kuwait time on the Interest Determination Date (as shown on the Central Bank of
Kuwait page, or, if not so available, the Central Bank Kuwait Discount Rate as determined by
the Paying Agent in good faith and if the Paying Agent cannot determine the same in good
faith, the Central Bank Kuwait Discount Rate last determined in respect of the last Interest
Period) (the “CBK Discount Rate”).

5. Redemption, Purchase and Cancellation

5.1 Redemption

The Bonds will be redeemed at their Principal Amount (plus accrued interest) on the final
maturity in December 2021 (the “Final Redemption Date”) unless redeemed earlier at the
option of the Issuer at their Principal Amount in addition to the interests accrued at the date
of redemption (without accruing interest on the redemption day) on the Interest Payment
Date at any time commencing from the third anniversary of the Issue Date or for taxation
reasons.

5.2 Redemption for taxation reasons

The Issuer is entitled, at its sole discretion, after provision of notice that is not less than 30
days and no more than 45 days, to request redemption of all Bonds (not partial) at their
Principal Amount in addition to the interests accrued at the date of redemption (without
accruing interest on the redemption day) due to any reasons beyond the Issuer’s control
which results in the Issuer required to pay additional amounts according to these Conditions
within the Prospectus

5.3 Purchase
The Issuer may at any time purchase Bonds at any price in the open market or otherwise.

5.4 Reselling or Cancellation

The Issuer is entitled to resell any Bonds purchased pursuant to Condition 5.3 above and to
use the voting rights relating to Bonds purchased or to cancel them. In case of cancellation,
the Bonds cancelled may not be resold or reissued.

6. Payments

6.1 Payment of the interest in respect of the Bonds represented by the Global Bonds will be
made against presentation for endorsement and, if no further payment falls to be made in
respect of the Bonds, surrender of the Global Bonds to the Issuer. A record of each payment
made will be endorsed on the schedule to the Global Bond by or on behalf of the Issuer or
an appointed Paying Agent (as defined below).

6.2 The Issuer will appoint a Paying Agent under an Agency Agreement for payments in
respect of the Bonds. The Issuer may replace or terminate the appointment of the Paying
Agent or any paying agent and/or appoint additional or other paying agents (each is a
“Paying Agent”). Notice of any Agency Agreement or appointment or change in the Paying
Agent or any change in or addition to the Paying Agents or of any change in their specified
offices will be published in accordance with Condition 14 with respect to Notices.



6.3 If the due date for payment of any amount of the Principal Amount or interest in respect
of any Bond is not a Business Day in Kuwait, then the Bondholder thereof will be entitled to
payment at the relevant place of payment of the amount due in the next following Business
Day and will be entitled to further interest in respect of any such delay calculated based on
the interest rate applicable on the relevant interest period.

7. Taxation

All payments of the Principal Amount and interest by the Issuer will be made without
withholding or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of
whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of the State of Kuwait or any authority
therein or thereof having power to tax, unless such withholding or deduction is required

by law. In such event, the Issuer will pay additional amounts as shall be necessary in order
that the net amounts received by the Bondholders after such withholding or deduction shall
equal the respective amounts of Principal Amount and interest which would have been
receivable in respect of the Bonds in the absence of such withholding or deduction; except
that no such additional amounts shall be payable with respect to any Bonds presented for
payment by or on behalf of a Bondholder who is liable for such taxes or duties in respect of
such Bonds by reason of such Bondholder having some connection with the State of Kuwait
other than the mere holding of such Bond(s) or the receipt of principal, or interest in respect
thereof. In any event, the Issuer shall be entitled, at its sole discretion, to redeem all Bonds,
not part thereof, in case of any tax charged if such tax is costly in comparison to the amount
and the cost of the Bond issue.

8. Events of Default

If one or more of the following events (each, an “Event of Default”) shall have occurred and
be continuing:

1. the Issuer fails to pay the Principal Amount of any of the Bonds (whether at maturity, upon
redemption or otherwise) for a period of 3 Business Days after the date when due; or

2. the Issuer fails to pay any interest on any of the Bonds for a period of 3 Business Days after
the date when due; or

3. the Issuer fails to cure any acceleration event arising from or in connection with any
indebtedness of the Issuer for borrowed money or issued securities (in whatever form)
equivalent to at least KWD 10,000,000 (Ten Million Kuwaiti Dinars) for a period of 3 Business
Days, and regardless whether the acceleration event is a result of a default, legal action,
action or omission by the Issuer in accordance with the terms and conditions of such
indebtedness of the Issuer for borrowed money or issued securities;

4. without prejudice to Conditions 8 (i), (ii), and (iii) above, the Issuer fails to duly to
perform or observe any other term, covenant (negative pledge, financial, or otherwise),
representations and warranties and/or any other agreement contained in any of the
documents relating to the Bonds for a period of 30 days after the date on which written
notice of such failure, requiring the Issuer to remedy the same, shall first have been given to
the Issuer or its appointed Paying Agent by the Representative of Bondholders (as defined in
Condition 12); or



5. the Issuer stops payment of any of its debts when due or cease to carry on business or
substantially the whole of its business or threaten to do so; or

6. an order is made or an effective resolution passed for the winding up or the dissolution of
the Issuer; or

7. the Issuer sells, transfers, or otherwise disposes of, directly or indirectly, the whole or

a substantial part of its undertaking or assets except a disposal at market value or in the
ordinary course of business or a disposal the terms of which have been previously approved
by a Resolution of the Bondholders Association referred to in Condition 12. For these
purposes a certificate of the auditors of the Issuer that in their opinion the undertaking

or assets (or the relevant part) disposed of is or is not substantial shall, in the absence of
manifest error, be conclusive and binding on the Issuer, any appointed Paying Agent and the
Bondholders; or

8. an encumbrance takes possession of, or a receiver or judicial officer is appointed over,

the whole or any material part of the assets or undertaking of the Issuer or an attachment,
execution or other process shall be levied or enforced upon or sued against the whole or any
material part of the chattels or property of the Issuer following upon a decree or judgment
of a court of competent jurisdiction and shall not be removed, discharged or paid out within
30 Business Days; or

9. the Issuer becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts generally as they mature or
applies for or consents to or suffers the appointment of a liquidator or takes any proceeding
under any law for a readjustment or deferment of its obligations or any part thereof or
makes or enters into a general assignment or an arrangement or composition with or for
the benefit of its creditors or stops or threatens to cease to carry on its business or any
substantial part thereof; or

10. the Issuer fails to issue its annual audited consolidated financial statements within 120
Days from the end of its fiscal year or the quarterly reviewed interim consolidated financial
statements within 90 Days from the end of each quarter; and

then in each and every case above the Principal Amount of each Bond (together with
accrued interest) shall, at the option of and upon written notice in English and Arabic to the
Issuer by the Representative of Bondholders become immediately due and payable, without
the necessity of any judicial proceedings upon the date that such written notice is received
by the Issuer unless prior to such date all Events of Default in respect of all the Bonds shall
have been cured.

9. Prescription

9.1 Each Bond will become void unless presented for payment in the Principal Amount within
a period of 10 years from the Final Redemption Date.

9.2 Payment of interest in relation to any Bond will become void unless presented for
payment within a period of 5 years from maturity date of the relevant Bond.



10. The Payment Agent

10.1 The Payment Agents appointed pursuant to the Agency Agreement will be acting solely
as agents of the Issuer and do not assume any obligation towards or relationship of agency
or trust for or with the Bondholders.

10.2 Any Agency Agreements may be amended by the parties thereto, without the consent
of the Bondholders, for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, defective provision or manifest
error or in any manner which the parties thereto may deem necessary or desirable which will
not be inconsistent with the Bonds and will not, in the opinion of such parties, be materially
prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders, or any appointed Paying Agent or Paying
Agent.

11. Replacement of Bonds

Should any of the Bonds be mutilated, defaced, destroyed, stolen or lost, such may be
replaced at the office of the Issuer in Kuwait (or such other place(s) as the Issuer may from
time to time decide and notify in accordance with Condition 12) upon payment by the
claimant of the expenses incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence
and indemnity as the Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Bonds must be
surrendered before replacements will be issued.

12. Association of Bondholders

An association of all holders of the Bonds will be created and will have a legal representative
elected among the Bondholders or third parties. The Issuer will within a month from the
Issue Date call for the association of the Bondholders to approve its articles and elect or
appoint its representative. If the Issuer does not call the association for a meeting during
such period, every interested party may request the Capital Market Authority to call for such
meeting within no more than 15 Business Days from the date of such request. The quorum
and voting required to pass resolutions of the association will be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Capital Markets Law No. 7 of 2010 and its Executive Regulations No.
(72) of 2015 (as amended).

13. Notices

13.1 Notices to Bondholders shall be deemed to have been duly given and valid if delivered
by hand or published in a leading newspaper of general circulation in Kuwait and if the notice
is for the purposes of a Bondholder’s meeting, such notice shall also apply to the regulatory
authority for publication in the Official Gazette (Al-Kuwait Al-Youm). Any such notice shall be
deemed to have been given on the date of publication in such leading newspaper provided
that if such notice is for the purposes of a Bondholder’s meeting, such notice shall be
deemed to have been given on the date of publication in the Official Gazette (Al-Kuwait Al-
Youm). If such notice is published more than once, the notice shall be deemed to have been
given on the date of the first such publication. Attendance of the Bondholders at the meeting
of the Association shall rectify any deficiency or defects in the invitation procedures.

13.2 Unless the notice is given for meeting of the Association, all notices to be given to any
Bondholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same with the Paying Agent or, as



long as the Bonds are held in a clearing system with a Clearing Agent, notices may be given
through the clearing system in accordance with its standard rules and procedures applicable
by the Clearing Agent.

14. Governing Law
The Agency Agreement and the Bonds are governed by the laws of the State of Kuwait.
15. Court Jurisdiction

15.1 The Issuer has irrevocably agreed for the benefit of the Bondholder that the courts

of the State of Kuwait are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may
arise out of or in connection with the Bonds and accordingly has submitted to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Kuwait.

15.2 The Bondholders may take any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or in connection
with the Bonds (together referred to as “Proceedings”) against the Issuer in any other Court
of competent jurisdiction and concurrent Proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

SUMMARY OF PROVISIONS RELATING
TO THE GLOBAL BONDS

Each of the Global Bonds contain provisions which apply to the Bonds represented by such
Global Bond, some which modify the effect of the Terms and Conditions of the Bonds set
out in this document. The effects of such provisions contained in the Global Bond are set out
below.

The KWD Floating Rate Bond will be evidenced by a Global Bond Certificate without coupons
in registered form representing 2,500 individual Certificates each in denominations of KWD
10,000. The Global Bond will be deposited for credit to the accounts of the subscribers with
Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C. on the date of issuance of the Bonds. While the Bonds

are evidenced by the Global Bond Certificate, the Bonds evidenced by such Global Bonds
Certificate may be transferred through Kuwait Clearance Company in accordance with the
rules and procedures in effect thereat.

The Global Bond will be exchangeable in whole but not in part for individual definitive Bond
Certificates if (a) any Bond becomes due and payable in accordance with Condition 8 of the
Bond, (b) if the Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C. is closed for business for a continuous period
of 14 Business Days (other than by reason of holidays, statutory or otherwise) or announces
an intention permanently to cease business or, in fact, does so, or (c) the Issuer would suffer
any disadvantage as a result of a change in any laws or regulations (or in the interpretation
thereof by the relevant authorities) or as a result of a change in the practice of Kuwait
Clearing Company K.S.C. which would not be suffered if the Bonds were to be in definitive
form. For the purposes of this provision “Business Day” means a day that the Kuwait Stock
Exchange opens for normal business in Kuwait.

So long as the Global Bond is held by Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C., notices required to be
given to holders of Bonds may be given by such notices being delivered to Kuwait Clearing
Company K.S.C., so long as notices are also published in Kuwait in accordance with the
Conditions of the Bond.



The holder of the Global Bond Certificate shall be the only person entitled to receive
payment of principal and interest in respect of the Bonds represented by the Global Bond
Certificate and each person entitled to a Bond represented by the Global Bond Certificate
must look solely to Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C., for its share of each payment made by
the Issuer to the holder of the Global Bond Certificate.

Payments of principal and/or interest in respect of Bonds represented by the Global Bond
Certificate will be made against presentation for endorsement and, if no further payment
falls to be made in respect of the Bonds, surrender of the Global Bond Certificate to the
Issuer. A record of each payment made will be endorsed on the schedule attached to the
Global Bond Certificate by Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C. on behalf of the Issuer or an
appointed Paying Agent.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The gross proceeds from the issue of the Bonds will be used by the Issuer for general
corporate purposes. Management commissions and certain expenses incurred in connection
with the issue of the Bonds will be deducted from the gross proceeds of the Bonds.

The following table shows the detailed uses of the Bond proceeds:

Financing various company activities 24,531,250
Costs of Boers. issue, marketing, administrative, 125,000
legal and printing costs

Estimated costs of assistant Lead Manager 343,750

TOTAL 25,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

1. OVERVIEW

NIG Holding was established to participate in developing Kuwait’s infrastructure and
promote its industrial advancement through the development of the building materials
industry. Having played an instrumental role in the foundation of Kuwait’s industrialisation
ambitions, NIG Holding has emerged as the largest listed investment holding company on the
KSE in terms of assets and one of the leading investment houses in the region. NIG Holding
now holds a diverse investment portfolio of core operating businesses (“Core Operating
Businesses”), strategic investments and financial investments in the building materials,
specialist engineering, petrochemicals, financial services, utilities, oil and gas services and
real estate sectors.



2. HISTORY AND BACKGROUND

NIG Holding is one of the largest listed investment holding companies on the KSE in terms
of total assets and shareholder equity. NIG Holding was incorporated in 1961 as a closed
Kuwaiti shareholding company in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law (Law
No. 15/1960 of Kuwait). NIG Holding’s initial paid up capital was 20 Million rupees (the then
equivalent of approximately KWD 1,500,000 (One Million Five Hundred Thousand Kuwaiti
Dinar)). NIG Holding’s founding shareholders included the Government of Kuwait (the
“Government”), with a 51% stake and certain prominent Kuwaiti trading families, which
retain stakes in NIG Holding today. NIG Holding was made responsible for the operation
of two manufacturing plants, which had been owned by the Government since 1955, one
producing cement-based products and the other producing bricks and limestone-based
products. In 1962, NIG Holding diversified into the manufacturing of pipes and fittings for
water and sewage through the incorporation of the Kuwait Asbestos and Plastic Industries
Company.

NIG Holding was instrumental in the development of Kuwait’s industrial base in the 1960s
and 1970s through its participation in the establishment and development of companies
such as Kuwait Cement Company (“KCC”), Kuwait Metal Pipes Industries and Contracting

and Marine Services Company, as well as Gulf Cable and Electrical Industries Company. NIG
Holding’s rate of growth accelerated in the 1960s and its production capacity and turnover
expanded significantly in the mid-1970s with the establishment of two complexes which
continue to constitute its principal operations in the building materials sector: the Sulaibiya
complex, which specialises in cement-based products and the Mina Abdullah complex, which
specialises in limestone-based products and plastics. In the 1970s, NIG Holding diversified
into the production of household goods such as washing detergents under license from
Henkel (Germany) as well as the production of automotive batteries. Other industries

in which it became involved in the 1970s included tyre production. This broad spread of
businesses was consistent with NIG Holding’s public sector ownership and its role in fostering
the process of industrialisation in Kuwait.

Also during the 1970s, NIG Holding’s operations extended to other GCC countries,
particularly Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”). It was a founding
shareholder in Saudi Sand Lime Bricks & Building Materials Company (a Saudi Arabian
company), Gulf Gravel Company (a UAE company) and the National Quarries Company (a
UAE company). By the 1980s, NIG Holding had established itself as a broad based industrial
conglomerate with a strategy of identifying sectors for development both nationally and
regionally in other GCC countries. Its expansion involved extending its product range through
adding new plants for the production of plastic pipes and fittings and aerated concrete
blocks.

Following its decision to draw back from certain sectors of the national economy, the
Government divested its ownership of NIG Holding through the flotation of its 51%
shareholding on the KSE in 1995. At the same time, NIG Holding embarked on a strategy
of industrial specialisation while divesting some of its less profitable non-core operations
through disposals and plant closures.



3 OWNERSHIP

NIG Holding diversified its investor base to include major institutional investors, who hold
28%; the general public, who hold approximately 58.9% via the KSE and the Dubai Financial
Market; KCC and the Public Institute for Social Security, who own 9.828% and 9.95%,
respectively; and prominent Kuwaiti families, including the Al-Kharafi, Al Rabia, Al-Rashid,
Al-Saad, Al-Fulaij and Behbehani groups, who together hold the remaining 11.7%

The only three shareholders who own in excess of 5% of the total outstanding shares are
Al-Khair National for Stocks and Real Estate (9.649%), KCC (9.828%) and the Public Institute
for Social Security (9.95%).

4 MANAGEMENT

4.1 Management Overview
The following chart sets out the management structure of NIG Holding:
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NIG Holding’s articles of association provide that it shall be managed by a board of directors
consisting of 9 members, elected by the shareholders at the general assembly meeting. The
term of board membership is 3 years, subject to renewal. The board may appoint directors,
including the non-executive Chairman.

The CEO reports to the Chairman and is responsible for the day-to-day management of NIG
Holding through a team of executive managers.

The board of directors has three committees, the Audit and Risk Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Investment Committee develops, monitors
and enforces the investment strategy of NIG Holding. Any potential investments to be made
by NIG Holding’s subsidiaries, which exceed the equivalent of US$50,000,000 (Fifty Million
US Dollars) must be approved by the Investment Committee.

4.2 Board of Directors

Mr. Saad Mohammed Al-Saad - Chairman

Mr. Al-Saad became Chairman and Managing Director of NIG Holding in 2004. Prior to this
appointment, Mr. Al-Saad was Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of NIG Holding since
1973. He was also a member of the board of Kuwait National Petroleum Company (1971-
1975) and Director of a number of NIG Holding’s associated companies including the KCC,
the Saudi Sand Lime Bricks and Building Materials Company and the Gulf Cable and Electrical
Industries Company. Mr. Al-Saad obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business from Cairo
University in 1968.

Mr. Sulaiman Hamad Al-Dalali — Deputy Chairman

Mr. Al-Dalali was elected as Deputy Chairman of NIG Holding in 2004. He has been the
Chairman and Managing Director of Ahleia Insurance Company since 1999. Mr. Al-Dalali is
also currently a board member of three companies, the Kuwait Financial Centre (Kuwait)
the Arab Life Insurance Company, (Lebanon) and the Arab & Accident Insurance Company
(Jordan) He graduated with a degree in Business from Cairo University in 1968.

Mr. Ali Morad Behbehani

Mr. Behbehani was elected to the board of NIG Holding in 1996. He is the Vice President of
Morad Yousef Behbehani and a director of the Kuwait Insurance Company and the Kuwait
National Cinema Company. Mr. Behbehani holds a bachelor’s degree in English literature
from Kuwait University.

Mr. Salah Khalid Al-Fulaij

Mr. Al-Fulaij was elected to the board of NIG Holding in 1995. He is the Vice President of
Khalid Al Fulaij & Sons Company which is involved in banking, real estate and investments.
Mr. Al-Fulaij is also vice president of Sulaiman Al-Fulaij Trading and Contracting Company.
Mr. Al-Fulaij has been a director of Gulf Bank, the second largest bank in Kuwait, since 1992.
He graduated with a degree in Business Administration and Economics from Emporia State
University in the United States in 1979.



Mrs. Maha Khalid Al-Ghunaim

Mrs. Al-Ghunaim was elected to the Board of NIG Holding in 1996. Mrs. Al Ghunaim is a
specialist in investment management and sits on the boards of various investment funds. She
is currently a director of the Industrial Bank of Kuwait (1999) and is Chairman and Managing
Director of Global Investment House. Mrs. Al-Ghunaim graduated from San Francisco State
University with a BSc in mathematics.

Mr. Husam Fawzi Al-Kharafi

Mr. Al-Kharafi was elected to the board of NIG Holding in 2007. In addition, he has been
Chairman of Noor since 2005 and a member of the board of the National Real Estate
Company since 2004. He was a member of the board of Mabanee from 1998 to 2005 and
Harf Company from 1999 to 2004. Mr. Al-Kharafi has held numerous positions in M.A. Al
Kharafi & Sons WLL Kuwait and has been the Assistant General Manager since 2002.

Mr. Abdul Aziz Ibrahim Al-Rabiah

Mr. Al-Rabiah was elected to the board of NIG Holding in 1979. He has been General
Manager of Mohammed Abdullah Al-Rabiah & Partners Company since 1981. He was also a
director of KCC (1992-1998) and the Kuwait Pipe Industries & Oil Services Co. (1980 to 1992).
Mr. Al-Rabiah graduated with a degree in accounting from Kuwait University in 1975.

Mr. Mohammed Abdulmohsen Asfour

Mr. Asfour has been elected as an independent board member in 2013, Mr. Asfour was a
Minister of Public Authority for Housing Welfare and also Chairman of the Kuwaiti Building
Material Manufacturing Co (KBMMCOQ). Mr. Asfour is currently is Deputy Chairman and board
member of other companies in Kuwait. Mr. Asfour graduated from Cairo university, Faculty of
Commerce.

Dr. Abdul Aziz Al-Rashed Abdul Aziz Al-Rashed

Dr. Al-Rashed is a Director on the board of NIG Holding since 2016 and currently Chairman
for Kuwait Drilling Company and Director on the board of Contracting & Marine Services
Co. K.S.C. respectively. Dr. Al-Rashed has a Masters Degree and PHD holder in Electronic
Engineering from Wisconsin University, USA and graduated with a degree in engineering
from Kuwait University.

4.3 Executive Management

The executive management team of NIG Holding is responsible for running the daily
operations of the company. The current members of the team are:

Mr. Ahmed Mohammed Hassan Hussein - Chief Executive Officer

Starting July 2013, Mr. Hassan has been selected by the board consensus to be the Chief
Executive Officer. Previously, Mr. Hussein was the General Manager/Finance Manager at
the NIG Holding since 1982. Throughout his extensive career at NIG Holding, Mr. Hussein
has been responsible for overseeing the financial management of the company to ensure
consistent growth and profitability. He held previous positions in comparable roles before
joining NIG Holding, having worked as the Audit Manager and Partner at Adel Al Ghanim

& Partners Office as well as serving as the Financial Manager at Kuwait Asbestos Industries.
Mr. Hussein completed his BA in Accounting at Ain Shams University and is currently

a member of several boards, including National Industries Company K.S.C.C., Proclad Group
Ltd., DIFC and FTV Proclad.



Mr. Reyadh S. Ali Al-Edrissi - Deputy Chief Executive Officer —

Investments and Mega Projects

Based on a board resolution, Effective March 31, 2014 Mr. Al-Edrissi was hired as a Deputy
CEO for investments and Mega projects to oversee all the holding company investment
activities and the mega projects. Prior to that Mr. Al-Edrissi was Executive Manager of direct
investments. Mr. Al-Edrissi joined NIG Holding in 1999. In this role, he is responsible for

the overall management of the company at the executive level. Mr. Al-Edrissi held several
comparable positions at NIG before being promoted to Executive Manager, including
Senior Manager, Projects Development Manager and Deputy Manager for Petrochemical
Projects. He graduated from Newcastle Upon Tyne University with a BSc degree in Chemical
Engineering in addition to receiving an MSc degree in Chemical Engineering from Kuwait
University. Mr. Al-Edrissi has taken many technical training courses and continues to serve
on a multitude of boards, including Chairman at Privatisation Holding Co., Vice Chairman

at Gas & Oil Fields Services Co., Ikarus Petroleum Industries, Markaz Energy Fund, Kuwait
Ceramic Company, Investment Committee of Bouniyan Fund of the Kuwait Investment Co.,
Middle East Complex for Eng., Electronics & Heavy Industries Co. and Saudi International
Petrochemical Company.

Mr. Faisal Abdul Aziz Al Nassar - Deputy Chief Executive Officer -

Finance and Administration

Based on a board resolution Effective March 31, 2014, Mr. Al Nassar was hired to oversee

all the holding company finance and administration affairs. Previously he held the

position of Corporate Affairs Executive Manager at NIG Holding since joining NIG Holding

in 2005. His current responsibilities include managing all finance and administration
activities, participating in investment committee meetings and managing a variety of
company relationships. Prior to joining NI Group in 2005, Mr. Nassar served as Auditor for
Governmental Agencies at the Kuwait Bureau of Accountancy as well as holding the position
of Auditor at the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Al Nassar obtained his BSc from the Faculty of
Commerce at Kuwait University and currently serves on a wide range of boards, including
Chairman and CEO of Al Durra National Real Estate Company, and board member of
numerous of companies as Al Ruwad Real Estate Company, Gas & Qil field Services Company,
Abu Dhabi Real Estate Investment Company and Noor Financial Investment Company, Noor
Telecommunication Company, Noor Al Salehia Real Estate, Arabic Investment Group, and
Shorfat al Safwa in KSA.

Mr. Mubasher Hussain Sheikh, FCCA - Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sheikh being currently the Chief Financial Officer, has been with NIG Holding since 2001,
where he has an extensive experience with multinational companies and a solid experience
in Holding and investment companies. Mr. Sheikh’s role in the group is overseeing the
activities of the subsidiaries and reporting on different panels. Prior to joining NIG Holding,
Mr. Sheikh was an Audit Manager in a leading Audit Firm Grant Thornton International

in Kuwait. He graduated with a degree in Mathematics and Statistics and is a fellow of
Chartered Certified Accountant, UK. He is a currently a board member of K- Electric Limited
and Non-Executive Director of the Proclad group.



Ms. Hetaf M. Khajah, CFA - Chief Investment Officer

Ms. Khajah is currently the Chief Investment Officer and has been at NIG Holding since 2003.
In this position, Ms. Khajah is responsible for overseeing the company’s international and
regional investment strategies, including analysing potential investment opportunities and
monitoring the company’s current holdings. Prior to her current role at NIG,

Ms. Khajah served as Investment Funds Manager at the National Bank of Kuwait K.S.C..

Ms. Khajah studied at The George Washington University, receiving her Masters of Science
in Information Systems and subsequently completed her studies at Harvard Executive
Education.

Mr. lhab Boulas, MBA, CPA - Group Risk, And Compliance Manager

Effective March 31, 2014 Mr. Boulas was promoted to be the Group risk and Compliance
Manager. Previously, Mr. Boulas was the Internal Audit Manager since his joining in 2002.
Throughout his career at NI Group, Mr. Boulas had held a wide range of responsibilities.
Throughout his extensive career at NI Group, Mr. Boulas had established the internal audit
department, performing advanced auditing tasks, managing audits and projects, developing
the holding company’s policies and procedures, the supervision and planning of auditing
daily activities. Mr. Boulas is Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from the University of lllinois
and obtained a Master in Business Administration (MBA) from Kuwait Maastricht Business
Studies.

4.4 Employees

NIG Holding and its consolidated subsidiaries currently employ 3,620 full time staff in Kuwait
and internationally.

The following table sets out the number of full time employees in each Core Operating
Business:

Parent Building Specialist Petro- Financial

. . . . Real Estate
Company Materials Engineering chemicals Services

Source: NIG Holding



5 CORPORATE STRUCTURE

NIG Holding is an investment holding company with shareholdings in a portfolio of fully or
partly owned companies. Under NIG Holding’s business model, it classifies these investments
into three main categories:

(i) Core Operating Businesses;
(ii) Strategic Investments; and
(iii) Financial Investments.

National Industries Group

Core Operating Businesses Investments

Building Real Specialist | petrochem- Financial Utilities Oil & Gas Strategic Financial
Materials Estate Ebgineering icals Services Services Investments Investments

NIG Holding’s investments in Core Operating Businesses consist of: (a) holdings in companies
that are majority owned and controlled by NIG Holding, as well as (b) holding companies
that own significant minority stakes in companies over which NIG Holding exerts significant
influence. NIG Holding undertakes its Core Operating Businesses in the following six
industries: (i) building materials; (ii) oil, gas services and specialist engineering;

(iii) petrochemicals; (iv) financial services; (v) utilities; and (vi) real estate.

Strategic investments include long term investments in companies operating in industries in
which NIG Holding is actively involved, yet holds a minority stake. Financial investments are
investments where NIG Holding has no or limited operating involvement and a minority stake
and are typically in funds, debt and other financial markets products.



The following tables summarises NIG Holding’s fully owned subsidiaries and key investments:

Oil & Gas /
Proclad Group Limited Core 100%  Unlisted Specialist

Engineering
National Combined Industries Holding ) .
e s Core 100%  Unlisted Utilities
Eagle Proprietary Investments Limited Core 100%  Unlisted Investment
Al-Durrah National Real Estate Company Core 100%  Unlisted Real Estate
Ikarus Petroleum Industries Company Core 64.6% Listed Petrochemical
National Industries Company Core 50.5% Listed Industrial
Noor Financial Investment Company Core 50.3% Listed Investment
Kuwait Privatisation Holding Company  Strategic 29.8% Listed Services
Kuwait Cement Company Strategic 26.8% Listed Industrial
Airport International Group Strategic 24.0%  Unlisted Services
Mabanee Company Strategic 17.5% Listed Real Estate
Contracting & Marine Services Company Strategic 17.8% Listed Oil and Gas
Kuwait Financial Centre Strategic  4.4% Listed Investment
Jordan Telecom Strategic  6.3% Listed Telecom
Foulath Holding B.S.C Strategic  10% Unlisted Industrial
Boubyan International Industries Co. Strategic  9.3% Unlisted Investment
Bayan Holding Co Strategic  6.2% Unlisted Real Estate
Al-Ahleia Insurance Strategic  5.8% Listed Insurance
Egypt Kuwait Holding Company Strategic  4.0% Listed Investment
KGL Logistics Strategic  0.1% Listed Services
National Bank of Kuwait Strategic  1.1% Listed Banking
Dana Gas Strategic = 2.2% Listed Oil and Gas

Kuwait Finance House Strategic  1.5% Listed Banking



6 GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE

In line with NIG Holding’s investment strategy to source focused and privileged investments,
the company’s investment portfolio is concentrated in the GCC and broader Middle East
and North Africa (“MENA”) region. NIG Holding also maintains significant investments in
the United States, the United Kingdom (“UK”), Europe and selected investments in other
geographies.

Investments in Associates Financial Assets

. Kuwait

B other MENA

B cuwait Asia/Africa
B other MENA B ux/Europe
Asia/Africa USA

7 CORE OPERATING BUSINESSES

NIG Holding’s Core Operating Businesses are in the following six industries: (i) building
materials; (ii) oil, gas and services specialist engineering; (iii) petrochemicals; (iv) financial
services; (v) utilities and (vi) real estate.

7.1 Building Materials

7.1.1 National Industries Company
NIC’s building materials manufacturing activities are undertaken by NIC and its consolidated
subsidiary, Building Systems Industries Company (W.L.L.).

The principal shareholder in NIC is NIG Holding with a 51% shareholding. NIC’s shares
are traded on the “industrial” section of the KSE (Ticker: NICBM, Stock Code: 520). NIC is
therefore regulated as a listed company by the KSE, with a market capitalisation of KWD
78,600,000 (Seventy Eight Million and Six Hundred Thousand Kuwaiti Dinar)* as of 31
December 2015.

The principal objective of NIC is to provide complementary products to meet the demands
of housing and infrastructure projects in Kuwait. The strategic development of NIC is guided
by a focus on core business activities and a streamlined organisation. NIC owns and operates
16 production plants, one quarry and has 1,821 employees. NIC has the largest production
capacity in Kuwait and as a result, enjoys economies of scale not available to its smaller
domestic competitors. NIC is also the only domestic manufacturer of certain products such
as lime, sand lime bricks, concrete pipes and large diameter high-density polyethylene
(“HDPE”) pipes.

1Based on a closing price of KWD 0.226 and 347,794,578 shares outstanding.



NIC manufactures building materials and concrete pipes for infrastructure usage. NIC also
produces plastic pipes and fittings and extracts rocks from its one quarry, which are leased
from the Government. Production is carried out in two groups of factories in Kuwait and
other factories located in Saudi Arabia, Bahrain and Oman, which are operated in partnership
with local manufacturing companies. The factories located in Kuwait are the Mina Abdullah
Port factory complex and the Sulaibiya factory complex. The factories offer the following
products:

¢ Autoclaved aerated concrete block factory (also known
as gas aerated concrete blocks (“AAC”)

¢ Sand lime bricks factory

e PVC factory

e Quarry (located nearby at Al Ahmedi area)

Mina Abdulla e Lime factory
Port Factory e Plaster and wall covering and cladding factory
Complex * High-density polyethylene (“HDPE”) factory

¢ Polypropylene factory

e Paint factory

e Ready mix plant

e Ceramic and porcelain factory
e Special use materials

e Ready mix factory

e Tiles and curbstones factory
¢ Concrete pipes factory

e Interlock tiles factory

¢ Sand washing station

Sulaibiya factory
complex

¢ Saudi Lime Industries Co (10%)

¢ Saudi Insulated Blocks Co (Riyadh and Jeddah Factories)
Other (50%) o ;
¢ Insulated Building System Factory, Bahrain (50%)
* Omani German Co for Building Materials, Oman (32.50%)
¢ United Gulf Pipe Manufacturing Co (Oman) (30%)
e National Industries Co for Ceramics, Kuwait (60%)

operations

NIC also carries out certain operations outside Kuwait by entering into strategic partnerships
with local manufacturers. In particular, NIC has established the Saudi Insulated Block
Company, a 50:50 joint venture with the Saudi Sand Brick Company, a Saudi Arabian
company, to manufacture light blocks in Riyadh and Jeddah.

NIC also owns: (i) 50% of a joint venture established in Bahrain, to manufacture aerated
concrete blocks and slabs; (ii) 32.50% of a joint venture established in Oman, to manufacture
various building materials; (iii) 30% of a joint venture in Oman to manufacture of HDPE pipes
and (iv) 10% of a joint venture in Saudi Arabia, which manufactures sand lime bricks. The
HDPE factory in Oman has already started commercial production and the AAC factories in
both Bahrain and Oman are currently in production.



In 2012, NIC completed the construction of a porcelain and ceramic factory in the Mina
Abdullah Port area of Kuwait. The factory has a production capacity of 7 Million square
meters of porcelain and ceramics per annum. The production of the new factory is principally
intended for export, particularly to the GCC, Europe and the United States.

NIC had available for sale investments worth KWD 37,000,000 (Thirty Seven Million Kuwaiti
Dinar) as of 31 December 2015.

The following table sets out some key financial information for NIC as at 31 December 2015
and for the year-end of 2014, 2013 and 2012:

Total Assets 113.8 111.0 107.0 114.2

Total Liabilities 18.3 18.8 23.9 30.3

Total Shareholder’s Equity 89.8 89.3 80.3 81.1

Revenue 48.2 47.6 44.7 43.5

Net Profit 8.0 7.4 0.5 5.03
Source: NIC

7.2 Oil, Gas and Services Specialist Engineering

7.2.1 Proclad Group

Proclad Group Limited is a fully owned subsidiary of NIG Holding and primarily comprises of
two main divisions (i) oil & gas services division (Proclad), and (ii) the Specialist engineering
metal division (United Cast Bar).

7.2.1.1 Oil and Gas Services division — Proclad

Proclad is a major player in the Cladding business on worldwide basis and is a leader in

the oil & gas industry mainly because of its recognised and accepted products and its
commitment to high standard of quality. Proclad was initially established in 1985 and
developed protective weld cladding systems and processes to clad the internal surfaces of
pipes and associated pipeline components used in highly corrosive metal loss environments.
Proclad technology is now installed in all of the major oil and gas producing regions of the
world.

The scope of Proclad has been broadened from supplier of weld overlay, cladding, supply of
Hydroformed Lined Pipe, spooling and site installation in to many sectors and applications to
EPC contractors as well as oil & gas companies.

Proclad continues to invest in new technology and research & development in order to
maintain its position at the forefront of the cladding industry with its innovative technology
and processes, providing niche products and services to the Oil & Gas industry.

Proclad operates and supplies its products and services to the world oil & gas markets
which cover the Middle Eastern region, Brazil, CIS, North and West Africa, North Sea, North
America, China and South East Asia.



Over the last 20 years, Proclad has supplied products and services for major projects across
different countriesvia EPC contractors and multinational oil & gas companies, including BP,
Exxon, Chevron, ADNOC (UAE), KOC (Kuwait), NPCC (UAE), Pertamina, Petrobras, Hyundai,
SKEC (Korea), Worley Parsons, Petrofac (UAE) and many others.

Proclad has manufacturing facilities in Scotland (UK), UAE and Singapore and has physical
sales offices in Perth (Australia), Houston (USA), Shanghai (China), Jakarta (Indonesia) and
Seoul (South Korea) for its oil & gas markets.

7.2.1.2 Specialist Engineering Metal Division - United Cast Bar Ltd

United Cast Bar manufactures continuous cast iron bars providing a high quality,
sophisticated product for use in the niche European engineering and manufacturing
industries.

The company, which is today part of the Proclad Group, was formed in February 1998 by the
merger of three of Europe’s most prestigious continuous cast iron bar foundries: Eurocast Bar
Limited (UK), Starkey’s Technicast Limited (UK) and Cast Profil SA (Spain), together with their
associated stockists and service centres.

United Cast Bar has over the years strengthened and extended its sales structure and
logistics network by providing a manufacturing base to produce over 80,000 tonnes of
Unibar (out of the UK and Spain), with over 20,000 tonnes permanently held as standard
stock in its foundries and distributors, throughout Europe, North America and the Far East.

United Cast Bar is a product market leader having more than 55% of Europe and Asia
market share. The company has now opened new markets in China, Korea and Turkey and is
focusing on product range with more of downstream manufacturing and hence providing it
with a competitive edge.

The following table sets out some key consolidated financial information for the Proclad
Group Limited (Proclad and UCB) as at year-end 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012:

US Dollar Million 2015 2014 2013 2012

Sales 250.5 228.4 225.3 229.3
Profit from Operations 22.3 13.5 17.7 15.4
Net profit 19.0 10.5 20.9 20.7
Total Assets 266.7 268.0 290.8 258.8
Total Liabilities 104.1 114.6 138.3 121.5
Total Shareholder’s Equity 162.6 134.8 132.7 114.2

Source: NIG (figures above exclude inter-company balances)



7.3 Petrochemicals

7.3.1 Ikarus Petroleum Industries Company

In 1996, NIG Holding established the Ikarus Petroleum Industries Company (formerly
known as the National Company for Cement Industries) (“lkarus”). Ikarus is an investment
holding company, which is 64.6% owned by NIG Holding and its subsidiaries (excluding 7%
owned by NIC), whose objective is to invest in companies that engage in the development
of, and investment in, local and regional petroleum and petrochemicals ventures. lkarus’
geographical focus for its investments is the MENA region. lkarus investment focus is on the
petrochemical, oil and gas sectors (both upstream and midstream).

The shares of lkarus have been listed on the KSE since April 2008. As of 31 December 2015,
Ikarus had a market capitalisation of KWD 70.01 Million.?

As at 31 December 2015, Ikarus had a total investment portfolio of KWD 76.6 Million
including stakes in the Saudi International Petrochemical Company (“Sipchem”) and the
Tasnee Petrochemical Company (“Tasnee”) (which are both Saudi Arabian listed companies
operating in chemical and petrochemical sectors), unlisted Saudi companies, listed Kuwaiti
companies and local Kuwaiti funds.

Ikarus’ Investment Portfolio as of 31 December 2015

5%
3% [l siPCHEM/TASNE
. Foreign Assets (unquoted)

. Local Portfolio (quoted)

Local Assets (unquoted)

Source: lkarus

The following table sets out some key financial figures for lkarus as at 31 December 2015 and
for the year-end 2014 and 2013:

Total Assets 104.1 181.3 206.6
Total Liabilities 34 37.0 33.3
Total Shareholder’s Equity 70.1 144.3 173.3
Net Profit (Loss) (7.8) 10.11 11.1

2Based on closing price of KWD 0.090 and 779,574,083shares outstanding.



7.3.2 Saudi International Petrochemical Company

Sipchem was founded in Saudi Arabia in September 1998, has a fully paid up share capital of
SAR 3.67 Billion and is listed on Tadawul, the Saudi Arabian stock market (symbol: 2310). As
of 31 December 2015, the market capitalisation of Sipchem was SAR 4.6 Billion.?

Ikarus and the Al-Zamil Group are the largest shareholders of Sipchem, with Ikarus holding
8.16% of the issued shares. Ikarus is entitled to appoint one representative to Sipchem’s
board of directors. Other shareholders in Sipchem include the Saudi Arabian Public Pension
Agency and the Al-Olayan Financial Company.

SAR Million 2015 2014 2013

Current Assets 2,877 3,528 4,172
Inventory 698 532 303
Fixed Assets 13,294 12,888 11,547
Other Assets 190 261 667
Current Liabilities 1,790 1,562 1,288
Non-Current Liabilities 7,565 7,693 7,979
Shareholders Equity 5,812 5,968 5,793
Minority Interests 1,892 1,986 1,628
Sales 3,515 4,124 4,006
Gross Profit 833 1,397 1,299
Net Income Before Zakat 319 693 676
Net Income 288 606 620
Cash Dividends 220 238 238

7.3.3 Tasnee Petrochemical Company

Tasnee was established in 1985 in Saudi Arabia to operate in the industrial and
petrochemical sector and has a fully paid share capital of SAR 6.69 Billion and is listed on
Tadawul (symbol: 2060). As of 31 December 2015, the market capitalisation of Tasnee stood
at SAR 6.19 Billion.*

3Based on a closing price of SAR 14.01 and 326,456,172 shares outstanding.
4 Based on a closing price of SAR 10.61and 583,118,929 shares outstanding.



Ikarus owns 5.13% of Tasnee, the other principal shareholders are the Al-Shaer Co. for
trading industry and contracting, the Gulf Investment Company (Saudi Arabia) and the
Kingdom Holding Co. Ikarus is entitled to appoint one representative to Tasnee’s board of
directors.

In the petrochemical sector, Tasnee operates a 720,000 tonnes per year polypropylene plant
in Jubail, Saudi Arabia. Production began in June 2004. It also operates a polyethylene plant
which started production in 2008 and has an annual capacity of 1 Million tonnes per annum.

Tasnee owns 66% of Crystal Global, which is a manufacturer of titanium dioxide and is one of
only 5 plants in the world that is capable of manufacturing titanium.

Financial summary:

Current Assets 8,203 10,110 10,020
Inventory 4,816 5,781 5,802
Investments 1,926 1,754 1,615
Fixed Assets 22,749 23,993 17,437
Other Assets 7,281 6,254 12,397
Current Liabilities 9,974 7,576 8,181
Non-Current Liabilities 21,253 21,337 19,506

Other Liabilities - - -

Shareholders Equity 7,968 11,626 12,006
Minority Interests 5,780 7,353 7,577
Sales 15,146 18,693 18,199
Sales Cost (12,933) (14,080) (13,362)
Gross Profit 2,213 4,612 4,837
Net Income Before Zakat (1,302) 2,086 2,355

Net Income / (Net Loss) (1,423) 1,071 1,177

Cash Dividends 1,338



7.3.4 International Acetyl Company Limited

International Acetyl Company Limited (“IAC”) was established in 2006 in Saudi Arabia and
is headquartered in Jubail Industrial City, Saudi Arabia. IAC’s main activity is the production
of acetic acid and acetic anhydride. IAC currently has a production capacity of 460 thousand
metric tonnes per annum.

Sipchem owns 76% and lkarus owns 11% of IAC.

7.3.5 International Vinyl Acetate Company Limited

International Vinyl Acetate Company Limited (“IVAC”) was established in 2006 in Saudi
Arabia and is headquartered in Jubail Industrial City, Saudi Arabia. IVAC’s main activity is
the production of vinyl acetate monomer. IVAC currently has a production capacity of 330
thousand metric tonnes per annum.

Sipchem owns 76% and lkarus owns 11% of IVAC.

7.3.6 Kuwait Energy Co.

The Kuwait Energy Plc Co. (“Kuwait Energy”) was established in August 2005 as an
independent oil and gas exploration and production company. In 2010, Ikarus made its first
investment in the oil and gas sector, with a US Dollar 10,000,000 (Ten Million US Dollars)
purchase of shares in Kuwait Energy. Kuwait Energy has a diverse portfolio of reputable oil
and gas assets and is primarily focused on the exploration, production and development of
oil and gas reserves in the MENA region. Kuwait Energy has a number of producing assets

in Egypt, Yemen, and Oman with a total current production of 27 thousand barrels of oil
equivalent per day. Recently, Kuwait Energy also announced a number of successful oil
discoveries in Egypt. They also have a number of exploration and development blocks in Iraqg.

Kuwait Energy Plcc has an issued and paid share capital of approximately pounds 357 Million
and lkarus owns 1.3% of Kuwait Energy.

7.4 Financial Services

7.4.1 Noor Financial Investment Company

Noor Financial Investment Company (“Noor”) was established in Kuwait in 1996 and its
shares were listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange in May 2006. Noor is engaged in investment
activities and financial services primarily in Kuwait, the Middle East, Asia and other emerging
markets. Noor offers a full spectrum of innovative and unrivalled investment and financial
services which include both advisory and asset management.

Noor’s strength rests on its diversified portfolio of Direct Capital Market Investments, Real
Estate and Alternative Investments. Noor manages a proprietary listed equity portfolio
comprising of local, GCC and international equities. The Marketable Securities Unit continues
to successfully deploy funds in GCC and International equity markets achieving strong
returns.

To achieve consistent income and stable capital gain, Noor’s Real Estate Unit has made
acquisitions in both commercial and residential properties during 2014 and is also
undertaking development of new complexes in Kuwait. It owns a commercial building
located in the heart of Kuwait city, in addition to several residential buildings across Kuwait.
Noor’s Alternative Investments unit continues to grow with participation in transactions with
an aggregate equity value of over US Dollar 1.7 Billion since 2005 including 27% investments
for its own account. The unit pursues a strategic investment opportunity that aims to achieve



synergies among existing investments as well as to open new opportunities for the Issuer. As
part of its strategy to grow in IT services, it has acquired new companies in that sector during
2014, in addition to substantial growth achieved in its existing IT businesses. Furthermore,
continuing its focus towards an asset light model, Noor has expanded its footprint in the
hospitality sector in Jordan through acquiring management services for an airport lounge,
along with securing a hotel management concession at Queen Alia International Airport. Real
Estate and Alternate Investments diversify Noor’s portfolio from the market volatility.

Noor has achieved 45% growth in net profit for 2015 and has repaid another

KWD 13,600,000 (Thirteen Million and Six Hundred Thousand Kuwaiti Dinar) to the
lenders during the year, which reflects its strong commitment to all its stakeholders. Noor
aims at achieving calculated and smart growth through excellence and high standards

of achievements backed by its core values. Supported by a strong talented team of
professionals, Noor is well poised for future success and growth.

Noor owns 49.11% of Meezan Bank Pakistan. Meezan Bank, Pakistan’s first and largest
Islamic bank, is one of the fastest growing financial institutions in the banking sector of the
country. Founded with the vision of establishing ‘Islamic banking as banking of first choice’,
the Bank commenced operations in 2002, after being issued the first ever Islamic commercial
banking license by the State Bank of Pakistan. The bank is listed on the Karachi Stock
Exchange and had a market capitalisation of Pakistani Rupee (“PKR”) 45.9 Billion PKR

(KWD 132.9 Million) as of 31 December 2015.

Meezan Bank has completed 12 years as a full-fledged Islamic commercial bank. During this
period the bank has the distinction of being the fastest growing bank in the industry and
the dominant leader of the Islamic Banking industry. With a network of 551 branches in 143
cities and a total deposit of PKR 472 Billion (KWD 1.4 Billion), Meezan now represents over
50% of the total deposits of the dedicated Islamic banks operating in Pakistan.

A significant achievement during the year 2014 was the successful acquisition of the Pakistan
operations of HSBC Bank, one of the leading retail banks in the world. All assets and liabilities
were amalgamated into Meezan Bank and these have now been converted into Shariah
compliant products. Ten branches were added to Meezan’s network and 324 employees of
HSBC became part of the Meezan family as a result of this acquisition.

Meezan Bank recorded commendable all round results for the year ended December 31,
2015. The Bank’s profit after tax increased to PKR 5 Billion (KWD 14.5 Million) from PKR 4.57
Billion (KWD 13.4 Million) earned in the previous year, reflecting an increase of PKR 452
Million (KWD 1.3 Million) while the Bank’s total assets reached PKR 531 Billion (KWD 1.5
Billion), up 21.5% from PKR 437 Billion (KWD 1.3 Billion) in 2014. Deposits increased by 24%,
closing the year at PKR 472 Billion (KWD 1.4 Billion) from PKR 380 Billion (KWD 1.1 Billion)

a year ago; almost three times higher than the banking industry average deposit growth rate
of 13% during 2015.

The Bank’s equity increased to PKR 25.6 Billion (KWD 74 Million) in the year 2015 from PKR
23.3 Billion (KWD 68 Million) a year earlier, notwithstanding the fact that a healthy cash
dividend of PKR 3 Billion (KWD 8.7 Million) was paid during the year Bank’s return on equity
ratio is 20.57%. The capital base of the Bank is also strong with a Capital Adequacy Ratio of
10.98% compared to the minimum 10.25% prescribed by State Bank of Pakistan.



7.4.2 Eagle Proprietary Investments Limited

Eagle comprises two entities engaged in investments and financial advisory based out of the
Dubai International Financial Center (“DIFC”) in Dubai, United Arab Emirates and are wholly
owned by NIG Holding. Eagle operates under two entities:

7.4.2.1 Eagle Proprietary Investments Limited (“EPIL”)

EPIL was established in January 2008 as a DIFC registered company and engages in direct
international private equity investments with a concentration in the financial services sector.
Today, its current investment portfolio includes companies based in Asia (China and Sri
Lanka) and North America (USA), with an Available for Sale portfolio in excess of US Dollar
38.5 Million. It plans to commence monetising its investments in 2015.

As of 31 December 2015, the paid up share capital of EPIL was US Dollar 75,000,000 (Seventy
Five Million US Dollars).

7.4.2.2 Eagle Investments Limited (“EIL”)
EIL was established in June 2012 as a DIFC registered company and is authorised under a
CAT4 license by the Dubai Financial Services Authority (“DFSA”) to operate as a regulated
financial advisory firm that advises clients on:
e strategic and corporate finance activities: mergers and acquisitions, divestitures,
financial restructuring, refinancing, advice on capital structure and strategies; and
e structuring advice and private placement activities in both debt and equity. As of 31
December 2015, the paid up share capital of EIL was US Dollar 4.5 Million.

As part of its growth strategy, Eagle plans to continue expanding its current business lines
as well as to establish and grow an asset/funds management platform that focuses on key
investment strategies that offer recurrent income and capital growth to its own investments
and that of its clients. In 2015, Eagle plans to establish and launch a U.S focused income
generating real estate investment platform that targets mid-market real estate assets in
partnership with select US based operators.

7.5 Utilities

7.5.1 National Combined Industries Holding Company for Energy

National Combined Industries Holding Company for Energy (“NI Energy”) was established

in 2006 and is 100% owned by NIG Holding. NI Energy’s objective is to focus on the power,
utility, infrastructure and renewable energy sectors primarily via direct investment within the
GCC. NI Energy also has a secondary focus on the MENA region and other emerging markets.
NI Energy’s main activities are to participate and invest directly into build-operate-transfer
(“BOT”) projects within a Public—Private Partnership (“PPP”) framework.

NI Energy has concluded agreements with Chinese engineering, procurement and
construction (“EPC”) contractors and trading companies with a view to positioning itself to
participate in a number of BOT schemes in Kuwait and in selective EPC tenders.

The company is targeting to enter in new project in the upcoming years and particularly
in the BOT/PPP projects offered by the state of Kuwait including Umm Al-Hayman WWTP,
Khairan 2500 MW/125 MIGD IWPP, Al-Zour 1500MW/107 MIGD IWPP-Phase 2 and many
other projects, in cooperation with sister and parent companies.



As of 31 December 2015, the net assets of NI Energy were KWD 64.8 Million. Key NI Energy
investments are as follows:

7.5.2 Airport International Group

In 2007, the Airport International Group (“AlG”) officially took over the terminal operations
of Queen Alia International Airport in Amman, Jordan. This contract was awarded for a 25-

year concession period that is due to end on 15 November 2032. The project won the Euro
Money Project Finance Transport Deal of the Year award for the Middle East in 2007.

In 2013, Queen Alia International Airport was completed and the new terminal was
inaugurated which has increased the annual passenger capacity to 9 Million passengers and
it is expected to complete the second phase of expansion in 2016 and increase the annual
passenger capacity to 12 Million passenger.

As at 31 December 2015, the company’s investment in AIG amounted to KWD 22,000,000
(Twenty Two Million Kuwaiti Dinar).

NI Energy owns 24% of AlG. Other shareholders in AlG are EDGO Ventures (a Jordanian
investment group), InvestAD (an Abu Dhabi government-owned investment company),
Aéroports de Paris Management, Joannou & Paraskevaides (Overseas) Ltd and J&P- AVAX S.A.

7.5.3 Denham Investment Limited (Denham)

Denham, a Cayman registered company, primarily owns 18% stake of KES Power Limited
(“KESP”), whereas KESP primary investment is 66.4% stake of K-Electric Limited (“KE”)
(formerly Karachi Electric Supply Company Limited).

KE is an integrated electric utility company based in Pakistan that has a monopoly over the
generation, transmission and distribution of electricity to the metropolitan city of Karachi
and its surrounding areas. KE is listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange. It has a customer base
of around 2.4 Million and has a total installed generation capacity of 2,341 Mega Watts.
The total area that KE is licensed to distribute electricity is approximately 6,500 square
kilometres.

KE is ‘turning the corner’ and recorded a net profit of US Dollar 26 Million in 2012 after 17
years of losses and since then for the year ended 30 June 2015 its net profit has increased to
US Dollar 283 Million.

As of 31 December 2015, the ownership of KE was as follows: KESP (66.4%); Government of
Pakistan (24.4%); International Finance Corporation and Asian Development Bank (2.57%),
with the remaining 1.9% being free float shares.

As of 31 December 2015, NI Energy owned 70% of Denham and the remaining 30% was held
by other related companies.



7.6 Real Estate

7.6.1 Al Durra National Co.

In December 2005, NIG Holding established Al Durra National Real Estate Co. (“Al Durra”)
(formerly known as National Company for Storage and Refrigeration K.S.C.C.) as a 100%
owned subsidiary. Al Durra’s principal objective is to invest in real estate related assets in
Kuwait, but also, to a lesser extent, within the GCC, United States, Europe and Asia.

As at 31 December 2015, Al Durra’s paid-up share capital was KWD 100 Million, with company
assets totalling KWD 201.8 Million). To date, Al Durra’s most significant investments are:

Marsa Abu Dhabi Real Estate 20.00% 1.5%
Mabanee Company K.S.C.. 17.50% 76.2%
Kuwaiti Real Estate Holding Co. 15.00% 0.3%
Al-Ruwade Real Estate Co. 15.00% 0.7%
Hadaek Al-Nasser Holding Co. 10.00% 0.6%
Mena Capital Holding Co. 10.00% 0.8%
Ikarus Petroleum Industries Co 4.00% 1.5%
Investments in properties - 9.84%
Real Estate Funds - 4.4%
Marina Al-Sharja - 0.9%
Other Investments - 3.3%

As per the recommendation from the Investment Committee to invest directly in the local
market real estate, in the year 2011, Al Durra acquired its first residential building with a
value of KWD 880,000 as of 31 December 2015, the total investment properties stood at
KWD 27.6 Million.

Al Durra’s major Investments:
7.6.1.1 Mabanee Company (K.S.C.)

Mabanee Company (“Mabanee”) is the largest listed real estate company on the KSE
(symbol “MABANEE”), and is ranked 12 out of total 193 listed companies in terms of market
capitalisation. As of 31 December 2015, its market capitalisation stood at KWD 794 Million.®

>Based on a closing price of KWD 0.940 and 844,864,285 shares outstanding.



Mabanee built, owns and operates ‘The Avenues Mall’, the largest mall in Kuwait with the
highest footfall: the number of mall visitors reached around 48 Million in 2014, doubling
from its 2011 level. The Avenues consists of 4 phases of development and won the Best
International Retail Development prize at the International Property Awards 2011. The first
three phases were completed and Phase 4 is expected to be inaugurated in Q1-2018. This
new phase will include a 5star hotel and an extension of the Grand Avenue and Prestige.
Phase 4 will be built over an area of 130,000 s.q.m., with a total leasable area of 100,000
s.g.m., at a total cost of KWD 265 Million. This will bring the total leasable area in the mall
to around 360,000 s.g.m. Several of the world’s largest retailers have expressed interest in
reserving leasable space in the new phase, given the success of The Avenues year after year.
Market research and tourism reports have started placing it on the regional tourism map.

Mabanee’s major shareholders are Alshaya United Commercial Company (34.17%)
and Al Durra (17.5%).

Non-current assets 579.1 486.5 376.5
Current assets 38.1 323 29.8
Total Assets 617.2 518.8 406.3
Current Liabilities 44.2 59.0 56.3
Non-Current Liabilities 269.6 196.7 120.0
Shareholders Equity 303.4 263.2 230.0
Total revenues 86.6 85.4 86.2
Profit from operations 56 56.2 57.8
Profit for the period 48.4 48.2 47.9

7.6.1.2 Other investments

AFS - Foreign Funds:
Al Durra has 25 active real estate foreign funds by the value of KWD 8.2 Million including the
US, UK, China & European countries etc.

AFS - Equity Investments:
AFS equity investments for the real estate sector are located in Kuwait & MENA by the value
of KWD 12.1 Million.



Investment Properties:
Investment Properties represent income generating buildings and lands under construction
with a total value of KWD 27.6 Million and include:

* Income generating buildings such as residential buildings, commercial complexes,
hotels, etc.

e Land under construction in Kuwait, UAE, KSA. The same projects are for residential
buildings, commercial complexes and administrative towers etc.

e Projects under final stage:

e Beneid Al Gar buildings with 987.5 s.q.m under the final stage for leasing. The project
will be an apartment hotel with 36 Flats, 2 shop and 2 basements.

e Mekkah Hotel, located in Makkah, Saudi Arabia (104 Rooms) in the final stage for
legalisation process to start in active operation.

® Projects Under Development:

e Hawally land with 1,528 s.q.m. Al Durra has received the License to build a 4-star
hotel. The designing stage for the hotel is completed and is under the process of
construction.

e Land in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia with 2,500 s.g.m.. Al Durra has received the license to
construct service apartments. The design stage for the land is finalised.

® Projects in the Initial Stage:

e Al Qiblah Land located in the heart of Kuwait city of 1,222 s.q.m., planning to
construct an administrative tower.

e Al Mehboula land with 4,700 s.q.m, planning to build multi-purpose complex
(residential, commercial etc.).

e During the year 2015 Al Durra acquired land in Dubai (UAE) 2,250 s.q.m. with a plan
to build a residential tower.

7.6.2 Al Raya Global Real Estate Company

Al Raya is a leading real estate investment company investing in Kuwait and the GCC region.
Al Raya has the following subsidiaries, Bait Al Raya Real Estate Company (Saudi Arabia) with
100% ownership and Bait Al Raya Global Real Estate Development Company (Jordan) with
50% interest.

NIC owns 20% and Al Durra owns 3% of Al Raya. Al Raya’s shares are not listed on the KSE.
8 STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

8.1 Overview
Strategic Investments are usually investments made in one of the industries of the Core
Operating Businesses and in which NIG Holding take an active involvement. Strategic
Investments are subdivided into four categories:

e available for sale investments;

® investments at fair value;

e associate investments (investments where NIG Holding has significant influence but not

control); and
e Murabaha and Wakala investments.

Set out below is a brief description of NIG Holding’s significant Strategic Investments as at
the date of this Prospectus. These investments are either made directly by NIG Holding or
held indirectly through one or more NIG Holding fully owned subsidiares or affiliates.



Listed /
0,
Company Name Category | % Owned Unlisted Industry

Kuwait Privatisation Holding Co. Strategic 29.8% Listed Services
Kuwait Cement Company Strategic 26.8% Listed Industrial
Airport International Group Strategic 24% Unlisted Services
Mabanee Company Strategic 17.5% Listed Real Estate
Contracting & Marine Services Strategic 17.8% Listed Oil and Gas
Kuwait Financial Centre Strategic 4.4% Listed Investment
Jordan Telecom Strategic 6.3% Listed Telecom
Foulath Holding B.S.C Strategic 10% Unlisted Industrial
ﬁ\c;t:t;\{:li:;rgirnational Strategic 9.3% Unlisted Investment
Al-Ahleia Insurance Strategic 5.8% Listed Insurance
Egypt Kuwait Holding Company Strategic 4.0% Listed Investment
National Bank of Kuwait Strategic 1.1% Listed Banking
Dana Gas Strategic 2.2% Listed Oil & Gas
Kuwait Finance House Strategic 1.5% Listed Banking

8.2 Available for Sale Investments

8.2.1 Foulath Holding BSC Closed

Established in June 2008 in the Kingdom of Bahrain, Foulath Holding B.S.C. (“Foulath”) is an
investment vehicle and holding company primarily focused on investing in the growth of the
steel industry in the Gulf Cooperation Council (“GCC”) countries and broader Middle East
and North Africa (“MENA”) region.

Foulath has made significant investments across the entire steel value chain, it operates on
the premise that its investments and activities will span from “Mine to Metal”. In doing so,
Foulath and its subsidiaries aim to become the world’s first fully integrated group of steel
companies as well as one of the most competitive producers of steel products ranging from
pellets to light, medium and heavy structural steel sections.

Foulath has already established and is developing world-class subsidiaries in each of these
areas in the Kingdom of Bahrain, where it operates a fully integrated 1.3 Million square
meter plant known as the Foulath Steel Complex, with a total investment of approximately
US Dollar 3.5 Billion. Foulath (together Yamato Kogyo Co., Ltd., Japan) also owns a light and
medium section rolling mill that located in Jubail, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.



Foulath’s business model originates from processing proprietary steelmaking raw materials,
such as DR Pellet feed, and goes all the way to production of high quality steel products
consumed mainly by large infrastructure players. Foulath targets to create value at each step
of the integrated value chain. The commitment to economically efficient vertical integration
allows guaranteeing supplies, cost control and quality of raw materials to ensure low cost
positions and competitiveness of saleable products.

The shareholders of Foulath are the Gulf Investment Corporation (50%), Qatar Steel
Company (25%), Gulf Cable & Electrical Industries Company (10%), NIG Holding (10%), and
the Kuwait Foundry Company (5%). Foulath share capital as of 31 December 2015 was US
Dollar 566 Million.

Foulath’s Subsidiaries include:

Bahrain Steel (“BS”): Established in 1984, BS, wholly owned by Foulath, is a leading producer
of iron-ore pellets used in the production of steel. It operates two pelletising plants in the
Kingdom of Bahrain with a total capacity of 11 Million tonnes per year. It is one of the three
major merchant pelletising producers in the world.

United Stainless Steel Company (“USCO”): Wholly owned by Foulath, USCO is the

Middle East’s first stainless steel re-roller. It is located in the Kingdom of Bahrain and

has a production capacity of 90,000 tonnes per year of cold rolled stainless steel. USCO
commenced operations in the fourth quarter of 2008 and was producing high quality
stainless steel products, which were sold to customers throughout the world. Due to the
challenges faced in the stainless steel business, which negatively impacted USCQO’s financial
performance, production facilities have been idled since December 2011.

SULB Company (“SULB”): A joint venture between Foulath (51% shareholding) and Japan’s
Yamato Kogyo Co. Ltd. (49% shareholding), SULB has completed constructing its facilities in
the Kingdom of Bahrain with a production capacity of 1 Million tonnes per year. SULB now is
the Middle East’s first fully integrated producer of medium and heavy beams and structural
steel sections. The facility comprises of a Direct Reduction Iron Plant with a nameplate
capacity of 1.5 mtpy, a 1.0 mtpy Melt Shop and medium and heavy Section Rolling Mill with
a capacity of 0.6 mtpy.

United Steel Company — SULB — Bahrain Venture Company (“SULB BV”): A limited liability
company incorporated in 2011 in the Kingdom of Bahrain, owned 51% by Foulath and

49% by Yamato Kogyo Co. Ltd., the principal activity of the company is to act as a holding
company. During 2011, SULB BV, established a wholly owned subsidiary, United Sulb
Company (Saudi “Sulb”) L.L.C., in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Saudi Sulb acquired all the
assets of United Gulf Steel Mill Company Limited (“UGS”), a standalone light and medium
structural steel section Rolling Mill, with a capacity of 0.45 mtpy, producing beams, channels,
angles and flat bars. Saudi Sulb’s requirement of billets will be substantially met by SULB.
SULB’s medium and heavy section rolling mill complements Saudi Sulb’s light and medium
section rolling mill, thus serving the customers with the full size range of section products.

By way of these subsidiaries, Foulath is the only producer in the world with a combination
of pellets, DRI, billets, blooms, medium,heavy beams,structural steel sections and stainless
steel all manufactured at the same large industrial site. The integrated nature of its
subsidiaries and its single- site manufacturing complex also ensures that Foulath is a steel
producer with a competitive cost structure.

Foulath has recorded a net profit of US Dollar 17.9 Million for the year ended 31 December 2015.



8.2.2 Kuwait Financial Centre

Kuwait Financial Centre (“Markaz”) is a leading asset management and investment banking
institution in the GCC. Rated BBB+ by Capital Intelligence Ltd. Markaz offers fully fledged
asset management, investment banking services and currently manages approximately
KWD 1.1 Billion in assets. Markaz has earned a credible name for itself amongst the top
performing fund managers in Kuwait.

NIG Holding owns 4.4% of Markaz.

8.2.3 Jordan Telecommunications Company

Jordan Telecommunications Company (“Jordan Telecom”) provides fixed, mobile and
internet services in Jordan. Jordan Telecom adopted the Orange brand in 2007 and currently
has presence in 337 locations.

Jordan Telecom is listed on the Amman Stock Exchange and its main primary investors are
NIG Holding (6.3%), Noor (3.6%), France Telecom (51%), and the Jordanian Social Security
Corporation (25%).

8.2.4 Boubyan International Industries Company

Boubyan International Industries Company (“BIIHC”) was established in July 2004 as a vehicle
to enable the private sector to invest in international industry. BIIHC owns 10% of Arabian
Waterproofing Industries Company, one of the largest waterproofing manufactures in the
Middle East.

NIG Holding owns 9.3% of BIIHC.

8.2.5 Al Ahleia Insurance Company

Al Ahleia Insurance Company (“Al Ahleia”) was established in 1962 and provides
conventional life and non-life insurance services including medical, property, marine and
aviation. Al Ahleia has 10 branches in Kuwait.

NIG Holding owns 5.8% of Al Ahleia and the company is listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange
with a market capitalisation of KWD 104 Million® as of 31 December, 2015.

8.2.6 Egypt Kuwait Holding Company

Egypt Kuwait Holding Company (“EKHC”) operates as a venture capital and buyout company
and has investments in several small to medium size companies. EKHC is listed on the Cairo
and Alexandria Stock Exchange in Egypt. EKHC’s key investments include:

e Fertiliser: Alexandria Fertilizers Co. and Bawabet Al Kuwait

e Energy: National Gas Co., Gas Chill and Shell Compressed Natural Gas Egypt

e Qil: Tri-Ocean Energy, Egyptian Qil Tankers

e Manufacturing: Building Material Industry Company, African Paints Company, Sprea Misr
and Plastichem

e Insurance: Delta Insurance Company

¢ Information Technology: Global Telecom, Psion Teklogix, Intergraph and Beltronic

NIG Holding currently holds 4.0% of EKHC.

8.2.7 National Bank of Kuwait

National Bank of Kuwait (“NBK”) is the largest financial institution in Kuwait by market
capitalisation and assets. NBK is rated Aa3, A+ by Moody’s and S&P, respectively, which
represent the highest assigned ratings of any financial institution in the MENA region.
NIG Holding owns 1.1% of NBK.

®Based on a closing price of KWD 0.530 and 196,234,677outstanding shares.



8.2.8 Dana Gas Company PJSC

Dana Gas Company PJSC (“Dana Gas”) was one of the first regional private sector natural
gas resource enterprises to be established in the GCC. It holds assets and contractual
entitlements to a private sector integrated natural gas supply chain in the Gulf. Dana Gas is
listed on the Abu Dhabi Stock Market.

NIG Holding owns 2.2% of Dana Gas.

8.2.9 Kuwait Finance House

Kuwait Finance House (“KFH”) is the largest Islamic bank in Kuwait by market capitalisation
and assets. KFH has operations in 20 countries and 175 branches worldwide. KFH offers
real estate services and treasury services through the real estate and investment divisions
respectively.

NIG Holding currently holds a 1.5% stake in KFH.
8.3 Associate Investments

8.3.1 Privatisation Holding Company

Privatisation Holding Company K.S.C. (“PHC”) was established in 1994, is a Kuwaiti
Shareholding Company listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange. PHC is an associate of National
Industries Group (“NI Group”).

PHC'’s investment portfolio is diversified and includes direct investments in more than 30
companies operating in primarily services and infrastructure sectors in Kuwait and abroad.
PHC’s portfolio also includes indirect investments in stocks/shares of quoted companies.

PHC focuses on maintaining its investments in companies active in the sectors of interest
(infrastructure, power, water, renewable energy, services, utilities, healthcare and
education), and in investment opportunities in Brownfield and operating projects in the
MENA/GCC region with an emphasis on The State of Kuwait.

PHC focuses parallel efforts to position itself to participate in the BOT/PPP development
projects in Kuwait and selectively in the MENA region, by concluding alliances/teaming
consortia with international specialised partners.

PHC is 29.8% owned by NIG Holding. PHC had a market capitalisation of KWD 34.8 Million as
of 31 December 2015.

8.17 Kuwait Cement Company (“KCC”)

KCC was founded in 1968 and is the largest cement company in Kuwait. KCC’s production
plant was commissioned in 1972 and has a grinding capacity of approximately 2 Million
tonnes per annum. In 2006, KCC completed a reverse integration project to create a
production capacity equivalent to 1.8 Million tonnes per annum at a cost of US Dollar
142,000,000.

In the year of 2014, the second kiln began to produce clinker, which is the main material in
the cement industry. Following the final delivery of this project from the equipment supplier
M/S F. L. Smidth, a Danish Company, with the production of the first kiln, KCC will be able

to provide all its clinker requirements which amounts to over 15 thousand tonnes of clinker
per day (i.e. 5 Million tonnes per year), thus, allowing KCC to produce 16 thousand tonnes
per day of various types of cement which enables it to meet the needs of the strategic
projects of the development plan of the Government of Kuwait and the private projects



in the long term, provide better services, maintain the high level of quality of its products
and keep abreast of global technological development in the cement industry in line with
environmental conditions and requirements set out by the Environment Public Authority.

During the year 2014, KCC has achieved a turnover amounting to KWD 83.5 Million) as
compared to KWD 69,000,000 (Sixty Nine Million Kuwaiti Dinar) for the year 2013, with an
increase of 21%. Company’s operating profit has increased 23% for the year 2014 to amount
of KWD 18,700,000 (Eighteen Million Seven Hundred Thousand Kuwaiti Dinar) as compared
to KWD 15,200,000 (Fifteen Million Two Hundred Thousand Kuwaiti Dinar) for the same
period in 2013.

KCC had a market capitalisation of KWD 282 Million’ as of 31 December 2015.
NIG Holding owns 26.8% of KCC, with the Kuwait Investment Authority owning 29%.

8.18 Contracting and Marine Services Company

The Contracting & Marine Services Co. (K.S.C.) (“CMSC”) provides marine and oil contracting
services in Kuwait and the GCC and was founded in 1973. CMSC owns the International
Marine Construction Company and has strategic investments in Kuwait Drilling Company
and Kuwait Rocks Company. CMSC is 17.8% owned by NIG Holding. CMSC had a market
capitalisation of KWD 24.2 Million® as of 31 December 2015.

9 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Financial investments are shares, funds or debt and other financial market products in which
NIG Holding has limited or no involvement. The financial investments portfolio is principally
used as a cash management tool that enables NIG Holding to take advantage of opportunistic
short-term investments.

NIG Holding’s financial investments comprise primarily of managed funds, international
managed portfolios,funds, and GCC funds.

The following table sets out some key financial investments for NIG Holding as of 31
December 2015 and for the years 2014, 2013 and 2012:

Managed Funds (Available for Sale) 116

International managed portfolios

and funds (Fair Value) 22 L = =
Local Funds (Fair Value) 8 8 11 14

Source: NIG Holding

7 Based on a closing price of KWD 0.395 and 713,103,141 outstanding shares.
8 Based on a closing price of KWD 0.106 and 228,662,052 outstanding shares.



Available for Sale: this includes managed funds, amounting to over 100 investments that
are well diversified and comprise of private equity, hedge funds, real estate and bonds. Fund
Managers include NBK Capital, Blackstone, Providence Equity, Coller International, Silver
Lake and others.

The international managed portfolios and funds comprise discretionary and non-
discretionary portfolios managed by major international institutions such as Bank of America,
Merrill Lynch, Credit Suisse and J.P. Morgan as Portfolio Managers.

The Local funds component of NIG Holding’s financial investments primarily contains a
portfolio of mutual funds vested.

The main objectives of the Parent Company as per the Articles of Association are
as follows:

e Owning stocks and shares in Kuwaiti or non-Kuwaiti shareholding companies and
shares in Kuwaiti or non-Kuwaiti limited liability companies and participating in the
establishment of, lending to and managing of these companies and acting as
a guarantor for these companies.

¢ Lending money to companies in which it owns 20% or more of the capital of the
borrowing company, along with acting as a guarantor on behalf of these companies.

e Owning industrial equities such as patents, industrial trademarks, royalties, or any other
related rights, and franchising them to other companies or using them within or
outside the State of Kuwait.

e Owning real estate and moveable property to conduct its operations within the limits as
stipulated by law.

e Employing excess funds available with the group by investing them in investment and
real estate portfolios managed by specialised companies.



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Summary of Balance Sheet

Assets KWD ‘000 KWD ‘000 KWD ‘000
Nl T v Unaudited Audited Audited
31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Goodwill and intangible assets 12,823 17,530 9,221
Property, plant and equipment 70,668 70,647 70,712
Investment in associates 337,187 330,968 294,406
Investment properties 69,482 61,425 49,943
Available for sale investments 493,909 616,919 673,285
Account receivable 1,550 2,102 2,086

Inventories 34,054 32,023 31,908
Available for sale investments 47,328 63,352 75,958
Accounts receivable and other assets 87,264 70,609 66,174
Murabaha and wakala investments 1,000 598 4,500

Investments at fair value through

. 84,033 59,706 65,199
profit or loss
Short-term deposits 16,661 6,715 2,061
Bank balances and cash 43,383 53,354 32,253

R = N R
e [ [

Long-term borrowings 437,845 370,254 529,632

Other 15,860 16,287 12,819

Total non-current liabilities 453,705 386,541 542,451

Accounts payable and other liabilities 49,621 55,178 48,398
Short-term borrowings 263,190 335,453 200,375
Due to banks 19,915 21,674 23,074

Total current liabilities 332,726 412,305 271,847

Total equity and liabilities 1,299,342 1,385,948 1,377,706



Summary of Income Statement

KWD ‘000 KWD ‘000 KWD ‘000

Unaudited Audited Audited
31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Sales 139,877 126,563 116,857
Cost of sales (107,269) (96,918) (89,965)
Gross Profit 32,608 29,645 26,892
Income from investments 37,547 56,016 48,659
:Ssa(:cei::e;esults and gains from 27330 42,860 19,287
Sra;rr:s;ft?gsrentals from investment 3351 6,431 5267

Interest and other income 5,690 1,359 4,559

S:::r::zsadministrative and other (23,592) (23,857) (21,524)
Other expenses (10,858) (10,403) (6,289)
Finance costs (28,740) (30,520) (34,841)
Impairments (12,801) (31,817) (25,722)

Profit/(Loss) for the period before
taxation, other statutory contributions 30,535 39,714 16,288
and directors’ remunerations

Taxation and other statutory

contributions WL, PAsEl e
Directors’ remuneration (430) (430) (90)

Profit/(Loss) for the period 28,910 36,831 14,823
Profit from extraordinary operations 0 1,824
Owners of the parent 25,427 28,282 10,176

Minority non-controlling interests 3,483 8,549 6,471



PREVIOUS BONDS ISSUED BY THE ISSUER

Issue Rate . Rating Lead Type of
m

KWD
35 Million

KWD
35 Million

usD
60 Million

usD
475 Million

1998 3 Years
2001 5 Years
2004 5 Years
2007 5 Years

Kuwait
Financial
Centre
7.875% - = Bonds
Gulf
Investment
Corporation
National Bank
Capital of Kuwait None
6.25% BBB+ Intelligence Secured
Ltd Kuwait Financial Bond
Centre ehiet)
City Bank
0.9% + Capital il None
i - Intelli .
“l;:g:::s A n eL'tience International Secured
Gulf Bank Bonds
Bahrain
Capital
1.05% + Intelligence BNP
Libor 3 A Ltd Mudaraba
Months BBB Sukuk
Moody’s WEST L.B

PREVIOUS SHARES ISSUED BY THE ISSUER

Capital Post ——
(1]
Increase Increase Form

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2014

70,618,210

74,674,121

107,032,907

117,736,197

129,509,816

135,985,307

15% from the Capital

5% from the Capital

10% from the Capital

10% from the Capital

10% from the Capital

5% from the Capital

Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record

Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record

Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record.

Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record

Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record

Bonus stock distributed to the
Shareholders in record



LIST OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS OWNING %5
OR MORE IN THE CAPITAL OF THE ISSUER

Al Khair National for Stocks and Real Estate subsidiaries

o,
and its related parties SCege
Kuwait Cement Company and its subsidiaries 9.828 %
Public Institution for Social Security 9.950 %

LAST FIVE YEARS DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTION
BY THE ISSUER

Kind of Year Year Year Year 2013 Year Year
Distribution 2010 2011 2012 2014 2015

5% amounting
to 64,754,908

ATE None None None shares which None None
Shares
equals to
KWD 6,475,491
0,
el | beolEUEL
. to 10 Fils per
to 12 Fils per .
. Share) with
Cash Share) with a
. . None None None None a total
Dividends total amount E—
of KWD of KWD
15,900,684 13,598,531
_In-.Kmq None None None None None None
Distribution

TOTAL FINANCIAL AND IN-KIND PAYMENTS TO THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ISSUER AND TOP
MANAGEMENT

The total value of the financial year paid to the Board of Directors for the financial year 2015
was KWD 430,000. It is expected that the remuneration for the financial year 2016 will be
around the same amount paid for the financial year 2015.



OVERVIEW OF THE LEAD MANAGER
& SUBSCRIPTION AGENT

Ahli Capital Investment Company K.S.C.C.

Ahli Capital Investment Company K.S.C.C. is a thriving subsidiary of Al Ahli Bank of Kuwait
K.S.C.P. that was established in June of 2006, to be the main investment arm of the bank.
During 2007, the groundwork was laid for expansion in several strategic areas, such

as tapping investments in the Kuwaiti stock market as well as GCC countries, portfolio
management, advisory and IPO activities.

Ahli Capital was established in 2007 and has been able to secure a customer base comprised
of Kuwaiti corporations and mid-high net worth individual accounts. Since then, Ahli Capital
has been successful at providing good alpha for its client base.

Ahli Capital is the local and GCC manager for the iconic ABK funds which have continuously
provided excellent returns. Ahli Capital aims to create and launch more successful funds

and products as well as enhance other services provided during its current expansion. Ahli
Capital has been offering advisory services to corporate customers as well as to customers of
the bank’s branches.

OVERVIEW OF THE PAYING AGENT

AL AHLI BANK OF KUWAIT K.S.C.P.

ABK was established in 1967 and since incorporation brought together diverse banking
services to individual and corporate clients. ABK currently has 30 local branches and two
overseas branch in Dubai and Abu-Dhabi, UAE. ABK plans to develop and increase its
network of branches within and outside the GCC in addition to developing all its electronic
services to international competitive edge standards.

TAXATION

The following is a general description of certain Kuwaiti tax considerations relating to

the Bonds and is based upon the Issuer’s understanding of the historical and current
interpretations and practices of the Kuwait Directorate of Income Tax regarding the tax laws
of Kuwait. It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all tax considerations relating

to the Bonds. Prospective purchasers of Bonds should consult their tax advisers as to the
consequences under the tax laws of the country in which they are resident for tax purposes
and the tax laws of Kuwait when acquiring, holding, disposing of Bonds, receiving payments
of interest, principal and/or other amounts under the Bonds. This summary is based upon
the law as in effect on the date of this Prospectus and is subject to any change in law (and
in the interpretations and practices of the Kuwait Directorate of Income Tax regarding the
same) that may take effect after such date.



Payments Under the Bonds

The Issuer commits that all principal amounts and interests related to Bonds shall be paid in
accordance with the current practice without any deduction or retention for the account of
taxes, local charges or government fees of any nature whatsoever which may be imposed in
the State of Kuwait or on its behalf or which may be imposed by any official authority in the
State of Kuwait, or by any other official authority in the state of Kuwait who has the authority
to impose such taxes if the Bondholder is a natural person or a Kuwaiti company.

Income Tax

Income tax at the rate of 15% is levied on the net income and capital gains of any corporate
entity that conducts business in the State of Kuwait. In practice, the Department of Income
Tax does not collect tax from Kuwaiti companies whose capital is wholly owned by Kuwaiti
or GCC nationals. Income tax is levied on any foreign corporate entity which is a shareholder
in a Kuwaiti company. Under current practice, a foreign “corporate entity” would not be
considered as conducting business in Kuwait by reason only of the holding of the Bonds,
receiving any payments of principal and interest under the Bonds, or receiving any capital
gain on the disposal thereof. However, the Executive Bylaws of Law No. 2 of 2008 on the
amendment of certain provisions of Kuwait Income Tax Decree No. 3 of 1955 (the “Bylaws”)
state that an income tax will be levied on the income of every institution conducting business
in Kuwait and in particular the income achieved “from any contract which is fully or partly
executed in the State of Kuwait” and “from lending funds inside Kuwait”. However, as noted
above, in practice income tax levied on the net income and capital gains of any foreign
“corporate entity” that conducts business in Kuwait.

Individuals at present are not subject to any Kuwaiti income tax on their income or capital
gains.

For the purposes of this section, the term “corporate entity” includes a joint liability
company, limited partnership company and joint venture. The term “foreign corporate
entity” would not include a Corporate Entity established in one of the countries comprising
the GCC whose owners comprise only nationals of the GCC states. The GCC states being
Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, and the United Arab Emirates.

Stamp Duty

No stamp, registration, similar duties or taxes will be payable in the State of Kuwait by
Bondholders in connection with the issue of the Bonds.

Tax Exemption under the Capital Market Law

Article 150 bis of the Capital Market Law provides that “without prejudice to any tax
exemptions on the profit arising from disposal of securities issued by companies listed on the
Stock Exchange, proceeds of securities, bonds and Sukuk and all other similar securities are
exempted from tax regardless of the issuer thereof”.



GENERAL INFORMATION

Change in Financial Position

Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, there has been no material adverse change in the
financial position of the Issuer since 31/12/2015, the date of its last audited financial
statements.

Auditors

The Issuer’s financials have been audited by Grant Thorton - Al Qatami, Al Aiban & Partners
and Parker Randall (Allied Accountants).

Corporate Authorisations

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Capital Markets Law No. 7 of 2010 and its Executive
Regulations No. (72) of 2015 (as amended).

The issue of the Bonds was authorised by resolutions of the General Shareholders Assembly
of National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C. passed on 20/05/2015 and the Board of
Directors of the Issuer passed on 08/02/2016.

Approval of the Capital Market Authority in State of Kuwait

Approval has been granted for the Issuer to issue the Bonds by the Capital Markets Authority
on 13/04/2016 pursuant to the Capital Markets Law No. 7 of 2010 and its Executive
Regulations No (72) of 2015 (as amended).

Capital Markets Authority in the State of Kuwait

The Capital Market Authority is the regulatory body regulating all types of securities
instruments (including Bonds) according to Law No. 7 of 2010 and its Executive Regulations
No (72) of 2015 (as amended) and have the authority to license and approve issuance and
offering the Bonds.

Supervision

The Issuer is incorporated in the State of Kuwait. The Issuer is subject to the supervision
of the Capital Markets Authority and the Ministry of Commercial Industry in the State of
Kuwait.

Martial Contracts

The Issuer has not created a prime contract out of the remit of its usual course/scope

of business activity. The Issuer has an obligation/financial due that may affect the Issuer’s
capability to fulfil its obligations towards the Bondholders in relation to the Bonds

to be issued.

Clearance

The Bonds have been accepted for clearance through Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C. with
the following International Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”): KWODI0O500564



Rating

As noted elsewhere in this Prospectus, the Bonds have been rated “BBB” by Capital
Intelligence Ltd. Capital Intelligence Ltd approved the rating and this approval has been
submitted to the CMA. Furthermore, Capital Intelligence Ltd has not withdrawn their
approval before submitting the Prospectus for registration with the CMA. A security rating
is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision,
suspension or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organisation.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE ISSUER

There is not pending, outstanding or threaten court or arbitration proceedings against the
Issuer or any of its affiliates which may lead to material adverse impact on the financial
position of the Issuer.



UNDERTAKING BY THE ISSUER
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UNDERTAKING BY THE LEAD MANAGER &
SUBSCRIPTION AGENT
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Addresses

Issuer
National Industries Group Holding
Kuwait Public Shareholding Company
Kuwait, Safat 13005, P.O. Box 417

.6 i dcgora

agibngll alelimll
(alall)

NI Group
National Industries Group
(Holding )
Payment Agent Lead Manager and Subscription Agent
Al Ahli Bank of Kuwait K.S.C.P. Ahli Capital Investment Co. K.S.C.C.
Kuwait, Safat 13104, P.O. Box 1387 Kuwait, Safat 13104, P.O. Box 1387

A ~ 2
dBK \.l R CAITAL

Kuwait Clearing Company
Kuwait, Safat 13081, P.O. Box 22077

ol

s 3 0 :.—lu...u a.u.nuhﬂ Lﬁ-...u.“

KLMNEAIT CLEARIMNG COMPAMY ks«
Legal Counsel to Issuer Legal Counsel to Lead Manager
Al-Hossam Legal - Al-Turqi & Partners, & Subscription Agent
Legal Consultants & Attorneys Al Ruwayeh & Partners (“ASAR”).
Kuwait, Safat 13059, P.O. Box 5819 Kuwait, Safat 13005, P.O. Box 447
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Annex (1)
Issuer Articles of Association
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Report on review of interim condensed consolidated financial information

To the board of directors of
National Industries Group Holding — KPSC
Kuwait

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial position of National
Industries Group Holding - KPSC (the “Parent Company”) and its Subsidiaries (together the “Group”) as of
30 June 2016 and the related interim condensed consolidated statements of profit or loss; profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the six-month period then ended.
Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this interim condensed consolidated
financial information in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial
Reporting”. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim condensed consolidated financial
information based on our review.

Seope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review
of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.” A review of intenim
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identfied in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
interim condensed consolidated financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with International Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting™.

Report on review of other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our review, the intenm condensed consolidated financial information is in agreement with the
books of the Parent Company. We further report that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violation
of the Companies Law No. | of 2016, and the Executive Regulations of Law No. 25 of 2012, as amended, or
of the Parent Company’s. Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have
occurred during the six-month period ended 30 June 2016 that might have had a material effect on the
business or financial position of the Group.

“.‘5.\\ %5

Anwar Y. Al-Qatami, F.C.C.A. Abdulladf AFL Al-Majid

{(Licence No. 50-A) (Licence No. 70-A)

of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners of Parker Randall (Allied Accountants)
Kuwair

11 August 2016



National Industries Group Holding «~ KPSC and Subsidiaries
Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information

30 June 2016 (Unaudited)

Interim condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss

Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Sales 26,038 37.417 56,119 71,547
Cost of sales (21,717) (28,708) (46,520) (54.,652)
Gross profit 4,321 8,709 9,599 16,895
Income from investments 4 4,215 8,730 5,984 19,150
Share of results of associates 7 5,319 6,331 11,293 12,744
Realised gain on disposal of investment properties 50 - 50 -
Rental income 608 485 1,209 848
Interest and other income 420 595 850 965
Distribution costs (1,756) (1,799) (3,508) (3,468)
General, administrative and other expenses (5,253) (5.787) (10,260) (11,820)
(Loss)/gain on foreign currency exchange (16) (1,148) 403 (3.,651)
7,908 16,116 15,620 31,663
Finance costs (6,808) (7,598) (13,646) (14,757)
Impairment in value of available for sale investments 8 (4,313) (1,198) (4,724) (2,031)
Impairment in value of investment in associates 7 - (44) - (44)
Impairment in value of accounts receivables and
other assets (537) (6) (537) (6)
(Loss)/profit before foreign taxation (3,750) 7,270 (3,287) 14,825
Foreign taxation Sa (124) (322) (183) (471)
(Loss)/profit before KFAS, NLST and Zakat (3,874) 6,948 (3,470) 14,354
Reversal of/(provision for) KFAS, NLST and Zakat 5b 12 (298) (60) (469)
(Loss)/profit for the period (3,862) 6,650 (3,530) 13,885
Attributable to :
Owners of the parent company (4,744) 3,459 (4,358) 9,375
Non-controlling interests 882 3,191 828 4510
(3,862) 6,650 (3,530) 13,885
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the parent
company 8 (3.8) Fils 26 Fils (3.3) Fils 7.1 Fils

The notes set ont on pages 9 to 21 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated financial information.



National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries

Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information

30 June 2016 (Unaudited)

Interim condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income

.
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2016 2015 2016 2015

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000

(Loss)/profit for the period {3,862) 6,650 (3,530) 13,885
Other comprehensive income:
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on transiation of

foreign operations 2,093 (650) 1,419 786
Available for sale investments:
- Net changes in fair value arising during the period 3,245 (2,388) (30,697) (6.117)
- Transferred to interim condensed consolidated

statement of profit or loss on disposals (4,538) (1.395) (4,748) (3,415)
- Transferred to interim condensed consolidated

statement of profit or loss on impairment 4,313 1,198 4724 2,031
Share of other comprehensive income of associates
- Change in fair value (695) 147 (99) (4.712)
Total other comprehensive income to be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
period: 4,418 (3.088) (29,401) (11,427)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Defined benefit plan actuarial (losses)/gains (621) (38) (302) 175
Total other comprehensive income not being

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods: (621) (38) (302) 175

Total other comprehensive income for the period 3,797 (3,126) (29,703) (11,252)
Total comprehensive income for the period (65) 3,524 (33,233) 2633
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent company (5,237) 1,012 (32,643) (111)

Non-controlling interests 5172 2512 (590) 2,744

(65) 3,524 (33,233) 2,633

The notes set out on pages 9 to 21 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated financial information,



National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries a
Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information
30 June 2016 (Unaudited)

- Ll -
Interim condensed consolidated statement of financial
position

30 June 31 Dec. 30 June
2016 2015 2015
Note (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD 000 KD '000 KD '000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assels 12,380 12,823 17.507
Property, plant and equipment 71,822 70,668 71,103
Investment in associates 7 341,470 337,187 334,718
Investment properties 73,313 69,482 85,287
Available for sale investments 8 463,682 493,809 615,711
Accounts receivable 1123 1,550 2314
Total non-current assets 963,790 985,619 1,106,640
Current assets
Inventories 36,273 34,054 35.047
Avallable for sale investments 8 38,564 47,328 55,946
Accounts receivable and other assets 9 63,766 87,264 51,719
Murabaha and wakala investments 14 - 1.000 3,004
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 10 77,252 84,033 82,332
Short-term deposits 14 7.382 16,661 18,700
Bank balances and cash 14 29,609 43,383 28,568
Total current assets 252,846 313,723 276,316
Total assets 1,216,638 1,299,342 1,382,956
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company
Share capital 1 135,985 135,985 135.985
Treasury shares (30,375) (30,375) (30.375)
Share premium 11 122,962 122,962 122,962
Cumulative changes in farr value 66,800 96,378 150,832
Othet components of equity 12 30,422 28,827 27 459
Retained earnings 12,106 30.225 16,792
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 337,899 384,002 423655
Non-controiling interests 125,829 128,902 149,300
Total equity 463,728 512,911 572,955
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 13 415,233 437 845 366,707
Leasing creditors 2n 424 478
Provisions 15478 15,436 15.035
Total non-current liabllities 430,982 453,705 382,220
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 49,024 49 621 70,220
Short-term borrowings - 13 248,429 263,190 337,436
Due to banks 4 24,473 19,915 20,125
Total current liabllities 1 321,926 332,726 427,781
Total liabilities \ 752,908 786,433 810,001
Total equity and liabilities | 1216636 1209342 1,382,956
~
=== % A z B
t x
hn ’
Sa'ad Mohammed Al-Sa‘'ad ‘QA._, mad Mohammed Hassan

Chairman

The notes set out on pages 9 to 21 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated finanial information.

Chief Executive Officer
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National Industries Group Holding -KPSC and Subsidiaries 7
Interim Condensed Consolldated Financial Information
30 June 2016 (Unaudited)
Interim condensed consolidated statement of cash flows
Six months Six months
ended 30 ended 30
June 2016 June 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before foreign taxation (3,287) 14,825
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 3,570 3,327
Realised gain on disposal of investment properties (50) -
Share of results of associates (11,293) (12.744)
Impairment in value of investments in associate - 44
Dividend income from available for sale investments (5,496) (12,025)
Impairment in value of available for sale investments 4,724 2,031
Impairment in value of accounts receivable and other assets 537 6
Profit on sale of available for sale investments (1,374) (4,063)
Net provision charged/(released) 42 (774)
Finance costs 13,646 14,757
Interest/profit on bank balances, short-term deposits, wakala and
murabaha investments (275) (226)
744 5,158
Changes in operating assets and liabfiities:
Inventories (2,219) (3.024)
Accounts receivable and other assets 23,697 18,672
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 6,781 (22,626)
Accounts payable and other liabilities 992 11,978
Cash from operations 29,995 10,158
Taxation paid (159) (151)
KFAS, NLST and Zakat paid (28) (470)
Net cash from operating activities 29,808 9,537

The notes set out an pages 9 10 21 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated financial information.



National Industries Group Holding -XPSC and Subsidiaries
Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information
30 June 2018 (Unaudited)

Interim condensed consolidated statement of cash flows

(continued)
Six months Six months
ended 30 ended 30
June 2016 June 2015
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,744) (3,783)
Addition to investment properties (5,531) (3,862)
Addition to investment in associates (528) (3,197)
Dividend received from associates 7,220 8,321
Purchase of available for sale investments (6,524) (8,851)
Proceeds from sale of avallabie for sale investments 11,444 11.996
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 1,750 -
Decreasel(increase) in wakala investments maturing after three months 1,000 (2,408)
Increase of short term deposit maturing after three months - (1,059)
Decrease in block balances - 1,370
Dividend income received from available for sale investments 5,496 12,025
Interest/profit received from bank balances, short-term deposits,
wakala and murabaha investments 47 49
Net cash from investing activities 9,630 10,603
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance lease movement (153) (182)
Net (decrease)/increase in long-term borrowings (37,001) 16,453
Net decrease in short-term borrowings (372) (18,017)
Dividend paid to owners of the parent (13,530) (13,667)
Finance costs paid (13,474) (14,033)
Change in non-controlling interests (2,490) (879)
Net cash used in financing activities (67,020) (30,325)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (27,582) (10,185)
Translation difference {30) 244
(27,612) (9,941)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 39,804 35,558
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 14 12,192 25617

The notes set out on pages 9 1o 21 form an integral part of this interim cordensed consolidated financial information.



National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiarios 9
Interim Condansed Consolidated Financial Information
30 June 2016 (Unaudited)

Notes of the interim condensed consolidated financial
information

1 Incorporation and activities

National Industries Group Holding — KPSC (‘the Parent Company’) was incorporated in 1961 as a Kuwaiti
shareholding company in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law in the State of Kuwait and in April
2003, its status was transformed to a ‘Holding Company’. The Parent Company along with its subsidianies are
jointly referred to as “the Group”. The Parent Company’s shares are traded on the Kuwait Stock Exchange
and Dubai Financial Market.

The main objectives of the Parent Company are as follows:

- Owning stocks and shares in Kuwaiti or non-Kuwaiti shareholding companies and shares in Kuwaiti or
non-Kuwaiti limited liability companies and participating in the establishment of, lending to and
managing of these companies and acting as a guarantor for these companics.

- Lending money to companies in which it owns 20% or more of the capital of the borrowing company,
along with acting as guarantor on behalf of these companies.

- Owning industrial equities such as patents, industrial trademarks, royaltes, or any other related nights, and
franchising them to other companies or using them within or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Owning real estate and moveable property to conduct its operations within the limits as stipulated by law.

- Employing excess funds available with the company by investing them in investment and real estate
portfolios managed by specialised companies.

The new Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 was issued on 24 January 2016 and published in the Official Gazette
on 1 February 2016 which cancelled Law No. 25 of 2012 and its amendments thereto, as stipulated in article
(5) thereto. The new Law will be effective retrospectively from 26 November 2012. The executive regulations
of Law No. 1 of 2016 1ssued on 12 July 2016,

The address of the Parent Company’s registered office is PO Box 417, Safat 13005, State of Kuwait.

The board of directors of the Parent Company approved this interim condensed consolidated financial
information for issue on 11 August 2016.

The annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 were authorised for
issuance by the Parent Company’s board of directors on 23 March 2016 and approved by the sharcholders at
the Annual General Meeung held on 1 May 2016.

2 Basis of preparation

The interim condensed consolidated financial information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2016 has been prepared in accordance with Intemational Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting™.

The interim condensed consolidated financial information has been presented in Kuwait Dinars which is the
functional currency of the Parent Company.

The interim condensed consolidated financial information does not include all information and disclosures
required for complete financial statements prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards. In the opinion of the Parent Company’s management, all adjustments consisting of normal
recurring accruals considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.



National Industries Group Molding - KPSC and Subsidiaries 10
Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information
30 June 2016 (Unaudited)

Notes of the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of interim condensed consolidated financial information requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing this interim condensed consolidated financial information, the significant judgements made by
management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were
the same as those thar applied to the annual audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Operating results for the six-months period ended 30 June 2016 are not necessarily indicauve of the results
that may be expected for the financial year ending 31 December 2016. For further details, refer to the annual
consolidated financial statements and its related disclosures for the year ended 31 December 2015.

3 Significant accounting policies

The interim condensed consolidated financial information have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted in the Group’s most recent annual consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment
that has been issued but 1s not yet effective.

The Group has adopted new accounting pronouncements which have become effective for the first time in
2016, none of which had any significant impact on the Group's results or financial position. These are:

Standard or Interprecation Effective for annual periods beginning
IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations —

Amendments 1 January 2016

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative — Amendments 1 January 2016

IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

and Amortization — Amendments 1 January 2016

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments 1 januar'y 2016
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entties: Applying the

Consolidation Excepuon — Amendments 1 January 2016
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
4 Income from investments
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD "000 KD 000 KD '000
Dividend income:
- From investments at fair value through profit or loss 365 732 558 880
- From available for sale investments 2,089 6,123 5,496 12,025
Profit on sale of available for sale investments 519 1,546 1,374 4,063
Realised gain/(loss) on investments at fair value
through profit or loss 5 164 (4) 491
Unrealised gain/(loss) on investments at fair value
through profit or loss 1,237 165 (1,440) 1,691

4,215 8,730 5,984 19,150




National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries "
Intarim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information
30 June 2016 (Unaudited)

Notes of the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

5 Taxation and other statutory contributions

(a) Foreign taxation

Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2016 2015 2018 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD 000 KD '000 KD '000
Taxation of foreign subsidiares*
Current tax expense
Current period charge (124) (184) (183) (255)
(124) (184) (183) (255)
Other taxation- local subsidiaries™*
Current period charge - (138) - (218)
(124) (322) (183) (471)
(b) KFAS, NLST and Zakat of local subsidies ***
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Contributions to Kuwait Foundation for
Advancement of Science (KFAS) (1) (74) (19) (110)
Reversal of/(provision for) National Labour
Support Tax (NLST) 10 (161) (23) (255)
Reversal of/(provision for) Zakat 3 (63) (18) (104)
12 (298) (60) (469)

*The above tax is calculated based on the tax law adopted in United Kingdom.

** The above represents the tax expenses of a local subsidiary related to dividend income received from
investments in a GCC country.

«+*The contributions and provisions are on profit of local subsidiaries, whereas no contribution and provision
for the Parent Company was recognised in the current period (2015: Nil) as the net taxable results attributable
to the Parent Company was a loss.
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information (continued)

12

6 Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the owners

of the Parent Company

(Loss)/ carnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit for the period attributable to the owners of
the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period as follows:

Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(Loss) /profit for the year atiributable to the
owners of the Parent Company (KD '000) (4,744) 3,459 (4,358) 9,375
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period (excluding
treasury shares) — shares 1,325,056,996 1,325,056.996 1,325,056,996 1,325,056,996
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (3.6) Fils 2.8 Fils (3.3) Fils 7.1 Fils
7 Investment in associates
The movement in associates during the period/year is as follows:
30 June 31 Dec 30 June
2016 2015 2015
(Unaudited) {Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Balance at 1 January 337,187 330,968 330,968
Additions during the period/year 528 3,922 3,197
Share of results 11,293 26,913 12,744
Share of other comprehensive income (99) (9.119) (4,712)
Dividend received (7,220) (10,676) (8,321)
Disposal of associates - (4.419) 2
Impairment in value - (617) (44)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (219) 296 886
Other adjustments - (81) -
Balance at the end of the period/year 341,470 337,187 334718
8 Available for sale investments
30 June 31 Dec 30 June
2016 2015 2015
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Non Current
Managed funds 110,412 115,786 129,118
Unquoted equity participations 189,118 189,258 201,739
Quoted shares 164,152 188,865 284 854
463,682 493,909 615,711
Current
Quoted shares 38,564 47,328 55,946
502,246 541,237 671,657
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information (continued)

8 Available for sale investments (continued)

\

a) The quoted shares classified as current represent the remaining nvestments from those which were
transferred from investments at fair value through profit or loss as of 1 July 2008.

b) At the end of the period, the Group recognised a total impairment loss of KDD4,724 thousand (30 June
2015: KD2,031 thousand) for certain quoted and unquoted shares and foreign funds.

o) Investments with a fair value of KID178,288 thousand (31 December 2015; KID181,450 thousand and 30
June 2015: KID209,003 thousand) are secured against borrowings.

9 Accounts receivable and other assets

Accounts receivable and other assets as of 31 December 2015 included an amount of KID22,459 thousand
which represented the remaining balance from the sale of unquoted shares which were classified as available for
sale investments and the amount was fully received during the 1st quarter.

10 Investments at fair value through profit or loss

30 June 31 Dec. 30 June
2016 2015 2015
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Held for trading :
Quoted shares 22,372 24,253 26,227
Designated on initial recognition :
Local funds 8,143 7,709 7.831
International managed portfolios and funds 46,737 52,071 48,274
54,880 59,780 56,105
77,252 84,033 82,332

Quoted shares, held by local subsidiaries, with a fair value of KD3,080 thousand (31 December 2015: KID3,586
thousand and 30 June 2015: KID3,484 thousand) are secured against borrowings.

11 Share capital, share premium, dividend distributions and non-controlling
interests

Share capital and share premium

a) As of 30 June 2016, authorized issued and fully paid share capital in cash of the Parent Company
comprised of 1,359,853,075 shares of 100 Fils each (31 December 2015: 1,359,853,075 shares and 30 June
2015: 1,359,853,075 shares).

b) Share premium is not available for distribution.
Dividend distribution

¢) At the Annual General Meeting held on 1 May 2016, the sharcholders approved a cash dividend of 10%
(2014: 12%) equivalent to 10 Fils (2014: 12 Fils) per share for the year ended 31 December 2015,
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11 Share capital, share premium, dividend distributions and non-controlling
interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests

d) During the period, one of the local subsidiaries of the Group increased its share capital from KD15,000
thousand to KD20,000 thousand (50,000,000 shares with a par value of 100 fils per each share) (30 June
2015: from KD11,000 thousand to KDD15,000 thousand). The Group subscribed partially for this increase
through another subsidiary of the Group and consequently the Group’s shareholding in this subsidiary
diluted from 82.85% to 77.94% (30 June 2015: from 100% to 82.85%). The proportionate carrying value of
net assets on the date of dilution amounting to KID2,049 thousand (30 June 2015: KID5,106 thousand) has
been transferred to non-controlling interests in the interim condensed consolidated statement of changes in
equity, Consequently the difference between cash proceeds received and non- controlling interests share of
net assets on the date of dilution amounting to KD209 thousand (30 June 2015: KD706 thousand) has
been recognized as a dilution loss in the interim condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity as
of 30 June 2016.

12 Other components of equity

Foreign
Gain on sale currency
Statutory General of treasury translation
reserve reserve shares reserve reserve Total
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD '000 KD '000 KD ‘000
Balances at 1 January 2016 11,167 1,694 18,452 (2,486) 28,827
Other comprehensive income:
Currency transiation differences - - - 1,595 1,595
Balances at 30 June 2016 11,167 1,694 18,452 (891) 30,422
Balances at 1 January 2015 8,542 1,694 18,452 (1,521) 27,167
Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences - - - 292 292
Balances at 30 June 2015 8,542 1,694 18,452 (1,229) 27 459

13 Long term and short term borrowings

During 2011 and 2012, one of the local subsidiaries restructured its financing arrangements with some local
banks and accordingly loans amounting to KID154,710 thousand (out of which KD58,016 thousand has
been paid till reporting date) were converted into secured long term facilities. As per loan restructuring
agreements, these loans are required to be 100% secured. As of 30 June 2016, 31 December 2015 and 30
June 2015, these are partly secured (notes 8 and 10) and the identification and securitization of the required
balance is stll in process.

The third instalment of the loan of KID38,677 thousand fell due in 2014 and 2015 and the lenders agreed for
payment of 50% of that amount within four months from the original due date. KID15,024 thousand was
paid in 2015 and the balance KD4,314 thousand was settled during the 1% quarter of 2016.

The process of rescheduling the local subsidiary’s loans amounting 1o KD96,694 thousand as of the
reporting date comprising of the remaining 50% (KDD19,339 thousand) of the third instalment and
KID77,355 thousand for the final instalment is ongoing,

The local subsidiary had submitted a debt rescheduling plan to all its lenders and had, also requested from all
of the lenders 1o extend the standstill as the restructuring is still in process and to continue negotiations to
reach an acceptable debt rescheduling solution. The lenders have confirmed that they will continue to
negotiate the terms and conditions of the restructuring to bring it to a successful closure. Accordingly, the
local subsidiary’s management expects to finalize the debt rescheduling within the next few months.
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Notes of the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

14 Murabaha and wakala investments and cash and cash equivalents

14.1 Murabaha and wakala investments
30 June 31 Dec. 30 June
2016 2015 2015
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD ‘000 KD '000
Due from a local Islamic investment company/ due from related
parties 14,324 14,324 14,324
Provision for impairment in value (14,324) (14,324) (14.324)
Placed with local Islamic bank - 1,000 3,004
- 1,000 3,004

No profit was recognised on impaired wakala investments during the current period (31 December 2015 and
30 June 2015;: Nil),

Wakala investments of KD14,324 thousand (31 December 2015: KD14,324 thousand and 30 June 2015:
KD14,324) placed with a local Islamic investment company matured in the last quarter of 2008. The nvestee
company defaulted on settlement of these balances on the maturity date. However revised maturity dates were
stipulated by the court. The investee company again defaulted the payment of 20, 3« and 4 instalment due in
June 2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively. Full provision is made for receivable in accordance with the Central Bank
of Kuwait provision rules.

During previous years, one of the local subsidiaries of the Group assumed the financial and legal obligations on
wakala investments of KID9,968 thousand (in violation of the Commercial Companies Law of 1960) that the
subsidiary had placed with the above investment company in a fiduciary capacity under a wakala agreement with
certain related parties, despite having no such obligation under the wakala agreement. The Group mitiated legal
proceedings against the above parties to recover the amount including profits thereon, During the year 2014, the
court of appeal had ordered the related parties to pay KD8,285 thousand with 7% profit thereon to the Group
and this was overturned by the Court of Cassation in favour of the related party during 2015. The legal
proceedings relating to the remaining amount of KID1,683 thousand is still in process.

14.2 Cash and cash equivalents

30 June 31 Dec. 30 June
2016 2015 2015
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Short-term deposits 7,382 16,661 19,700
Bank balances and cash 29,609 43,383 28,568
Due to banks (24,473) (19,915) (20,125)
12,518 40,129 28.143
Less: Blocked balances (326) (325) (1,467)
Short term deposits maturing after 3 months - - (1,059)

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of interim
condensed consolidated statement of cash flows 12,192 39,804 25,617
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Notes of the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

16 Related party transactions

Related parties represent associates, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and other related
parties such as major sharcholders and companies in which directors and key management personnel of the
Group are principal owners or over which they are able to excrcise significant influence or joint control. Pricing
policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

Details of significant related party transactions and balances are as follows:

30 June 31 Dec 30 June
2016 2015 2015
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD ‘000 KD '000 KD ‘000
Balances included in interim condensed consolidated statement
of financial position
Due from related parties (included in accounts receivable and other
assets)
- Due from associate companies 909 1,870 200
- Due from other related parties 4,558 2476 141
- Due from key management personnel 231 231 233
Due to related parties (included in accounts payable and other
liabilities)
- Due to associates 238 238 826
- Due to other related parties 491 514 2,569
Current portion of long term borrowings — murabaha payable to an
associate (included in short term borrowings) - - 15,024
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD 000 KD ‘000
Transactions included in interim condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss
Finance cost charged by an associate - 186 - 386
Purchase of raw materials — from associates 917 1.065 1,868 2,100
Compensation of key management personnel o
the Group
Short term employee benefits 816 614 1,603 1.401
End of service benefits 24 143 164 168
840 757 1,767 1,569

17  Financial instruments

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets (accounts receivable and other assets, available for sale
investments, murabaha and wakala investments, investment at fair value through profit or loss, short term
deposits and bank balances and cash) and financial liabilities {due to banks, short term and long term
borrowings, leasing creditors and accounts payable and other liabilities).

Except for certain available for sale investments which are carried at cost (KID23,945 thousand), the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2016, approximate their fair values.
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information (continued)

17  Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table presents the financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value in the interim
condensed consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.

This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into six levels based on the significance of inputs used in
measuring the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiliues;

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
stignificant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped
into the fair value hierarchy as follows;

At 30 June 2016
Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
KD'000 KD'000 KD'000 KD'000

Assets at fair value
Available for sale investments

-Managed funds

Private equity funds . - 27,160 27,160

Other managed portfolio - 3,744 75,649 79,393
-Unquoted equity participations - 3,632 165,400 169,032
-Quoted shares 172,860 1,236 28,620 202,716
Investment at fair value through profit or loss
-Quoted shares 22,372 - - 22,372
-Local funds - 8,143 - 8,143
-International managed portfolios and funds 5,217 32,210 9,310 46,737
Total assets 200,449 48,965 306,139 555,553

At 31 December 2015
Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance

KD'000 KD'000 KD'000 KD'000
Assets at fair value
Available for sale investments

-Managed funds
Private equity funds - - 26,647 26,647
Other managed funds - 7,174 78,105 85,279
-Unquoted equity participations - 14,268 167,955 172,223
-Quoted shares 222,282 862 13,049 236,193
Investment at fair value through profit or loss
-Quoted shares 24,253 - - 24253
-Local funds - 7,709 - 7,709
-International managed portfolios and funds 5,490 35,750 10.831 52,071

Total assets 252,025 65,763 286,587 604,375
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17 Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value hicrarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

At 30 June 2015
Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
KD'000 KD'000 KD'000 KD'000

Assets at fair value
Available for sale investments

-Managed funds
Private equity funds - - 32,545 32,545
Other managed portfolio - 8,864 82,884 91,748
-Unquoted equity participations - - 148,514 148,514
-Quoted shares 340,800 - - 340,800
Investment at fair value through profit or loss
-Quoted shares 26,227 - - 26,227
-Local funds - 7.831 - 7,831
-International managed portfolios and funds 4,730 32,622 10,822 48,274
Total assets 371,757 49317 274,865 695,939

Fair value measurements

The Group measurement of financial assets and liabilities classified in level 3 uses valuation techniques inputs
that are not based on observable market date. The financial instruments within this level can be reconciled
from beginning to ending balances as follows:

30 June 31 Dec 30 June
2016 2015 2015
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

KD ‘000 KD '000 KD '000
Opening balance 286,587 274,244 274,244
Net change in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (5,887) 7,393 6,423
Impairment recognised in profit or loss (1,390) (2,164) 217)
Net change in fair value recognised in profit or loss 188 1,156 223
Net addition/(disposals) during the period/year 806 (8,431) (5,808)
Reclassification 25,835 14,389 -
Closing balance 306,139 286,587 274 865

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible altemative assumption would not change
significantly amounts recognised in profit or loss, total assets or total liabilitics or total equity.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair values, are unchanged
compated to the previous reporting year/period, except for certain foreign quoted shares that have been fair
valued based on valuation techniques as the Group’s management believes that such valuations are more
representative of the fair values of such investments based on the information available to the management.
Accordingly this investment has been included under level 3.

18 Fiduciary assets

One of the subsidiaries of the Group manages mutual funds, portfolios on behalf of related and third parues,
and maintains securities in fiduciary accounts which are not reflected in the interim condensed consolidated
statement of financial position. Assets under management at 30 June 2016 amounted to KD5,788 thousand
(31 December 2015: KID4,712 thousand and 30 June 2015: KID7,588 thousand) of which assets managed on
behalf of related partes amounted to KD3,193 thousand (31 December 2015: KD2,713 thousand and 30
June 2015: KD5,077 thousand).
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19 Contingent liabilities
As at 30 June 2016, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of outstanding bank guarantees amounting
to KD18,339 thousand (31 December 2015: KID20,773 thousand and 30 June 2015: KID22,140 thousand).

20 Capital commitments

At the reporting date the Group had commitments for the purchase of investments and the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment totalling to KID38,142 thousand (31 December 2015: KD36,481 thousand and
30 June 2015: KD37,939 thousand).

21 Comparative information

Certain comparative figures has been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current period, and
such reclassification does not affect previously reported net assets, net equity and net results for the petiod or
net increase in cash and cash equivalents.
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Independent auditors’ report

To the shareholders of _
National Industries Group Holding.~ KPSC
Kuwait .

‘Réport on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the sccompanying consolidited financial tatements of National I dustries Group Holding —
KPSC (“The Parent Cothpaty”) and .its subsidiati et “the Gr which comptise the
consolidated statement of financial positios: as at 31 D it ' dated,si_a:_tcment:’oif.pmﬁt
or loss, statement of profit ot loss and other comptehensive income, stafement of ‘chaniges in equity atd
statement of cash flows for the yeat then ended, and asummiary of significant: aceounting piolicies and other
explandtory information.

M, émagmefz‘t{r‘ Ré.g’iakﬁiiiﬁyﬁr the Conlivlidated Finaiial Statements

.:Managemenz is responsible for the preparation and .fait presenitation of these comisolidated financial
ements in accordanae with International Financial Reportmg Standards, and. fot-such internal contral as

] cesydry to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statemenits that dte
t, whether due to fraud or ertor:

accordance with Thternational Standards on Audmng Those standasds requn‘e that we
requirements and :plan and perfotm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about.
lated finaficial statéments are free from matetial misstatement.

An auditdnvolves performing proced
consolidated financial staterents. Th cedures selected depend on the audjtors ;udg;nent mcludm
assessment of the' risks of material misstatement of th
fraud or error. In making those risk » s, the ¢
prepatation and fair presentauon of the & .solxd&ted ﬁnanclal statements in. order ta desxgn dudit: pt:oce’
that are appropriate in. the citcumstances; for the putbose of exptessing 4 oplmon on. the
effectiveness of the entity’s intemal conteel, lit also inchides evaluating the appropsiateness of
accouniting’ policies used and thie zeasonablens accounting -estimates: made by management; 4s well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statemeixts:

We believe thatithe audit evidenice: we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for out
audit opinion.




Abdullatif M. Al-Aibar (CPA) T
(Licence No.94-A) _ o (Licence No. 70:4) ‘
‘of:Grant Thornton - Al-Qatami; Al-Aiban & Pistriets of Parker Randall (Allied Accountants)

» Grant Thornton Al AL Mafd  Co. ey

Al Qatami Al Aib an & Partn ars Certified Fublic Accountants - Experts
e ] __:’ " AL~: R

Opiriion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present faitly, in all material respects, the financial
position of National Industries Group Holditig and ifs. subsidliaries as at 31 Deceibet 2015, and their
finaricial petformince and cash flows for the year then ended ‘in secotdance with Intethational. Financial
Reporting Standards. ‘

Report onOther Legal and Regulatory Mattets

In cur opifloh, proper books: of account. have been kept by the Patent Company and the consolidated
financial statemenits, together with the contenits of the teport of the Patent Company’s board of directors
relating to these consolidated financial statements, ate in accordance therewith. We further report that we
obtained. all the information ‘and explanations. that we required for the puipse of bur audit and that the
eonsolidated financial statements incorpotate:all information that is téquired by the Companics Law: No. 1 of
2016 and the Executive Regulations of Law No; 25 of 2012-and by the Parent Company’s Memotanduni of
Incotporation and Asticles of Association, 48 4 iended, that-an inventory was duly cartied out and that, to the:
bist of out knowledge and belief, no violations of the Cotnpasiss Law and the Executive Regulations ot of
the Parenti Company’s Memorandum of Incotpotatio s of Association, as amended, haye
occurred dutifig the-year ended 31 December 2015 that might have:had a material effect on the business o¢
finaheial position of the Group. :

o

Fullatif AH, Al-Majid

Kuwair




Mational industries Group Hblding — KP3C and Subsidlaries 3
sidated Financial Statemants
31 E)ecember 2018

Consolidated statement of roflt or loss

Yaar ended Year ended

31 Deé. 31 Dec.
Note 2015 2014
KOX'000 KD-'d00

Galn ‘on drsposai of asd

Cain'on disposal-of investment prepemes
Ctianges in fair value of investment propeities
Rerital mooma

(6 651 ).
(23,857)
105,803
Finance costs _ 11 ;
Impairment in valus: of ‘available for sale’investmernits 19
Impaifment in'valie of investment In assoclates 17
Impairment in value of Intangible dssets 15
Iripairmentin value of receivables and other assets 21

Lose on foreign currency Skchange

Prof‘t ‘before forslgn taxation
¥ taxation )

efore KEAS, NLST, Zakat and. directors‘ remuneratlons

KFAS, NI:ST:and Z A2b
Directors’ remuneration. o _
Piofitforthayear o - 13
25,427 28,282
3,483 8,649
| __ | o0 a8831
Basic and diluted earnings per share atfributable to the |

owners of 'the Parent o o 14 19.2 Fils 21.3Fils

The notes set ont onpuges 10 1581 forrs an sntegeal purt of these corislidated finantial statements.




National tndustriss Group Ho!dmg . BPSC and Subsidiariss

Cansolidated Fliaaneial-Statements

31 December 2015
Consolidated statement. of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Year anded Year-ended
31 Dec: 31 Dec..
2015 2014
KD '000 KD'000
Profit for the year’ 28,910 36,831
Othercom 'rehenswe ingome:
ge ff’}'ﬂﬁi 4,974
Availahle for: sa[e Inves _
- Net changes/in fa:r va i 72 787) (15,598)
3 f.profit o loss on disposal 112,561) (28,190)

- Transferred to.consofidated statsiment'of profit or loss on'impalrment 9,851 - 28,205
Share of other comprehansive Incotfié of assoclates _
- Changes in fair value: {8,118) 2472
Total.other comprehens:ve .‘ncome to be rec!assiﬁed to profitor o _ i
loss in subsequent periods (85,627) {6,135)
Items not:to he reclassified fo profit orloss in subsequent periods
Defined benhefit plan actugrial losses {187} (966)
Total other comprahensive Incorie not belng reclassified to proﬁt '
or loss In subsequent periods {167) (968)
Total other comprehensive Incomie for the year 3 (8539'4) {7401y
Total comprehensive income for the year (56,884) 29,730
Total-comprehensive incoméa for the year attributable to: o 4

Owners of the parent. 40412 26498

Non-controlling interests (18,772) 3,232

(56,884) 29,730

Thhe notes et ont on pages 10 10 81 form an integral part of these consohdated finaneial statemeints,
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Nafional Ingustries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries 5
Coiisolidated Financial Statements
31 Pecember 2015
V. [N e e N ] . ] igm
Consolidated statement of financial position
3 De¢: 31 Dei,
Note 2015 2014
KD'000 KD 'go0

Assots )
Non-curignt assets’ ) _
Goodwill and intangible assets 3o} 12,823
Property, plantand squilpmant 16 70,868
Investmentin-associates: 17 337,187
Investment-properties 18 69,482
Available for sale.invastinents 19 493,008 16,019
Actounig ieceivable 21 1,650 2102
; cutrent agsets 985,619 1,009,681
Burrent.assots . .
Inventorles _ 20 34,064 32,023
Available for sala investriiants 19 47,328 83,362
Adcounts receivable and other assels 2 70,809
Murabaha and wakala investments 22 598
[nvestments at fairvatue through profit or loss 23 59,7086
Short-tarm deposits 31 8,718
Bank balances and cash 31 . 53,454
Total current asséts- o 33728 286,367
Totalassets 1,299,342 1,386,948
Equity and Habilities .
Equity-attributable to'owners of the parent ) &
Share capital 24 136,985 135085
Tréasury shares 26 (30,376) (30,375)
‘Share premlum 24 122,862 122,962
Cumuilative changesin falrvalue 26 96,378 160,785
Other components.of equity 26 28,827 27187
Ratained garmings o _ 30;228 23,849
Equity attributabla to owrers of th parerit N 384,002 440,373
Noh-controliing intereste 26 128,809 146,729
Total equity 512,911 687,102
Non-current Habllities _ _
Long-term borrowings pid 437,845 370,254
Leasing creditors 424 478
Provisions: <8 16,436

| 453,708

Current liabflites

Accounts payable ang dther liabilities
Shott-term borrowings

Due to banks

Total -g.ui';ant' liabilitles

Total llatllitios

Total eqiity and labillties

e

Sa'ad Mohammad Al-Sa'ad
Chalrman.

Ah‘fﬁid Wohammed Hassan
Chief Executive Cfficer

The notes set ont-on pages 10 to 81 Jornt ant intsgrid part of thése ionsolidated finandial statements.
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Mational industries Sroup Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries

Consdlitated Financlal Statemaents
51 December 2015

Consolidated statement of cash flows

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before foreign taxation
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Chianges in fair value-of investment pfoperties
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment:
Gain on disposal-of associates ,
Gain-on disposat of investrment properties
Impdinment invalue of Investmentin associates
Share of resulls of associates. _
Dividend income from available for sale investments:
Prafit an sale of ‘available origalg: ivestments
impairmentin value of injangible assets.
Impairment in value of receivable.and other assets
itmpairment in silable for sale investments
et provisions (it arged

larices, short-termydeposits, wakala and

30,535

6,506
(1,283)

(4’11;)

817
(26,913)
{14,387}
(21,714)

2,010
323
9,851

(373)

28,740

(633)

Year ¢hded
31 Pec:
2014
KD '000

39,714

6,848
(4,138)
8

(87:597)
1441
28,205

3,121
30,520

(504)

Changes In-opsiating assets and liabilitiess
Inventories _

Accounts recelvable:and other assels’
favestiments-at faii value through profit-or loss:
Aczounts payable:and other liabilitles

12,862

{2,034}
6,328
(24,327}
(8.473)

12,178

(115)
(7,788)
5,493
(1,104)

Cash (used inyfrom operationg.
KFEAS and Zakat contribution paid
NLST paid

Taxation paid

(13,340}
(709)
(743)
(437)

8,662
(453)
{843)
(601)

Net cash (used In)ifrom operating activities

(16,229)

7,085

The notes set.ont on pages 10 1 81 forman byl part of these consolidated finaiial

statgnienis.
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'G'a\:-gh and ca_s"h equivalents:atend of theyear

National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries e
Gonsolithated Financial $tatements
‘34 Pecemiber 2015
N LI 1 ] g .- d . N R - e X f o JAB .
Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)
Yaar-ended Yearended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note- 2015 2014
KD '000 K3-'000
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: L
Piirchase of property, plantand equipment 18,594) (7.,160)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment -85 214
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties - 10,285
Additions to' Investment properties {4,494) (16,869)
Investment in agsociatas. 13,922) ;490)
Dividend recelved from associate companies 10,676 9,122
Proceeds from dispasal of associate 4,836 A,424
(Incresse) f decrease in wakala investments maturing after three _
‘months (402) 3,902
? ' 2,512 (1,413)
(11;279) {22,446)
: gale o & investments 64,220 B7.228
Dlwdand‘mcome raceived from available for sale Investinsiits 14,387 13,087
Interestiprofit-on bank balances, shortterm deposits; wakala and .
murabaha inyestments 336 453
Net.cash from investing activitues 68,371 79,227
FINANGING ACTIVITIES
Finance ease payments (257)
Net decrease in long-<erm horrgwings (42,899)
Net ifciaase in short-term borrowlings 18,227
Dividend paid to the-owners:of the parent (15 0286).
Finance costs paid (28,0786).
Charige i non-contmllmg ‘inferesis {1,048
Net cash used in financing activitles _{4,!1,019)%
Net increase in eash and cash equivalents 4,063
Translation difference: 188
. 4, 246
‘Cash and cashequivalenis at beginrirg:of the yéar" 35,558 i
31 39,8{)4 35,558

The nates set-out on-pages 10 to 81 form.an integral part of thess sonsolidated ﬁﬂam‘:fa_jf SEALEIREIS:
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~  Lending money to companies io-which it ox

Matiohdl industries Group Holding - KESC and Subsidiaries ‘ 10
Cansolidated Financial Statements
31 Decamber 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities

National Industr Group Holding — KPSC (“the Parent Company”) Wiis mcorporated ity 1961 as'a Kuwaili

tnpany in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law in the State of Kuwait and in

Apr atis: was transfotmed to a “Holding Company”. "The Parént Company along with its

suhsidmnes ate jointly referred to as “the Group” The Parent Company’s shates ate traded on the Kuwait
tock-Exchiange and Dubal Finaticial Matket,

The Main objectives of the Patent Company ate as follows:

- QOwning stocks and shares in. Kuwaiti or non-Kuwaiti sh_gj:éhoiﬂing_-companies atid shares in Kuwaitl or
non-Kurwaitl limited liability co and patticipatiog in the establishmeht of, lending to and
mariaging of these compaiiies atid d¢titigias a guarantor for these companies.

5 20% or moire of the capital of the borrgwing company,
along with dctiti asguarantor on behalf of these companies:

- Owning industrial eg ities such as patents, industrial tradematks, royalties, or.any other related rights,
and franchising them to.other:companies or usitig them within-or outside the State of Kuwait,

- Owning real estaté and thoveable property to conduct its opetations. withiti the:limits as stipulated by
lavi '

-~ Employing excess funds available: with the group. by investifig' thetn in investment and redl estate
pottfolios managed by speclahsed companies,

fent cormpany’s registered office is PO Box 417, Safat 13005, State:of Kuwait,

The new Comparifes Law No. 1 of 2016 wis issued o 24 Jantary 2016 and pubhshed fithe Offigial Gazette
on 1 February 2016 1 which they havé celled: Law No, 25 of 2012 and its -amendments ‘thereto, ‘as
stipulated in. agticle (5) thereto, The new Law will be effective retrospeciively from 26 November 2012 and
the executive. regulations: of Law: No. 25 ‘of 2012 will remain effectve pending the isguance .af the new

executive regulations:

The board of ditectors of the Pareit Company-apptoved these consolidated finarcial stateirients for issugice;
on 23 March 201G, The. peneral assembly of the Parent Company’s shatcholders has the, power to amend;
thege. consohdated finaricial statéments after I 1ssuance

2 Basis of preparation _
The congolidated financial statemerits are prepared under:the histotical cost convention modified to inchude:
the: revaluation of freehold and leasehold properties, the measurement at. faix value of investierits Ay fair
valuesthrough profitor loss; available for sale financial assets and ifivestmignt properties,

The consolidated Anaticial stitéivients are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (KD}and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (KD000), except-when otherwise indicated:

The Group has elected to preserit the “statement of compeehensive income” in two statements: the
“statement of ptofit ot loss” and a “statement of profit ot loss and compirehensive income”.

3 Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been ptepared in accordance with Triternational
‘Financial Reporting Standaids (IFRS) as issued by the Internatiofial Aceounting Standards Board (IASB),




National indusitries Group Holding - RP5C and Subsidiaries 44
Censolidated Financial Stataments
31 Bovernber 2048

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in ac
The: accounting policies
consistent with-those vsed

' 't“:ﬂting policies:
ted inthe prepatation of the Gronp's consolidated financial statements are
revious year éxcept as discussed below:

4.1 New and amended standatds adepted by the Group
A number of new and revised standards areeffective fogatinual perlods beginning on or.after 1 January 2015,

Informauon ofi these new standards {3 presented below:

Standard or Iﬂtetngfatzaﬁ‘ _ Effective for-annual periods baginning

:Annual iipiovements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle. 1Jaly 2014

1AS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Cbﬁi‘;fhutz‘aﬁs Amendments

IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributionis -Amendments 1 July 2014
: Imptovements:to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cyele. 1 July 2014

The. Amendments to TAS 19 Employee Benefits:clatify the requirements ‘that-telate to how conttibations
from employees -or third pacties that-ate. linked to service should be atttibuted to petiods of service. In
addition, 4t perrmts a practical expedient if the amourit of the contributions is mdcpcndent of the number.of
years of 'setvice, in that contributions, can, but are not reqmred to b tecognised as a reduction in the service
cost.in the perlqd in which the related setvice is rendered,

The amendment.did-not have any material'impact to the Group’s consdlidated financil information.

Annual Imp, o JFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle:

() Amendmenty J-Contingent consideration that does not meet the definition of an equity instrument is
subsequently measured at each teporting date falr'valug, with chianges recognised-in consolidated statement of -
profitor loss;

(&) Anicsidments 1o IFRS" 13- The addition fo the Basis for Conclusions confirms the existing theasufernetit
treatment of shott-term tecelvables and payables: :

{tii) Amendments i IFRS 8- Disclosutes are; required regatding judgements made by management in aggregating
operating segments-(i.€. desctiption, economic indicators).

A veconiliation of teportable segmenits®assets to:total entity assets is fequired if this is regulatly provided to

the ghief. operating decision maket.

(i} Amendments 10 IAS 16 and LAS 38- When items ate revalued, the gross: catrying amaount is adjusted on a
consistent basis to the revaluation.of thenet carrying amoutit,

() Amendments-to LAS 24- Entities thatprovide key magagement peksontiel seivices to- a-reporting entity, ot
the reporting entity’s'patent; are consfidéred to be:related patties of the repotting entity.

~The amendment did not have any material impaet to the Grqup‘s'.-c-:_qnsol__i‘datg:'_d financial information.

Annual Improvémetits 2011-2013 Cycle:

_ )Amexdmem to IFRS 1-the amendment to the Basis for Conclusions dlatifies that aiy entity prepating its
TERS financial statements in accordance with IERS 1 js'able touse both:.

o IFRSs that are curretitly effective
o IFRSs that have beenvissued but are not yet effective, thiat: petimits aax_‘i‘){ adoption



Mational Industeios Group Hol&mg - MPSC and Stubsidiaries : 12
Consolidated Financial $tatements
31 Decernber 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Ghanges in accounting policies (continued)
41  Newand amended standatds adopted by the Group (continued)

Annual Improvements 2011:2013:C)

cle fcontinued)
The same version of each IFRS tiust beapp.

pplied to dll periods presented.

(it} Amendments 1o IFRS 3 IFRS 3 s ot applied to thé formation .of a joint arrangement in. the financial
statertients of the joint arrafigement itself.

'ettlng posmons in market and/of counterpafty crédit risk that ate recogmsed and measured in accordance
AS 39/IFRS9, irrespective of whether they meet the definition of a financial asset/Hability.

i) Amendmeiti io.JAS 40 - Clarifying the interrelationship of TFRS 3 and TAS 40 when classifying property as
an ifwestmentpropetty or ownet-occupied propetty:

“The amendment did not have any material impact to the'Group’s:consolidated financial it formation..

42  TASB Standards-issued but not yet ¢ffcctive

At the date of authorisation of these .consolidated financial statements, cerfain new standards; amendments

and interpretations to existing standards have been published by the TASB but ave it et effcctlve, and have
not been adopted eatly by the:Group,

Managgment anticipates that all of the televant pronouncements will be adopted in the Geoup’s accounting
policies: for the fitst period beglnmng after the effective date of the pronouncerments; Infotmation on fiéw
standards, amendments ‘and interprefations that are expected to be televant to the ‘Group’s financial

statements is provided below. Certain othiet new standards and interpretations have been issued but ate nat

éxpected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statemients:

_ Standard or f?i?eipﬁtgtibn Effective for annual periods beginning

Co

TFRS @ Financial Instrumems:--* issiftcation and Measurement Ijﬁhuaf}‘r 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Con itﬁ Cﬁsto‘mérs 1January 2018

1 Januaary 2016
IFRS 11 A.ccou.n‘t_: g ot Acquilsifion |
Amendinents ' _ 1 January 2016
IFRS 16 Leases : 1 January 2019
IAS 1 Disclosure Tnitiative — Amendmenits 1 January 2016
IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Deptecix ‘
and Amortisation ~ Amendments 1 January 2016

1AS8:27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments 1 January 2046
IFRS. 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying. the

hdauon Exceptzon Amendments 1 Januaty 2016
1 Jaly 2016
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Mational Industries Groug Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries 13

Gonsolidated Financial $iatemants
I1-December 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4  Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but ot yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial fnstruments.

The IASB recently teleased TFRS 9 ‘Fihncial Instruments® (2014), répresentinig the completion of its project

to replace [AS 39 ‘Fihancial Thstruments: Recognition. and Measutement’. The néw standatd introducés
extensive ‘changes to IAS 39’s guidance on the classification and measurement. angial. assets: and
introduces a new ‘expécted credit loss’ model for the impaltment of financial assets: IFRS 9 alse provides
new guidanice on the ap on of hedge accouniting,

Managendent has staited to dssess the impact of IFRS 9 but is not yet in 4 position to. ptovide quantified
informatiots. At this stage the tiiain aress of expected impact are as follows:

s the classifieation and measurement of the Group’s financial assets will heed to be reviewed based on

the new ctiteria that considers the assets” conttactual cash flows and the business model in which:

they ate managed.

¢ an expected credit loss-based impalrment will need to be xecognised on the group’s trade receivables
and investments in debt-type assets curtently classified as available for sale and held:to-matusity,
unless classified as at faitvalue thtough-profit or loss in accordance with the hew criteria.

v it will no longer be possible to measure equity investments. at cost less impairment and all such
investments will instead be measured at fait value. Chanpes in fair value will be presented in profit o
Ioss utiless the Group makes an:ittevocable designation to present them in statement of profit.or loss
and ottrer: comprehensive income. This will affect the Group’s investment amounting to KID20,895

thousand (refet note. 194} if stil held on 1 Januaty 2018.

o if the Group continves fo. elect the fair value option for certain financial liabilities, fair value
movements will be presented'in statement of;ptofit ot loss and other comprehensive. income fo the
extent those changes refate toithe group’s-own credit visk,

Although eatliet application of this standard is petritted, the Technical Committee of the Ministry of
Commetce and Industry of Kuwait decided on 30 December 2009, to pastpone: this -eatly apgil.i'cau'on: tll
further notice, '

IFRS 18 Revente ftom Contracts with Customeéts
IFRS 15 replaces TAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contacts and provides a new control-based
revenue recognition model using five step approach to-all contracts with customers.

The five steps in the:model are as follows;

-+ Identify the contract with the custornet

o Identify tlie petformance obligations in:the contiact.

¢ Detetinirie the trangaction ptice
o  Allocste the transaction price to the performance obligatiotis inf the conttacts
s, Recognise revenue when (ot as) the-entity satisfies a performance obligations
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
42  IASB Standards issued butnot yet effective (gcntinu'_t;'da

IFRS 15 Revenue from Conttacts with Costomers (contmued)

The standas d fncludes impottant guidance, such as

acts involving the delivery of two ot mage poods o services ~ when to account sepatately for.
the individual ;performance obligations in a multiple element arrangement, how to allocate the
transaction price, and when to combine conttacts
timing —whether.revenue is required to be recognized over time or at a single point in time
¢ -varable pricing and credit tisk-— addressing how to treat artangements with vatiable or cohtingent
(e.g: petformance-based) priclng; anid introducing an overall constraint on revenue:
¢ titne value — when to adjust a: contract peice for a financing component
¢ specificissues, including —
- non-eash consideration and asset exchanges
- COntract cosis
- rights of rerien anid other customeér options
- supplierirepurchase options
watratities
- principal versus agent
- licencing
- breakage
~-non-refundable upfront fees; and
- consignment and bill-and-hold arratigements.

The Group’s management have yet to assess the impact of this. standard on these consolidated financial
statements; -

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Conttibution of Assets between and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments

The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consoliddted Firiancial Statements and TAS 28 Inivestrents in Associates and

Joint Ventures (2011) clarify- the treatment of the sale ot contribution of assets from an investor to its
associate o joint ventute, as follows:

 require full fecoghition in the irivestor's financial statements of gains atid losses atising on the sale ot
contribution of assets that constitute 2 business (s defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)

»  cequite the paitial recopriltion of gaing and losses shere theagsets do not constinute 2 business, 1.6, a
gain or loss is tecognised only to the extent of the unrelated Investors” interests-in that associate or
joint ventute: )

iom, &g, whether the sale-ot.contribution

‘These requitements fipply regardless:of the legal form of the trans g
- holds the assets {resulting in loss of

of assets oceuts by an investor transferring shares in 2 subsidiary
control of the subsidiary), ot by th dircct sale of the dssets themselves.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidatéd: financial
stateinents.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
42 1ASB Standatds issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Intetests in Joint O_pera tions' - Amendresits

Amendments to IFRS 11 Jofnit Atrangements réquire an dequirer ofan fraterest in a jolnt-opération in which
the activity constitutes 2 business (as defined in IFRS.3 Business Combinations) to apply all of the business
combmatmns accounung principles in [FRS 3.and other IFRSs, except for-those p that conflict with
11, Ivalso requiked disclosure of the {nfotmation required by IFRS: atid othet IFRSs

: }omt operatlon (in ‘thie lattet case, prﬂvlously held iitefests ate ﬁot remeasuzed)
The amendments apply prospectively to acquisitions of interests in Jomt operations.

These amendments ate not expected to have any mategial on Lh_-g;a@rou_p s conselidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases _ _

The riew Standard requires lessees to account for leases 'on-balance sheet’ by tecoghising a 'eight of use dsget
arrd’a lease liability. It will affect most companies that teport under IFRS and ate invalved in fe _slng, and will
hiave 4 substantial impact on the financial staternents of lessces of property and high value equipment. For
many other businesses, howeyer; exemptions for shori-term leases and leases-of low value assets will reduce
the impact.

The Group’s management have yetto assess.the impact of IFRS 16 on these Group consolidated financial
statements.

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative ~ Adiendmeiits
The Amendments to.TAS 1 make the following changes:
o Materialify. Thie amendinents clatify that (1) information should not be obscured by aggregating or by
providing immaterial information, (2) matenahty considerations apply to all the parts of the fitidncial
statements; and (3) even-when a standard requires a specific disclosure, matetiality considerations do-

apply:

o Statement of financial position and siatement of profit.or loss and other wiiprehensive income; The amendments )
introduce a clatification that: the list of line iterns to be presented in these statémicnts éan be
disagpregated and aggregated 35 televantand additionsl gidance ofi subfotals in these statements and
(2) clarify that an entity's share of QOCI of equity-accounted agsociates and joint ventutes should be
presented in-aggregate as single line‘items based on whether or not u;_xxrdl_gubsaquet_a_tly be reclassified
to profit-of loss: "

¢ Nons ' The amendments add additional examples of possible ways of otdering the notes to clatify
undesstandability and comparability should be considered when determining the tder of the notes
and_to ethoristrate that the notes need not be preseted in the order so: far listed:in parags

S 1. The. [ASB also removed guidance ahd examples with tegaid fo the. Ldentlﬁcatxon of

significant:aceounting policies that were perceived as'being potentially unhelpful.

These' dmounits: ate not expected to have any matetial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statetnents.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clacification: of Acceptable Methods of Depteciation and Amortisation -
Amendments

Amendments to TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and TAS 38 Intangible Assets address the following
matters:

e ade rectauon method that is based on revenue that is generated by, an activity that includes the use

] nt

ed by an actvity that includes the vse of

gibie dassetis generally mapproprlate exceplt E'or'-hmltﬂd circumstatices

. expected futuie reductions in the selling price of an item that 'was produced using an asset could
indicate the expectation of technological or cothmeraial obsoléscence bf the asset, which, in tum,
might Leﬂect a teduction of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

These amendments are not expected to have -afiy - magtial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
-statetnents.

148 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Ammendmients
imendments to JAS 27 Separate Financial Statements peemit investments in subsidiaties, joint ventures
ssouiates to-be optionally accounted for using the equity'method in separate financial statements.

ose atnendtiients ke fot eéxpected to have any martial dmpact on the Group's consolidated fnancial

IERS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 'Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception -
Arhendnyents
The Amendments ate.aimed at clarifying the following aspects:

®  Exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements; The amendments confirm that the exemption
from preparmg consolidated financial statements for an intermnediate parent entityis available to a
patent entity that is 4 subsidiary of an investment entity, ever if the ifivestment entlty measures.all of
tts subsidlaries at: ffur value

services related to the pazent s investment activities should net be consohdated if the submdjary 1tself
is an investrignt entity:

) Appfnafwﬂ of the equity method by Honinvestmens entity iuvestor fo-an ineiiment cnidly invester. Whien 9 pplymg
the equity method to afi a§gociate of a joinit venture, a non-ivestingint entity investor
investment entity ‘may retain the fait value measurement apphed by the associate or joint ventute to
its interests'in subsidiaries

®  Disclosares reguired. An investment
disclosures relating to investment ehtities

‘measuting all of its subsidiaties 4t fair value provides the
required by FFRS 12

These amendrments ‘ate ‘not expected to have any miagtial impact: on the. Group’s consolidated financial




wogm M W W B W DN R DR e W R OW W W

Mattonal industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Flnancisl Statemnents ‘
31 December 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4%  1ASB Standatds issued but notyet effective (continued)

Annual fraprovements o IERSs 2012-2014 Cycle

(i) Amendinents to IFRS 5-- Adds specific guidanice in IFRS 5 for cases in which an enilty reelassifies an asset
from held for sale to held for distribution or vice versa and cases in which held-Foi-disteibution accounting is
discontinued.

whethes 4 servicing “contract 4s. continuing:
conidenised intérin financial

ity Amendmenss o TFRS 7 - Additiondl guidance to clatify
involvement in a teansferred asset; and darification on offsetting disclosuze
statements.

i) Amndems 10 IAS 19 « Clatify that the high quality corpo (t¢ borids used it estimating the discount eate
for pos-t-e-f:mglggment"bene_ﬂts should be denomiinated in the same currency s the benefits to be paid:

(iv) Avendments . TAS 34 - Ciarﬁify- the meaning of 'elsewhere in the interin report’ and require a cross-
refaréfice,

These amendments are not e};pectc'di_: to have any tiaterial impact to the Group’s consolidated finaicial

statemetits:

5  Summary of significant accounting policies ‘ __
The significant accounting policies and easurements bases adopted in the:preparation of the consalidated
cial statements are summiatised below::

A

i aSis Df CONSs hdaﬁon
atemnents consolidate. those. of the. Parent Company :and all of its ‘subsidiaries.

s (including strucrured entities) over which. the Cirotp has contzol, The Greup
e Geoup s exposed to, ot has tights ‘to, variable returns from ity involvertient with
ity to affect those eturiis theough its power over the entity. Subsidiaties. ave fally
on which conttol is transfetred to the Group and they dre deconsolidated from.

‘Subsidiaties are all ¢
controls an entity whel
the. entity and has the b
consolidated from. the date o &
the daie that control ceases, The finantial statements of the subsidiaties are prepared for tepoiting dites:
which. are typically not mote than thiee months from that of th¢ Parent: Company, using ‘cons

accounting: policies: Adiusttncnts.-are made for: the effect of any significant trangactiolis ot events that occur’

betw \at date and the reporting date’of the Parent Company's financial statements: The details of the
significar qulisidiacies are set outin Note 7 to-the consolidated financial statements.

All transactions and balances between Group compariies are eliminated on consolidation, including untealised
gaing and losses on transactions: between Group companies: Where:unrealised losses on intra-group asset
sales are réversed on eonsolidation; the undetlying asset 1§ also tested for impairment from a Group
perspective. Amouiits repotted in the financidl statemients of s

7 ubsidiaries. have beeh adjusted wliere necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policles adopted by the-Group.

Ccznsoﬁdatibn._of 4 subsidiary b‘e'gihs when the Group obtains conttel ovét the subsidiaky and ceases whien:the
Group loses contralof the subsidiary. Peofi¢ or loss and othet comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquited

or disposed of duging the yeat are recognised from. the date the Group gains control, or until the date the
Group ceases o egrtrol the 'fs'_libsidi'afy, @5 apphcablég-




acquisition date. Subsequent changes tos th
asset or hability will be tecognised in aéc
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Notes to the consohdated finan

ncial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.1, Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non- controlhng interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsichary’s profit or loss-and
net assets that is not held by the Group. The Group attributes total comprehenssve iticome or loss of
subsidiaries ‘between the ownets. of the patent and the non-controlling interests based on their tespective
ownegship intetests, Losses within 4 subsidiary are atttibuted to the non-controlling interests even if that
altsin o deficitbalance,

A chiange in the ownership ifiterest of 4 suBsidiay, withouit s logs of control, is accounted fot as an equiiy
teansaction; If the group loses control over a subsidiary, it

é herecogp;izes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities-of the subsidiary
¢ Detecogriivés the_'_caﬁfif_}}i'xi‘g';amouﬁt of any non-controlling interests
- Derego‘gnizj_gis the gumulative teanslation differenices, tecorded in squity

o Regopnizes the fair value of the considetation tecefved

s Recognizes the fair value of anyinvestment rétai
v - Recognizes-any:surplus or deficit in- profit orloss

*  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive inco
to.profit or loss or retained eatnings, as appropriate, as would be requited if the Gioup has dizectly’
disposed of the related assets oF liabilities.

5.2.  Business comhinations _ _
The Group apphes the acquisition method i accountmg fot bus"' % combinations, The cons’ide'ration

are: cxpensed as incurred, Fox; each busmess combination, the couiters
in the acquitee either at fait value or at the proportionate share of 1 e acquiree’sidentifiable net-assets,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisitiofs date fair vilue of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest i the acquitee is:remeasured to fair value-at- tl -acquisition date through profit o 1oss.

The Groyp recogmses identifiable assets acquited and Habilities assumed in 2 Businéss combination. regardless
of whether, théy have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements ptior to the
acquisition. Assets acquu:ed and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisitioti-date faie values.

When the Giroup acquites a business, it assesses the financial asscts and labilities assumed for-appropriate
classification and deslgnation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic citcumstances and
pettinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation. of embedded derivatives in host

contracts by the-acquiree:

Any contlngent consideration to- be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at ‘the

e of the sontifigent consideration which is deemed to'be
TAS 39 éither in profit or.loss or as change to other
comprehcnswes income. IF the contingent considetatton is classified as equity, it should not be renieasired
until it is finally settled within other comiprehiensive ificoire. :
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

52;  'Business-combinations {continued)

Goadwill is.stated aftet separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of
the sum of a) [air value of consideration transfetred, b) the recogmsed arnount of any non conttolimg interest
in the acquis - and ) acquisition-date faie value of any existing equity interest it the acquiree, over the
acquisition-date fit-values of identifiable net assets. If the.fair values ofidentifiable net assets exceed the sum
calculated above; the excess amount (ie. pain on ‘a batgain purchiase) is tecognised in profit ot loss
immmediately.

8.3,  Goodwill and intangible assets

531 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that ate not

individusll 'dennﬂed and-sepatately recognised. See note 5.2 for information on how goodwill is initially
: s -catried @t cost less accumulated ifnpaitment losses. Refer to- note 5.13 for a

palrthent testifig procedures.

532 Intangible assets
Ideiitifiable non-mohetary asséts acquired in aé business combination and. From which future bengfits are.

expected to flow are treated a3 -intangible assets. Intangible assets comprise:of Indefeasible Rights: of Use

(IRU),

Iitarigible -assets which have a finite life ate amortized ovet their useful lives. For a‘ééjtii’f&éél nétwoik
businesses. whose. operations are governed by fixed tetm licenses, the amortisation period: is determined

‘primaily by reference to the unexpired license period and thie coniditions, for license renewal. -

'IRU are-the tights tor use 2 portion of the capacity of'a terresftial or submarine transtuission cable granted for
4fixed petiod. IRUs are recognised at cost as an asset wheni the'Group has the specific indefeasible right to

use an identified portion 6f the underlymg asset; genetally optical fibres oF dedicated wave lerigth bandwidth

anid the duration of the right is for the major past of the underlying asset's economic life. They ate. amortised
orra straight line basis over the'shorter of the expected period of.use and the life of the contract whxch ranges

‘between 10-to 15 yedrs:

5 4 Investment in: assoc;ates

ablete exett s'igniﬁn‘:a‘nt influence bt whichare néither
¢ initially recognised at cost and subsequently
ir value adjustment attributable to the Group s
luded it the: amount recogmsed g {nvestment fn

accounted for usmg the equlty method Any goodwﬂl of
share in-theassaciate is not recogrﬂscd separately and is 4
associates,

Under the ‘gquity methiod, the catiying amount of the itivestment- in-assotiates is increased ot decteased to
recogtiise the Group’s share of the profit of loss and othek cotpreliensive inéome of the associate, ad]ustcd
where necessary to ensure consmtency with the accounting policies of the. Group.

Untealised gains and losses il fianisactionis between the Gr:oup and its associates diid joint vertures dig
eliminated to-the extent of the Group’s interest in those entities. Where unrealised Josses ate eliminated, the
unideslying assetis also tested for impairment;

'The share of results of an associate is showtron the face of the consolidated statements of profit-orloss. This.
th fit ateeibutable to equity Holders of thegssotiate-and thierefore is profit after tax-and non: controlhng-
Inteigsts ih thesubsidiaties-of the associate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

54  Investment in associates (continued) )

The difference in teporting dates of the associates and the Group Is not tore than three months,
Adjustments are made fot. the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date and
. The associate’s accounting policies conform to
those.used by the Group for like tranisactions and events It similar cifcuiistances.

inplication of the ‘equity’ niethod, the Group detertnings: whether it is necessaty to recopnise: af:
phal impaitiment loss on ‘Group’s inveéstment in ifs: associate. The Group determines at eack
reporting date whether there is any-objective evidence that the investment ifi thé agsociate is impaired. 1€ this
is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amourit
 th ‘its cartying value and recognises thieamount utider a sepatate heading in the consolidated
statement of ptofit:oiloss. '

rifluence over the associate, the Group messures and recognises: any retained
iHvestment at'its fair values Any differences. between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and-the:fair value of the retained investment and progeeds from disposal 4re recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significa

5.5.  Segiientreporting ‘

The Gioup has four operating segments: Investment, building matetials, specialist engineeting and hotel and
IT services segments. In identifying these operating segmients, managementgenerally follows the Group’s
sepvice lines representing its main ptoducts and serviges, Hach of these operating segments is managed
separatély as each: requires diffeient apptoaches and other tesources.

For inznagemeny purposes, the Group uses the same ieasurement policies .as those used in its financial
staternents: In addition, dssets or lizbilities which ate not dicsttly attributable to the busiriess activities of any.

operating segmentare not allocated to a segment.

56. Revenue _

Revenue atises from the sale of goods, tendeting of setvices, ivesting activities and real estate activities. Itis
measured by refetence to:the faic value of consideration teceived ot receivable, excluding sales taxes, rebates
and teade discoutits

Revenue is recognised to/the extent that it {s probable that the ecanomic benefits will flow fo-the Group and the
revenue can be reliably: measured, regardless of when payment is made: The following specific recognition
-critetia shiould also be met before revenue i§:fecoghised;

5i6:d, Sale of goods _ . N
‘Sale of goods is tecognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards. of
‘awnegship, genetally when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods:

om thesale of ‘go,o,ds, with no significant service.obligation is tecognised on delivety.

When goads are sold togethier with customer loyalty incentives, the consideration receivable is allocated
‘between the:sale of goods-and salé of inceritives based on theit fair values. Revenue from salecofincentives is
tecognised when they are redeemed by customers in exchange for products supplied bj the Geoup.




- " X ’ 3 .. b

Mational industries Group Holdivig -~ KPSC Bnd Bubsidiariss 24

Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2015
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

56  Revenue (conitinued)

Rendering of setrvices

The Gioiip generates revenues from aftei-siles service and -
contracts:. Consideration: received for these seivices 'is m;tiaily (
recognised as revenue in the period when the.service:ds performed.

intériance, cotisultitig and construction
redl, inclpded i other liabilities and -is

In recognising after-salés service and fisifitéiiante revenues, the Gionp considers the nature of the services
ted products, based on historical experiénce.

and rhe customer’s use of the related

The ‘Group also earnis rental income from operating leases of its investment properties. Rental income s
recognised onea straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The Gioup earns fees and commission income from: diverse range of asset management, investment banking,
custody and broketage services provided to its custombers. Feeiiicome can be diyided into the following two

categories:

o Foe income earned from. services thal are pwmd’ed over @ ceriaim pmad of #inie
Fees earned for the provtsmn of services over & period, of time are accrued over that-period. These fegs
et mandgement, custody and other management fees.

it rendenng spcmﬂc advxsory services, brokerage services, equity 4nd debt
third party or ansmg Frorn negottatmg or parttmpatmg in the negotiation of 2 transaétion For

5.6.3: Intercsr and similar-income
Interest income and expenses are reported-on dn acerual basis nsing the effective/interest method.

Murabaha ineome is recogrised ona time proportion basis so as toyield a constant periodic rate oF retutn based
oir the balatice outstafiding. )

-111 come

Dividend incame, other than those frotm investments in assotiates, are recognised at the: time the right to

receive payment is established,

- 85:6.5, Revenue from sale of investrent propertics

Revenue from sale of investment properties is tecopnised on: completion of sale contiact and after
tranisferring the tisk and rewards associated with therreal estate. to the purchaser afid the amsunt of revenue

can be rg’l}ably.:me.afsured(

5.7,  Opesating expenses
Operatmg expenses -are recogtised in profit or loss upon utilisadion of the setvice or at the date of thelr

.orlgm
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icies (continued)

ttﬂbutable to. the acquisition, construction ot production of 4 quahfymg asset ‘are
italig _ dod of time that is necessaty to. complete and prepare the asset.for its intended use
or sale, Other borrowmg costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in finance
costs,

59,  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment afc stated at cost of valuatlon less dccinmulated depteciation and impaiement
losses. Depreciation is talculated to' write off the : valuation, less the estimated residual value of
property, plant and equipment, on-a stfaight-line basi estimated useful lives as follows:

Breehold buildings Losies of 50 yeats or remaining useful life
Long leaseliold propetty Lowet of 50 years or remaining lease term
Shivtt leasehold property Lease term

Property on leasehold fand 41020 years

Plant and machinety 1 to. 15 years

Motot vehicles. 21010 years .

Furniture and equipment 4 to 10 yeats

Any mcrcasa ansmg oh tevaluation is credited ditectly to other comprehensive -iticome as “revaluation
resefve” except to the extent where the increase reverses a revaluation decrease related to the sanie dsset for
which a decrease in valuition has: prevmus]y been; recognised as an expenss, it is-credited to the conpolidated
staterient of income. Any décrease in the het cattying amount atising on revaluation.is charged direetly to the
consohdated statemetit of income, ‘ot chatged to the reviluation reserve to the extent that the decteage is
telated to an increase for the same asset-which was:previ usiy tecorded as a credit to the tevalustion; surpliis.

Depr ldtion on' the te-valued. propesties is charged to the consolidated stiterment of income over their
remaining estimated wseful lives and.an amount equivalent to the excess depreciatic e relatmg t6 the
increase in carrying amount is transferred each yeat from the revaluatiof tesetve to ketained: earhings,

No. depreciation is provided on freehold land. Properties in the course of construction for production ot
administeative f uLpioses ate carr‘ed it cost, less any recognised impaiement loss. Depteciation of these assets,
which is on th rty assets, cammences wWhen the assets arerready for their intended

usg

5.10.1. Finance lease

The: economic owtiership of'a leased asset is transferred to the lessee 1F the lessee bears substantially all the
risks and rewdrds of ownership of the leased asset: Whre the Group is » lessee in this type of arranigement,
the related assetis recognised at the:inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset o, if lowee, the
present value of the lease paymentsplus incidental paymetits, if. any: A catresponding amount is recognised as
a finance lease Iiabllit}r Leases of land and buildings are classified separately and-are splitinto 2 land and a
building element; in accordarice with: the relative fair values of the leasehold interests at the daté the asset s
recopnised -ini'ti#iﬂ}r.

See note 5.9 for the depreciation methods and useful lives for assets held under firiance lease, The
corresponding finance lease liability is tediced by lease payiments net of finatice chatges. Tlie interest

of leage:payments represents a constant propostion of the outstanding capxtal balance and is chatged to profit
orloss, as finance costs over-the petiod of:the lease.
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5 Summary of significant acéounting policies (continued)
5.10, Leased assets (continued)

5:10.2.. Opetating lease

All other leases ate treated as operating leases. Where the Group is a lessee, payments- ofr operating lease
agregments’are recogmsed As afi expelse on 3§ straightdme basis overithe lease-term-except whete the fease
efrng are oneétous in which case the provision is made for the net present value of the Pprobable hablhty
Assotiated costs, such asimaintenance and insurance; ate expensed a5 fncurred,

541  lovestment piopesties
Investrent properties-ate properties held to eatn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, arid e accounted
for using tlie fait value'model,

; Subseqiiently; ihivestment
it by independent real estate
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in fair value-are-taken to:
dated statément of profit or Joss.

lavestment: properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction ¢

Investmeént properties- ave’ de-recognised when either’they hiave been disposed of or when the investment
property is permaneritly withdiawn froth use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gaing or losses on the te i or. disposal of ‘an. investment: property are recognised in’ the
consolidated statement of incotne: year of retiterent or disposal

operty only when there Is a change in use, For # transfer from.
the decmed coist for: Subsequent accountmg is the fajr value-

Transfets are fade to or from nvestiien
ifivestment property to owner—occupted propj
at the date of change in vse, If ¢
accounts for such property iri ac
the date.of change inuse.

512, I:"‘n'p‘i%ii:rriéht testing of goodwill and fion financial assets

For impaitment assessment purposes, assets are. grou "ed at the EOWest laVe!s for which there ate largely
'indepcndent cash inflows (cash - generating units)

impairiiént and some are tested at cash—generatmg ufiit level, Goodvwill is allocated tor those cash- gcneratmg..
units that'are expected to benefit from synetgies of the related business'combination and represent the lowest:
level within the Group at which management maohit

Cash-generaﬂng units to which goodwill has been allocated: (dete ma
equivalent to:its operating segments) ate tested for itnpairment 4t ledst annually All other individudl assets or

cash—generattng units.ate tested for impairment whenever events-or changes in- circumstances indicats that:the
caitying amount may hot be recoverable,

An impairment loss is ‘tecognised for the amount by which the asset’s or. cash-generating unit’s cagrying
ampunt exceeds its:recoverable.amount, which is the higher of fair value léss casts to sell and ¥alue-n-ise. To
defermine ‘the value-in-use; management cstimates expected futare eashi flows fromi the agset ot each cash-
generating unit and det &5 -2 ‘suitable interest rate it order to caleulate the present value of those cash
flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures ate-directly linked to the Group’s latest apptoved
budget, adjusted as necessaty to exclude:ghis effects of futiuee reotganisations dnd asset enhancements.
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5 Summary of significarit accounting policies (continued)

812 Impairment testing of goodwill and non financial agsets (continued)
Discount:factos ate detertmined individually: for each asset or cash-generating unit and reflect management’s
assessment of tespective risk-profiles, such as market and dsset-speeific tisks factors.

Impairment losses Eok- ”ash»generaung uhits reduce fitst the cartying-amount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-generatmg u fy- remalmng impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With thie exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed fot indications that an
meaument loss pteviously recognised fay no longer exist, An: imnpaitment chargeis reversed if the cash-
generating uait’s: recoverableamount exceeds its careying amount,

k-

513, Pinancial instruments

5.13.1. Recognition, initial measurement and detrecognition

Finangcial asset neial liabilities ate recopnised when the Group bekomes:a patty to the contractual
provlslons of'th il instrument and are measured initidlly at fair value ad)usted by transactions costs,
except for those earfied at fair value through profit or loss which ate measured initially at fair value,
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and Anancial labilities:are desceibed below.

All ‘regular way purchases and-sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or:sell the asset. Regular way putchases ot sales are purchases or'sales of ﬁﬂanczal
assets that require delivery of assetswithin the time frame generally established by regulation ot convention in

thig market place.

A fnancial asset {or; where applicable a part of financial asset or part of group of similar financial assets) is
prinatily derecagnised when:

¢ tights 1o veceive cash flows fron the assets have expired;

o the Group has transferred its nghts to tegeive cash flows from thesisset or has assumed an obligation to

pay - the received cash flows in full without material delay to a. third party under a ‘pass through’

arrangemert; arct either

(@) the Grouphas tiansferred substantla}]y all the risks and vewards of the assét or

() the Group has rigither transfétred nor-retained substantially allirisks and rewards of the asset, but has
‘teansferred control of-the asset.

Whetr the Group has tiatisferred its rights 10 feceive cash flows fiom an asset or has entered into 2 pass-:
through agrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has tetained the risks and rewards of ownetship.

When {t-has:neithier tansfersed nog retained substanua]ly all thie risks aid rewatds of the asset, not transferced
control of the asset, the Group: continues to. tecognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing invelvement. In that case, the Group dlso recognises an assoclated liability. The transferred asset
and.the associated liability are measuted on 4 basis that geflects the rights and obligatioris that the Group hias
retained.

A financial Liability s derec 'gmsed when the obligition under the liability is discharged "or cancelled ot
expires. When an existing . _ | by anather fiom the samie lender on substantfall
different: terms, or the terms of an existing hablhty ate ‘substantially modified, such. an exchanggé or
modification is treated 45 4. derecognition-of the original ability and the recopnition of a-new liability, and'the
differerice in the respective cattying amolinfs is recoghiised in: congolidated statetiient of profit o loss.




n

Mational industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries 25
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 Becembyer 2048

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5,13, Financial insttuments {continved)

5:13.2. Classification and §¢
For the purpose - ‘of subsequen
hedging instruments ate classifie

eqaeiitrieasurement of financial assets _
easurernent, financial agsets othet than those designated and effective as
to the following categoties upon initial recognition:

* loans and receivablés

* financial assets at fair value through profitot loss (FVIPL)
* held-to-maturity (HTM) investments

* available-forssale (AFS) finaricial assets.

All ﬁnanmai assets. except for those at FVIPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each- repotting
date to {dt - whethiet there'is any ‘objective evidence that 2 financial asset or-a group of financial assets is
1_m_pa1fe Ditfferent ciiterda to‘det;:r‘rmne.,unpawmem._ate apphed for each category of financial assets; which
are-described below.

Al material incotme and expenses relating'to financial-assets that are recognised int profit-or loss are presented
within income from investments, interest:8& other income or under 4 separate headmg iti the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

»  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables ate non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active-market. After-initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effec
interest rate method, less: prowsion for impairment. Discountiii is omitted: whete the-effect 6F discount
imnmaterial, They site included in’ current assets, except for ranirities greates than 12 months after the end of
thie. tepotting period, These are classified as non-current asses.

Tndividually sxgmﬁcant teceivables are considered for impaitient when they ace-pist due ot when other
objective evidence fs received. thata specific counte:party will default, Receivables that are.not considered to
be individually unpaued are rewewed for u‘npalrment ifi groups -which-are detcrmned by refererice to the

estimate is then based on recent. Eustoncal counterparty default rates for each :denuﬁed group

The Group categorises loans and receivables into Following categoties:

Mutabsha is an Islamic teatisaction involving the purchase and immediaste sale of an asset at cost plus an
agreeci profit. The amotunt due is settled on a defetred payment basis. When the credit tisk of the transaction
13 attﬂbutable to iial Institution; the amount dué under Miirabalia contracts is classified as a Murabaha
‘the cr_cdit, gisk of transaction is attributable to counterparties-other than banks
amount-due is. clagsifiedias Miitabaha receivable,

and financial mstltutions,__

Mutabahia teceivibles which arise from the Group's financing of long-term transactions on an Islamic basis
ate classified as Murabaha teceivables otiginated by the Group and ate carried at the principal amount less
provmon for-credit tisks to meet any de Filug; Thigd paty expedses such as legal fees, incutred in
giantinga Musabaha aré teeated as patt of thé éost oF the transaction.

All Mutabaha :teceivables ate recognized when the legal tight to coritrol the use of the underying -dsset is
transferred to the customer.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.13. 'Fin_a_ﬁcial insteuments (continued)

5132, Classification and subsequent measurement of financial d4sets (continued)

®  Wakalzinvestments o

Woakala is an agreement wherely the Group provides 4 sum of money to a financial institutioh under an

agericy arrangement, who invests it according to specific conditions inxetun for a fee. The agent is obliged to
return the amount is case of:default, negligence’or vivlation of any tetms and conditions of the Wakala,

»  Loans and advances -
Loans and advances ate financial assets originiated by the: Group by providing:money divectly to the bosfower
that have fixed ot determinable payments and ase not quoted in anuetive inagkes '

*  Bank balanses cash and Short term deposits 7 |
Cash on hand: and:demand deposits -are classified under bank balances and cash and short term. deposits

represent deposits'placed with financial institations with a maturity of less than one year,

®  Recoivables and othe Haneal asiels

Trade receivable are stated at otiginal invoice amount less allowance for any iincollectible amounts. An
estimate for doubtful debts is made whien collection of the full amount is nio longer ptobable. Bad debts ate
wtitten off ag incurred,

Loans and. fecelvables which are not categotised unider any of the abdve are classified as “Other:
teceivables/Other financial dssets”

*  Financial assets at FYTPL

Classification of investinents -as: financial -assets at FYTPL depends on how minagement: motitor the:
petfotmance of these investments. Investments at FVTPL are either "held for Hading" or "designated” as
such on iriitial recognition. '

Tlie Gzoup classifies investments-as trading if they ar&acquired principally for ﬁhgﬁ;ﬁpti_rpmc of selling or-are a

it of a portfolio of identified financial instriments that ate mansged together-and for-which there is
nice of a tecent actual pattern:of short term profit. taking: When they are niot classified ag held for tiading
Ut hiave readily available reliable fair values and the changes in fair valugs are fepotted as pait of statement of
profitor loss in the management accounts, they are ds désighated at FVTPL upon: initial recagnition.

All deriv tive finanicial insteuments fall into-the category of FVIPL, except fotthose designated and effective
as hedging instroments, for which-the hedge accounting requitements-apply.

Assets in this categoty are measured at fair value with gains or losses ri:c‘o‘gnis&d m prdﬁjf or ' loss. The Fait
values of financlal assets in this category are determined by efeience to active market transactions or. using a
valuation technique whete no active matket exists. Assets in this category ave classified as current zssets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they ave elassified a5 non-curtent,

s _E'TM investments _

HTM investments are on-detivative finanicial wsets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
other than loans'and recéivables. Investments: ate classified as FHITM if the Group has-the intention and ability
to hold them until marusdty.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
513, Financial instrumenits (con-tfit;tim.d)
5.13.2. Classification and subsequent-measurementof financial 4ssets (ao’;_'*-ijﬂtm&d)

» HTM investments {continued)

HTM investments ateireasured. subsequentiy at-dmottised cost using the effectiveintetest method, If there is
abjective evidence that the investment is impaited, determined by reference to exteinal credit-ratings, the
financial asset 15 mcasuted at'the present valie of estimated future cash flows. Any changes € the cattying
amount C 1, including impaitment losses, are rccognise in: profit oz loss, The Group cutrently
his niot classified efé in to this category.

¢ AFSfinancial assets.
AFS. financial assets are non-derivative finaticial assets that are either designated to: this category of: do not
quahfy for inclusion in any of therother citegoides of fitiancial assets:

Financial assets whose fait value-cannot. be réliably'measured are cartied at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Impairment charges ate recegmsed ‘in profit of loss: All other AFS financial assets ace measured at faic value,
Gaitis. aud losses ite tecognised in other comiptehensive ificoimeg ahd repotted within the fait value reserve
for unpaﬂ:ment losses, and fore[gn exchange djffelences on monetary assets, Whlt’:h are

: T available for sale is lmp  case ef equxty mvestments clasmﬁed
a8 ﬁnancxal asSetsgaV'ailable folsale, objective evidence would: include asigrificant or- prolonged decline:in the
fair value: of the equity investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is
investmetit and ‘prolonped’ agdinst the period in which the Faf¥ va
there 1 evidence of. imfp t, the cumulative loss is removed from oither comprehenswe income - and
tecognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Reversals ofimnpairment lossés are recopnised in other comprehensive iicome; except for financial assets that
ate debt securities whicl are tecognised in profit or loss only if thereversal can be objectively related 4o-an
event occuttitig after the irnpairment loss was recognised.

AFS fmancial assets are included in non-cutrent assets unless the investment:matures or management-intends
to.dispose of it within 12 months of the.end of the repotting period,

5.13.3. Classification and subsequentmeasurernent of financial liabilfties:
The Group’s financial liabilities include teust certificates issued, borrowings, leasing creditors, due to barks,

trade payables atid other liabilities s and dérivative financial instruments,

The subseguent:measurement of financial liabilities depends on: theit classification as follows:
. Finan‘cf‘a! Efébilities othet r)ban at fafe Vajue rbrdugh pmf"k or Jbs-s(FVTPL')

habxhttes o,ther than at FVTPL into the fo!lowmg categoneS'
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
513, Financial instruments (continued)
5:13.3, Classification and siibsequent measurement of financial liabilities {continued)

o Borrowings
All botrowings aié subsequenﬂy measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate tnethiod. Gains

and losses ate récognised in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as‘through the effective interest rate method: (EIR) atriortisation process.

o  Wakali p@qb_l.{,_r‘ ' _ . -
Wa’kaia payables: represent shott:tefm, bottowings undet Islamic prnciples, whereby the Group receives
funds for the purpose of financing its investment activities and ate stated at amortised cost.

s Miurababafiiance payables
Murabaha finance payables represent amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased

under murabaha arrangements. Murabaha finance payables are stated at the gross amount of thie: payable; niet of
defecred finance cost: Deferred fnance cost is expensed on a time appotiionment basfs taking/into account the
borrowing rate attributable and the balance outstanding, :

o Liary finaning

I]ara finance payable etiding with ownershlp is an Islamic financing acrangeinent through which 4 financial
ingtiution prov;des finance to P an- asset' by way of renting the asset ending with transferting its
ownership. This ijata finance payab stated at fhe gross amount of the payabie, niet of deferred finance
cost. Deferred finance costs are expensed on 4 fime: apporticiment basss taking into'account the botrowing

#ate attributable and the balance outstanding,

o Laasing and hiye puribast payables
Assets acquired under finance leases and hire purchase artangements are capitalised and. the related liabilities,
it uded in habﬂmes Fmance chatges in respect of such Liabilities are-chatged

& Aviounis payables and other f nancial fiabitities
Linbilities ate recognised for amounts to be paid iri the future for goods or services received, whethier billed:
~the-sapplier or not, and classified as trade payables. Financial lisbilities othét than at FVIPL which are

rised under any of the aboveare clissified as “Othet financial liabilitles™

. ' tlvc financial instruments that are not designated and effective as hedging instturients-are accounted
for at FVTPL.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an insteument’s fait value that are repotted i profit
ot loss, ate included within finance costs orother income.

o Pinancfal liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL ate-eithet held for trading or designated as such oninitial recognition.

FVTPL, ate carried subsequently:at. fair value with gains
financial instraments thatare not designated and effective
as hedging instrattients 4re accounted for &
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
5.13. Financial insteuments (continued)
5.13.3, Classtfication and subsequent measturement of financial liabilities (continyed)

. Detivative financial instruments :
Whete: the Group. uses, derivatdve: -_ﬁﬁmicia‘l it such ds. interest rate swaps to mitigate its. xisks
associated. with interest tate fuctuations, such detivative financial instruments-ae initially tecognised at cost,
being the fair value on the date on which a derivative: contract is entered into, and are subsequently re-
mezsured at fair value, The far value of 4 dérivative is the equivalent of the untealised gain of loss from
miatking to market the detivative ising valuation quotes provided by financial institutions, based on-prevailing

‘market information, Detivatives, if any, are carried-as assets when the fair value is positive and 4s ligbilities
when the fait valueis negative, The: Group does not adopt hedge accounting, and atiy realised and unrealised
(from changes iy Fair value) gain or losses are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of-piofitor
loss.

allowance for-impairment. The calculation takes,
includes transaction costs and fees that ate an

into account, any pren_uum ot disco..unt on acqp
integtal part of the effective interest.rate;

es are: offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement
rrently enforceable legal tight to offset the recognised atnounts and there is
an intention to settle on g niet basis, to realise the assets and settle:the Habilities sitmultaneously.

Finahcial assets and ﬁnanmal_

5.13.6. Faic valiie of financial instruments
The fair value of fnancial instruments that are traded in actiiie fratkets at each repotting date iy determi

by teference to-quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask. {price foi:

shott positions), without any deduiction fot trahsaction costs.

For financial insttuments not traded i an active market, the fait value is determined using appropriate
valudtion: techmquea Such techmques may include using recent arm’s length matket transactions; reference to

the custent fair-value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow aralysis ot

othervaluation maodsls,

An analysis: of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured. ate:

provided in Note:36.

514, Inventories
Inventoties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost includes all expenses ditectly

atttibutable to the manufacturmg process as well a5 suitable portions of reldted pioducuon overheads, based

on torknal o

. capacity. Costs .of otdinarily interchangeable items are assigned using the weighted
-average cost formula.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling priceiin thie ordinary course of business less any applicable selling
‘expenses.
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515, Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Shate capital represents the nominal value of shates that have been {ssvied and paid up.

Share premmm includes any premiums réceivéd on issue of share capital. Any ttansaction costs associated.
with the issuing of shazes aré deducted from share premium.

ise appropriations of cutrent and prios period profits in accotdance

Statutory and voluntary resérves
es”law and the Parent Company’s atticles of association.

with the requirementsof the com

Other components of equity include the following:

* foreign cutrericy translation réserve — comprises foreign currency tanslation differences afising from the
tranislation of financial statements of “the: Group’s foreipn | ¢ into KD 4nd the Gioup’s share of
foreign currency translatmn tesetves shown in the assocLates statement of ﬂnanc:lal posmon

- carrent and’ prioy period retdined profits. All transactions with owners of the
separately within equity,

Dividend disteibutions payable to equity.shatehéldérﬁ areincluded in other Habilities when the dividends have
been approvedin a general meeting,

5.16. Treasuty shates

Treasuty shares consist of the Parent C
and not yet reissued ot caricelled, The tren
method, the weighted average cost of the sh

ny’s own issued shates that have been reacquired by the Group
- shares are accounted for using the costnethod: U

s teacquired is chigged to'a conited dceouit i équity

When the treasuty shates are teissued, g separale accomntiin equity, (the “gain oty §
treasury shaves.teserve”), which is not d.istrlbutable Any redlised losses are chargec e Saine 4 t to:
the extent of the. credit balance on that decount. Any excess losses aie chatged to tetained earnings: then to
the voluntary teserve and starutory teséive. No cash dividends ate paid on these shates. The issue of stock
dividend shiares increases the numbet of treasuty shates: propottionately and tedijees the #erage cost per

share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares;

517. Provisions, contingent assets and contmgent hablhtms

Provisions are recognised when the Group has 4 presentlegal ox consfitictive obligation as & tesult of a past
event, it is probable that'an outflow of ecotiornic resources will be required frorm the Group and amounts can
begstimgted rehabiy ‘Timing ot amount of the outflow may still be uncettain.

the ea i, based on the
available at the tepoiting date, mcludmg the #isks and uncertainties associated with the
pte it abhga oft, Where there are a number of similar obligations, thie likelihood that an outflow will be
required in sel determined by ‘consideting. the class of obfigations as a whole: Provisions ‘ate
discountéd to t es, where the time value of ‘money is material.

Contingent assets are not tecognised in the consolidated fnaricial statetnerits, but ate disclosed when an

inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised dsi: thig-eonsolidated statemient of fiancial position, butate disclosed
unless the possibility of anoutflow of tesolitees embodying economic benefits'ds remote,
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

518, Foteign currency translation

5.18.1, Functional and presentation cugtentcy

The: consolidated finangial statements ate presented in cusrency Kuwzit Dinar (KD), which i also the
funigtional cutrency of 1 ‘patent.company. Each entityin the Group determisies its own Functional cuitency
and items included in the financial statemenits of ¢ach enuty ate medsured bising that functional cutrency.,

5.18.2. Forelgn cutency transactlons and balances )

Foteign currency transactons are translated into the functiotial crténcy of the respective Group enuty, using
the exchange rates previilingat the dites-fthe tansactions: (spot exchange tate). Foreign exchange gams and
losses resuitlng from the settlement of
dentrminated in foreign cugrency at yeat-end exchange rates are recognised in profit oi‘loss. Non:monetary
iteims are not retranslated at year-end and ate measured at historical cost (teanslated using the exchange rates

at the transaction date), except for non-monetaty itéts medsured at fair value-which are translated-using the:

exchange rates at the date when falf value was determmed Transhtion difference on noti- -monetary asset
clagsified 45, “fair value: through profit or loss” is reported a4
cofsolidated statement:of income and “available for sale’ are

fair value reserve within other comprehensive income,. '

ported 48 part of the cumulative change in

§.18.3. Foreign operations
In the Group’s financial sti
curtency other than the KT dre thanglated:]

ments; 21l assets, labilities and tiansactions of Geoup entities with a funictional
ito KD upon consolidation.

On consolidation, assets and-liabilities have been ttanslated ifto KD at the closmg fate 4t the. rﬂportmg date:

y

g0 .
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translatcd into KD at the closmg rate. Int.ome and expe" $€§ have been

to other comprehensive. ihcomeé: and te sed in the foreign curtency ttanslation teserve:in
disposal/liquidation of.a foreign operation, the telated cumulative teanstation differences recoprised in equity
ate teclassified to profit.orloss and are recognised as part of the-gain orloss on dispasal/lignidatica,

5.19.  End of service indemnity ]
ent and iis Tocal subsidiaties provides end of service benefits to its employees. “The entit
bene fits s based upon-the employees’ final salaty.and length of service, subject to the completiot

ser 'ned in accordance wzth relevant labour laW and the employees canuacts The exp gete '_S,;_ts of;_t_h‘ﬁsfé

gntto these

toits Kuwaiti national employees, the Group mukes contibutions to the Public Tistmtion for
Social Secumy calculated a3 a percentage of the employees’ salaties. The Group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which ate expensed when due,

5:20, Pensions (Related to the foreign subsidiaties)
Contributions are paid to both defified benefit and defined contidbution pension schemes in accotdance with
the tecommendations of indépendent actuaties and advisots,

Contributions to defined conttibiition schemes are charged to the consolidated'staterment of profit ot loss on
an acciual basis;

h transactions and from the remeasutement of ‘monetary iterrs

art of the fair value gain or loss in the.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.20. [Pensions:(Related to the foreign subsidiaries (continued)

 tespect of defined benefit schemies a defined beriefit liability (or asset) is recognised in the cosisolidated
ement of fiiancial position] 4nd it is calculated as the present value of the defined beénefit obh ition using
he: projected unit credit method plus any unrecognised actuarial gains ot losses less any past service cost not
recogmsed less the matket-value of the plan assets.

of current service cost (usmg the: projected unit credit method), a netinterest cost on the dxscouna:ed deﬁned
benéfit obhgauon net of the expected retutn on plaii assets, recognised-actiarial gains and losses, recognised
past setvice costs and the effect of curtailments ofséttlements,

Actuatial gains ot lesses:are recopnisedin full in other comprehensive income:
5.21.  Shatre-based Payment

Certain. eriiployees of the Group receive remunetation in the form of share-based payment transactivns,
wheteby the employees render setvices in exchange for shares (“equity settled transactions™).

Eguity-sestled transactions

The:cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured under the intrinsic valae method Under
this method, the cost i determined by comparmg the period value of the company’s shares with
the issue piice: The cost of equity settled transactions is réce sd, fopéther with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the petiod in which the petformance condifions:are -ﬁ.llﬁiled ending on the date on-which the
shares vest;

5.22. “Taxation.

221, National Labour Support T
NLST is calculatediin acco
af 2006:at.2.5% of taxable
listed associates-and cash di

_aw No. 19:0£2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No, 24
of' t of the Group. As  per law, allowable deductions include, shate of profits of
ods fom listed compinies which are sub]ected to NLST.

5.22.2, Kuwait Foundation for'the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution:to KFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of:the Group inaccordarice with the modified
calculation bised on the Foundation’s Board of Ditectors” tesolution, which states that incotne fom Kuvwalt
shateholding associates and subsidiaries and transfer fo statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for
the year when determining the contribution,

Con butibn to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group in ‘actordance with the Misilstry of
Fisance resolution Neos 58/2007 effective from 10 Decétnber 2007,

For the year-ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, the Parent Company has noliability towaeds NLST, KFAS
and Zakat due to tai losses incutred, Undet the NLST and Zakat regulatlons no catty forward of losses to
the Ruture years not any carry back to prior yeats is permitted.

5.22.4, iﬁrbbo!dmg taxes

The Group is exempt: from income taxation and withholding taxes in Kuwait However, in some
jurlsdlctions ittvestmen Hincome and capital gains are subject:to withholding tax:deducted at the sotrce of the
itticome. Withholdin i _ 1 for the amgint of withholding tax deducted of the source of
the income and isno _51gnzﬁcant for the Group: The Group presents the w:thholdmg tax. separately from the
gLoss mvestment income in the consolidated statement of profit or foss. Forthe purpose of the consolidated
tof cath Plows, cash irn s th investiments ate presented net of withholding: taxes, “whei

apéﬁéﬁb‘lﬁ
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5 ‘Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

522, "Faxation (continued)

5.22.5. Taxition on ovetseds subsidiati _
Taxation on overseas: subsidiaties is ca he, basis of the tax rates applicable and presciibed

according to: the prevailing laws, regulations and Instructions of the countries where these subsidiaries
operate.

Deletred. taxation: is provxcied in respect of all temporaty differences. Deférfed tax assels ate recognised in
tespect of vnutilised tax losses when itis probable that the loss will be used agginst future profits.

523. Cash and cash equivalents

For the.purpose of the consolidated. statement of cash flows, cash.and ¢ash equivalents corisist of cash and
bank balafices, short-tertm deposits,: murabaha and wakala investments and short term highly liguid
investments matuting within three months from the date’ of inception less due to banks and blocked bank

balances.

824, PFiduciarty assets -
Assets held in trust of in & fiduciaty Capacity are not trested a3 assets of the Group and dccordingly are:not

included:in these consolidated financial statements.

- of the Grmup s c0nsohdated ﬁnanmal statements rcquu:es management to make judgmerts,

: 1 _ fect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and

the disclosure of contmgent liibilities, ot the end of the reportmg period However uncertainty about these

' id esnmates couid result in outcomes that requite a matetial adjustmient to the catrying amount
d'in future petiods.

‘61, ‘Significant management judgments
In the pracess of applying the Group's accounting policies; management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most sigriificant ‘effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

staternents:

611  Classification of financial instiinnents
]udgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management's intention at

acquisition. Such judgement determities whether it is subsequently measured at cost, amortised.cost of at fais
value and if the changes in fairvalue of instrniments:are reported i the statement of profit of loss-or profit or
loss and other comprehensive income:

The Group classifies fimaricial assets as held for teading if they are acquired primatily for the purpose ofshort
term profit making,

Classification of finandial assets as fair value through profit ot loss depends on how management monitors
the performance of these financial assets. When they are vt classified as held for trading but have readily
available faie values and: the changes in fair values are reported as paik of profit 6r loss in the mandgement

‘Accounts, théy are classified 4s Fair value through profit o 10ss,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Sighificant management jfudgem:e'ﬁfsis .and ..es‘tim‘atian uncertainty
(continued)

6.1.  Significant-management judgments (continued)

641 Classification of financial inseruments (cotitinued)
Classification of assets as loans and receivables depends on the nature of the asset. If the Group is vriable to
trade these financial assets due o inactive: market ‘and the intention is to receive fixed or: determinable
ns and receivables.

All.other financial.assets are classified as availdble for sale.

2. (Classification of teal estate :
anagement deeides on acquisition of a real estate whetheg.it should be classified as teading or investment

‘propetty. Suchi judgement at acquismen determines whether these properties are subsequently measured at

cost of net réalisable value whichever is lowet or fair valte and if the changes ity fair value of these propetties
ate reported in the statement of \pr,oﬁt_ of loss.

The Group classifies property as trading propetty. if it is acquired prineipally for sdle in the otdinary course of
blsiness.

“The: Group classifies propesty as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income or for capital
appteciation, or fot undetermined fatmrerse,

) 6:1.3 Control assessment

her deterrmnmg cont:rol management cons;ders whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the
Feturas fotitself. The dssessment of relevant activites

-and abﬂ:ty to_ use its powen to affect vatiable return réquites considerable judgetment.

6:1.4, Equity method accoummg for entities iti which the Group holds less that 20% of the voting

Lights
Management has assessed the level of mﬂucnce that the Group has over. its matetial associate, Mabanee
cant: mfluence even though tha share holdmg in this

6.2. Estimates uf
Information about estimates and assumptions that: have the most significant- effect on recognition and
measutement of assets, Habllities, income and expenscs is provided’below: Actualresults may be substantially

differerit,

6.21 Impairment of goodwilland other intangible assets

The Group determines ‘whether goodwill and intangible assets are linpaired at least on an annual bagls.
requires an estimation of the valuein use of the cash-generatmg ihits to: which the gaodwﬂi is allocated.
‘Estimating the value in-use tequires:the Group to make-an estimate: of the expected future cash: flows: from
k cash—generatlng unit afid 4lso 16 €lioose d suitable discount raterih orderto calculate the present valie of

those cash flows,

Dutlng the 2015 the Group recognised an impaistment loss of KD2,010 thousand (2014: KD Nil thousand)
‘agalnst certain intangible assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

6.2, Estimates uncertainity (contitiued)

6.2.2. Impairment of associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recoghise any
unpau-ment loss on the Group’s investment in ‘its associated compames at each reporting date based on
existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the
Group calculates the amount of lrnpan?ment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
assodiate. and its tdtrying'value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of profit o loss.

rroup recognised an impairment logs of I(Dél? thousand (2014: KD2,171 theusand)
ssaiciates.

During the 20
against ihvestmeérnts

6.2.3. Impairment of available forsale equity investmerits
The Group treats available for sale. equity {ivestmeiits 48 imipaired whien -there has been a., s1gnrﬁcant or

prolonged decline in the fair value helow its cost ot where-other objective evidence of i impairment exists: The

determination of-whatds “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judement,
g P 1 | Judgm

Duting the 2015 the Group recogmsed an impairinent loss of KD9,851 thousand (2014: KID28,205
thougand) against available for:sale investments.

fvables
tipdically items classified as loans and receivables (including wakala

g and +

investments note 22) to assess whether a provision for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated

58, T parficular, considerable judgement by managemetit 18 requifed it the estitnation
Tutifre cash ﬂows when: determuﬁng the leve] of provlsions ,required Such esﬂmates

‘uncertamty

Dutinig: the 2015 the Group has tecognised impaiement losses 'of K323 thousand (2014: KD1,441
thousand) againstloans and recefvables.

6.2.5; Impz ezt "?fnvemarfés
Iivefitorigs 4
an esfimate is made of thelr net reahsable i

F"" mdmdua]ly mgnlﬁcmt zmounts" his estimation is
petformed on an individual basis, Amiow not individually s1gn1ﬁcant but ‘which are old o
obsolete, ate assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree.of
ageing ot obsolescence; based on histotical selling:prices:

Maniagement estimates the net-tealisable values of inventories, ta]dng into aceoutt the tost reliable evidence
available at each reporting date. The futute realisation of these inventoties may be affected by future
technology or other matket-diiven charges that may reduce fatibe selling prices.

Af the financial position: date, gross inventoties were KD35,414 thousand (2014 KD33,571 thousand), with
provision for old and obsolete itiventoiies of K11,360: thousand. (2014: KD1,548 thousand). Aay difference
between thi ameunts actually eealised in -future petiods and the amount expected will be tecogtised in the
consolidated statement of piofitor loss.




6,2.7.  Fair value of financial instruments
Managernent apply valuation techniques to. determin

-actual liability which mmy or may not ari
may substanitially differ from the actual g
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6 Significant management judgements and '“;;stumatlon unscertainty
(Continued)

62  Estimates uncertainty (continued)

6.2 6 Usefa] Lives.of deprecmb! 7 amortisable assets

' _ e tiseful lives of . deprecxabie/' amottisable assets at each reporting date,
gpected utility of ‘the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and oth

obsolescence that may change the utility of cettain softwate; intangible assets and propetty, plant -

equipment.

ait value of fisancial instruments whers. dctive
market quotes ate not, available. This requites menagem ) develop estirdates and assumptlons based on:
mitket, mputs, using-observable data that rarket amcipaﬂts ‘would use in pricing the instrument. Where
such data is-not.observable, management uses its best:estimiate. Estimated Fair values of flnaticial instetments
friay vaty from the:sctual picesthat would be-achieved in ad drm’s lenigth transaction at the reposting date.

6.2:8. Revalpation of fnvestmeit properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in faie valie being recognised i
consolidated statement of profit ot loss. The Grovip engaged independent valuation specialists
faie values and the valuets have used valuation techhicques. to aztiveat these fait values. These
values of investment propewes may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved iri % ani’s lehgth
transaction ac the teportinig date.

6.2.9. Defiried béhefits obligation

Management’s estimate of the defined benefit obligation s based on nuimber of citical underlymg'
assumiption such as standard rates of inflation, miortality, discount farg anidl anticipatiohi of futute perision
ificreases: Vatiation in these assumiptions may significantly impact the defined benefit obligations and amount
and the annual defined benefits expenses (as analysed in.note 33).

6.2.10. Provision forforeigt taxation
The Group has siude: provision for potetitial tax liabiliies ‘which may afise on. foreign ‘income. These
ptovisions have been assessed based oninformation avaslable to managament as of the repornng date The
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7 Subsidiary companies

7.1 Details. of the Group’s matetial consolidated subsidiaties.at the end of the teporting period ate as follows:

Country ‘ol

registra Proportion of
place of business Nature of business owrnershlp Interest: :
31 Dec: 31 Dat. ;
2015 2014 s
o % |
Bl Durra Nationat Real Estate —KSC {Closed) Kuwait Real Estate Ryl a7+
National Combined Industries Holding _
Company for Energy KSC (Closed) Kuwait Investments 96" 96"
Peari National Holdmg KSC (Closed) Kuwait investments 9g*- ggt
o . Kuwait Invastrrients a7+ g7+
Guernsey Specialist Engingering 100 100
up Ple United Kingdom  Specialist Engineering 100 100
Proclad Group Limited UAE Specialist Engineering 100, 106
NI Group (Bahrain) EC Bahrain “Ihivéstitients 100 100
Eagle Proprietary Investments Limited UAE Investmerits 100 100
Pearl Offshore Enterpiises Limited BVI “Investments Holdings 100 100
Denham Investment Limited Cayman 1slands lnvestments 85 85
Ikarus Petroleum Industries Company - KPSC Kuwait Pétrotatim 72 72
National Indugtries Company - KPSC Kuwait Iinchistridl 54 51
Noor Financlal Investment Colipany — KRSC Kuwait investments 51 51

B RS M G BN BN DN NN SE N OB SN M N XY BN N B BT AF BN M B W W

* The Group’s holding of these subsidiazies are 100% and the remaining stake is held by notninées on its
behalt. ' '

7.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests
The Group includes:three snbsidiaries, with materal non- -conteolling interests (NCI):

Proportion:of

ewinership Interests
N andvoting rights : ‘ _
Name held by the NCI Profit allocated to NG Accumulated NCI
31 Dee. 31 Dec: 31 Dee. -31 Dec: 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
‘Kb 090 KD ‘00 KD“000 K000
Noor Financial Investment
Gornpany - KPSG (NFY) 49% 49% 1,938) 2349 aTEOT 48377
Natiohal Industries Company =
KFSC (NIG) 4% 48% 3,921 3418 58802 51444
{karus:Petroletim Industries
Company.— KPSC (IP) 28% 2805 1,896 2,831 20471 #1123
Individual immaterial subsidiaries
with nen-controlling interests (380) 49) 5,429 5.785

3483 8540 128800 146,720
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7 Subsidiary companies (continued)

72 Subsiciaries with material non-coniroliing intererss (cortinued)
Summarised financialinformation fot the above subsidiaries, before inttagroup eliminations, is set-out below:

. 31 Decermberi2015 _ 31 December 2014
NFL NIC ARl NFI NiC. I
KD 000 KB 000 KD:'000 KD'060 KB 000: KD Q00
Non-current.asgals 140,668 6,636 443,292 69,081 165,838
i _ 46632 44556 arAdd 6734 41,887 15,502
Total assets 186,180 113,762 104079 200573 110948 181,340
Non-current liabilities 100,536 5,642 26,449 108,909 5451 '3,0,36_4
Current liabilities _ 21,718 12,680 B;667 ‘29,985 13:299 6,681
Tatd! liabilties 122261 18,322 MM6 136894 18750 37,045
Equity-attributable tothe shareholders of . o _
the Barent Compahy. 22,047 46,536 80,283 22962 45,208 108,45
_statement of finencial b6 41,892 49,006 19,830 40,717 48,900 40,841
For the,yearended 3 December2015 . Fotttie year ended. 31 Decomber 2014
__ NFi NI 1Pl NF) NIC 1P
KD Q00  KD7000"  KD'000 KD'O00O  KD'0o0 KD ‘000
Revenue _ 32,288 49084 9476 31610 48865 14912
Profit/ {loss) for the year attributablé fo the
shareholdars:of the Parent Company 640 3,889 (6819} 486 3931 7,251
Loas/ (profit) for the year attributable to ‘ )
) NCI (2,236) 4,020 (2,218) {414) 3629 2,862
 {Loss)/ profit for the year- o (1,698 7,808 {7,837} 52 7360 10,113,
Other comprehiansive income for.the
Yyear atiributable ta the shareholders of _ - )
the Parent Company (1,232 (969) {41,838) 1,550 743 {22,088)
Othercomprehensive income:for the ‘ ) _
year attributable to NCI 492 {874)  (18:517) 1,687 786 (B949)
Totakother comprehenswe inceme for o ' . . _ _
the. year o {740) (1,843) {68,365) 3,196 1,529, (31,617}
Total corprehengive income for the year
atiributable to: : .
Parent Cofipa 2,920 (47,457) 2,025 4474

| 3148 (18,75) 1228 4416 (6.087)
Total comprehensive income for the year 5086 (86,192) 3,248 8,889 (21,504
Dividends pald to non controlfing interests (2897) {2,178) e - {2,075)
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7 Subsidiary comipanies (continued)

ial statements (con'tﬁi:njzuéd}

7.2 Fubsidiaries with-material nan-controlling interests (continued)

For ti8 veaf ended 31

Detemnber 2615

39

For the'year ended 31 December 2014.

NFL  NIC
KD 000
6,976
10,479
(13,936)

Net cash flow from opsrating activities
Net.cash flow from investing activities
Net cash flow from financing activities

KD ‘000
'_6156.3
{7,996)
(3,293)

IRl NFi NIC
KD ‘000 KD000 KD ‘000

{1,464) 12,404 15,171
14,146 5,108 {3,660)
(12,800) (19084)  (6:367)

IPI

KD 000

82y

Net cash Inflow/ (outflow)

3,219 {(4,628) 162

(1574)  §144

(27"3)

7.3 Doguisision of wbsidiar .
During. th i e of the Group’s loci]
Satellite 8

Total consideration’
Value of non-controliing interests

KD ‘000

2,611
638,

3,149

Less : Recognized amounts of identifiable assels gcquiréd and liabllities assumed

Cash and Bank balanices
Trade and other fécelvable
Intangible assets (note 16:2)
Trade and othet.payable

1

. 48
8:326
 (5.:224)

Totél [dentifiablenetassets.

3,149

_Goodwill

75

The purchase price allocition was finalised in 2015 based o

note 15,2,

14 i fien-controlling interests in. the above subsidi

mpaty by thied party nominees,

earl Offshore Enterprises Limite
the year 2011 and total assets v

afy companies are held ofi behialf ‘of tiie Parent

is-2 special puirpose vehicle (SPV) which wis incotposated during
th a carrying value of KD11

8 thousdhd (2014 KD103,631

thousand) and ‘total liabilifies of KDI69,371 thousand (20145 KD66, 76 thousand) of the Pasent

- Company are held by the SPV.

8 Income from investmerits

Dividend income: )
- From investments al fair valug through profit of lass
- From availabld'for sale investment
Profit on saleof available for:salé
Realiséd gain on-investmenis
Unreali in on investme

véstinents ‘
ryalie through profit or loss

at falr value-s{thi_'oug‘h profit or loss 295

Yearanded
31 Dec.
2014
KD-'00g:

Yearondad
© 3 Dec.
2018
KD-'000

885 1,693
14,387 13,997
24,714 37,597
1172

37,547 56,016

_ \ stbsidiaries acquired 60% equity stake, in Cable. Sat.
- Ruwait Limited Liability Company {¢ngaged in renting and sale-of indefeasible
Hon was accounted in accordance with IHRS 3 as follows:

gotiatichs of scquisition terms a5 disclosed in
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9 interest and other income
Year-ended Year enged
31 Dec: 31 Pec,
2015 2014
KD*000 KD 1000
tnterestiprofit.on bank balances; shortterm:deposits, murabaha and wakala
investments. 633 504
Income from financing of future trade by cusfomers 281 361
Service income 225 85
Management'and placement fegs 1,810 54
Galn.on disposal of property; plant and-equipment - 8
Net gain relaling to:llquidatedidisposed foreign subsidiaries* 1,802 -
Others 93¢ 377
N 5,680 1,359
* The: gain has. mainly tesulted from the net: realisation. of the positive foreign currency wanslation j

reserves which wetre booked in the previous years.in equity with regard to-the liquidated/ disposed:forsign
subsidiafies,

10  Net gain or (loss) on financial assets.
Nét gainor (loss) ofl financial assets,-analysed by categoty, is as: follows:
Yéarentled Year ended
31 Dee. 31 Dec.
2018 2014
KD4060 KD '080
Loans arid recaivaties _
ort term deposils 380 326
investments #43 178
281 851
- 1mpairrnent in value (323) (1.441)
Al fairvalue through o |
-heldfortrading. {911) 3172
- designated as such:on Iitial recognttton 2,357 1,250
Available for sale invéstmarits
- recognised in other comprehensive income {fncluding non-contralling interests _ o
share)- (76,497) {13681}
-recycled from other ¢omprehensive income lo consolidated statemerit of profit or
loss:
¢ Onimpairmgrt {9,851) (28,208)
¢ Ondisposal ‘ . 12,564 26,100 =
-recognised direcily in consolidated statement of profit or loss 23,540 25404 |
(47,210) 43,644 :
Net gain recognised in the consolidated statement-of profit of loss 28,287 27,225
Net loss recognised in the oftier comprehenisive Inceme: ’ {75,497) (13,5817).
— ————— e — e {47,210) 13,644

11 Finanée costs _ _
Finance costs rélate: tnainly to due'to banks, shott and long terin bortowings, anid lease creditors. All these

" financial liabilities are:stated at:amortised cost.
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12  Taxation and other statutory contributions

(a) Foreign taxation

Taxation of foreign subsidiaries®

Year ended “Year ended
¥1 Det. 31 Dbo.
2015 2014
. KD 000 KD'0eo
Current tax'expense _
Current year chargé {388) (56)
Deferred tax expense
Current year charge N (124) @I
3 (512) _leen)
Oier taxation - loval snbsidiary **
Gyrent year charge (289) (334)
Undar prows:on an relation to. prevaous years _ - (989)
(289)  (1329)
(B0 (1,5%0)
(b) KEAS, NLST and Zakat of lotal subsidiaties *+*
Yoar-anded: - Yeur ended:
34 Dec. 3% Deo.
2015 2014
KD.'e0g KD '000
‘Gonfributions to Kuwalt Foundation for-Advancement of Science. (KFAS) (84)
Provision for National Labour Support Tax (NLST) (222)
Provision for Zakat o B : (88)
: : - i %

“#The above taxis calculated based-on the tax lawadopted in United Kingdom.

ihcome teceived from dnvestments in a GCC Country.
e Subsidiary’s discovered.that their maybe a potential tax
bility ot dividend income received fropm foreigit entities located in a GCC country (at the rate of 5%),
wiiichy th "bmdia.ty s fnatiagement was not e-of in the past. No tax claims or.assessments have been
made by any regulatory authotity as of date. However based on advice received from consultants and othes

sti: available to the Subsidiary’s management, on a conservative basis, the Group provided an
nd 4t the end of 31 December 2014 Accordmg!y, duting the year, the Group has
1216 thousand on any taxes which may-arlse on the dividend incotne recognised
15. The provisions have been included: under accounts payable and other
3; renit-yeat, the Subsidiary ha tece dividend from & foreign entty located
in a GCC counitry, and s ch dividend has been teceived net of taxes amounting to KID73 thousand as the
portfolio manager has deduited the relevant tax from the account: However the Group has decided to gross.
up the: dividend Income by thie #noutit of K - thousatid ahd showit separately ag tax expenses:

*% The above represents tax related to divides
During the fourth quarter of previous year; one-

also made a-provision o
as income up to 30 June
libilities. Further, duting th
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12 Taxation and other statutory contribiutions (continued)

**% The contributions and provisions are on profit of focal subsidiaties, whereas ho contsibution and
provision for thie Patent Company was tecognised in the current year (2014: Nil) as the net taxable results
attributable to:the Parent Company was 4 loss.

13 Profit for the year
Profit-for the year ls-stated after charging:

Year endad Year endad
31 Dec. 31 D,
2015 2014
KD 'g00 KB'000
Staff costs 30,878 32,268
Depreciation _ 8;506 6,848

The humbet of staff employed by the Patent Company at 31 December 2015 was 67 (2014: 73).

14  Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Parent '

Earriings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for-the yeat attributdble to the owners of the Parefit

Company by thie weighted average qumber of shares outstanding during thie yeat as follows:

Year-endéd Year endsd
31 Dag. 31 Det.
2015 3014
F’ro‘ﬂl= forthe year auributable to the owners of the Parerit Company (KD '000) 26,427 28,282
We:ghted average number of shares autstand:ng during the year (excludlng o
treasury shares) — shares: 1,326;056,896 1,325,056,996
BaSic--and_-diluted e,arnings-g_er share 19.2 Fils 21.3 Fils
18  Goodwill and intangible assets
151  Goodwill
31 De¢. 31 Dec.
2016 2014
KD000 Kot
Bai&nce at4 January 9,245 9,221
= : " 34
nge adjuistment 10 (19
B ’ 9,255 9245

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair valiie of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquited subsidiaries. Goodwill of KID2,029 thousand (31 December
2014: KD2,029- thousand) and KD7,226 thousand (31 December 2014 KD7,216 thousand) has been
allocated to the IT service business and- speciatist engineering unit of the Group, respectively as these are the
cash generating unit (CGU) which is éxpected to berefit from the synetgies of the busitiess corabination. It is
also the Jovvest level at which, good\m]lls tnonitored for impairment purposes.
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15 Goodwill and intangible asséts (continued)

151 Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing:

The Group deterniines whether goodwill is impaived at least on an annual basis. This regquires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the CGUs to which these items ate allocated. The recoverable amount is
determined based on higher of value-in-use calculations or fajr-valieJess cost to sell,

Management used the following approach to determine values to be ssigned to the following key
asspmptiotss in the value in use calculations: :

Key.assumption  Basis used to.determine value to b assigned to. fgy assumption

Growth tites  Anticipated dvetage growth rate of 0% to 5% (2014: 0% to- 10%) per annum. Value assigned
teflects past expetience and changes it économic envitonment;

¢ petiod have been extiapolated using a gtowth rate of 0% to

owth rate does not.exceed the long tetm average growth rate

‘C@EU operates.

Discount rates £ 3.5% 40 16.9% (2014: 3.5% to 22%), Discount rates used are pre-fax and
sksrelating: to the relevant CGU.

The Group has perfortned 4 sensitivity analysis by varying these inpit factors by a reasonably possible margin
and assessing whethet the change in input factors result in. any of the goodwill allocated to appropriate cash
generating units being impaired. Based on the above analysis, there are tio indications that goodwill ificladed
in any of'the cash genetating units is impaiced.

15,2 Intangible assets —Indefeasible tight of use (IRU)
Intangible asset comprises ‘of indefeasible right of use (IRU) to a telecomimunication dsset 4rising feom a
subsidiaty acquired during 2014 and the movement is as follows::
' 31 Dec, 31.Dec
2015 2014
KD ‘000 KD:*000
Cost

tion ofa subsidiary (nate 7.3) .
fo Iation of the terms: (2,685)
(2,010)

8,326

Rediietion Inthe.cos

3,631 832

) :
22y {41)

Alheendofheyear ey @)

Netbook value'at the end of the year o 388 goms

Total goodwill and intarigible assets T ) 12823 17,69

This tepresents an intangible asset in the form of an Iidéfeasible Hpht of use (IRU) to atelecommutication
asyer cirrled at I{D-3_,_5,6'8 thousand {31 December 2014: KL\ 1285 thousand) ati_é'i'ng from @ subsidiacy, Durmg
the cuerent year the subsidiary te-negotiated the financial antl other terms of €8 use dnd accotdingly, as per
the new contractual terms its carrying value and that of the related liability hasteduced by KID2,685 thousand
and KD2i605 thousand tespectively. Consequently, ‘based on the information available, the Group’s
mahagetment has recogniséd an impaitment of KD2,010 thousand which includes tiet earicellation chatges of
KD456:thousatid related to the previous contract.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (contin ued)

17

Investment in associates

Details of the Group’s material associates at the end of the reporting peiod are as follows:

Meezan Bank Ltd - (Quoted)

P

Share: of other comprehensive income: (9,119)
Dividend recelved (10,676)
Disposal of agsoclates {4,419)
Impaifment invalue (817)
Foreign currency translation adjustiment 296

Alrport International Group - P.8:C Jordan
Mabanee Conmipany - KPST - (Quoted) : Kluwait. Real estate 18 18

Caoiintry.of Nature of busingss
reglstration and
prinsipal place of
blisingss Percohtage dwneiship
: 31 Deg, 31 Dee.
2015 2044

sanking 49 49
| al sarvices 33 33
Indusirial 26 28
Alrport operations 24 24

tion.Holding Company -~ KPSC (Quoted)
sament Campany ~ KPSC (Quoted)

31 Deg. 31 Deo.
2015 2014
KP:*000. KOO0

430,968 294,408
3,922 2,490
26,913

Tésults

Other adjustments o (81) -

Balance atthe end of the year ) o 37187 330,968

17,1

17.3

174

All of the above hamed associates are accounted for using the equity method ity these consoliditad
financial statements.

A mijor poftion. of ah associate with a catrying value of KD123959 thousand (3014 KD N is.
i tody portfolio-ascount with specialised institation (note 27¢ ). '

During the current yeat, the 'Gtoup- p'a_rtiaﬁy disp’gjsed an 'ii}signifﬂqant stake of Mabanee Company
KPSC which resulted in & net gain of KID395 thousand (2014 KD1,140 thousandy. Although the
Grouprowhs 18 % of the investee, the Group exetcises significant influence over the associdte by way
of board sepresentation.

Sumimatised firiarigial infosmation i tespect of each of the Group’s material assosiates:named above,
are set:out below. The summarised financial information below tepresents the dmounifs presented in
the financial statements of the associates (and not the Giotips share.of thise amounts) adjusted for
differenices in agcouniting policies between the Group-and the.associate,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

17  Investment in associates (continued)

17.4.1 Mabanee Company=KPSC

Dividends received from the associate during the year

31 Det. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD-000 KE 000
Nor-clirrént. asgats 4,024,568 V02,048
Current agsets 38,061 32,369
Non-clrrent liabilities (269,614) {196,673)
Current labllities {44,178) (69,004)
Non controlling Interest C (374) - (444)
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the associate 748,463 679,196
‘Year ended Year ehded
A Dec. 31 Deg,
2018 2014
KD*000 KD 000
Révenue 84,993 186,718
Profit for the year o 77,381 178,686
Other comprehensive income for the year 8,008 2,170
Totalcomprehensive income Torthe yeat 80,389 480,856
1,999 . 3260

A reconciliation of ‘the above summarised financial information to the carrying amiount of the investment in

Mabanee Company - KPSC is set out below:

31 Dec:
2045 s
KD ‘000 KU 000
Net assets of the associale attributable to the-shareholders of the associate 748,483 679,198
Proportion. of the Group's ownership interest 17.81%. 18.04%
Inferest in the associate: 131,086 122,627
Gopdwiil 10,819 11,148
~ OtherAdjustments 303 41
Gatrying value-of the mvestment 142,178 1'34.,-084

market price aviilable-on the exchange which isa level 1 Input i terms® of IFRS 13
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

17  Investment in associates (continued)

17.4.2 Kuwait Cemient Company ~ KPSC

31 Dec, 31 Deti
2015 2014
KD *000 KD ‘000
Non-current assets 233,711 252,242
Gurrent assels 66,056 75,987
‘Non-gurrent liabilities. (68,464) (86,409)
Current llabllltles (44,634, {41,973
- Equny SN . Ta,008 1-95,9,,484:7
Year ended Year ended
31Dec, 31.D&c.
2015 2014
KD ‘000 KE-'000
‘Revenue 59,536
Frofitfor ike year 16,301 14,080
Othergomprehensive income for the year {10,611) 4 457
mpiehensive income for the year 5,690, 18,537
DN en_ 5 'received from the associate durlng the:year o 3,381 3,381

A reconciliation of‘the above summarised financial informatioti to-the carrying amount of the investment in
Kuwait Cement:Company — KPSC is set out below::

31 Dee. . 31 Dee;
2015 2014

K040 KD000

Net aissets of the assodlate attributable to the sharehalders of the .
associate - - 188,669 189,047

Propartion of the Grotip’s ownership interest i the associate 25.617% 25647%
Irtersst in the: associste 47,818 51,185
‘Goodwill 14,893 14,803
Other Adjustmients _ _ 4421 4,371
Carrying value-of the investment _ . 67,133 70,459

As at 31 December 2015 the fair value of the Group’s interest in Kuwait Ceinent Company ~ KPSC, which is
listed -on: the: Kuwait Stock Exchange was KD7 susand (2014: KD71,382 thousand), based on the
quoted market price available ofi the exchange, which fs _el_i Input in tetths of IFRS 13,

17.4.3 Meezan Bank:Lid,

34 Dac.
2015
KD 1000 KD '000
Nan-current assets ' 426,873 246,520
Cuirrent assets 1,126,181 1,043,025
Noncurrent liabilities .(118,006) (103,427)
Current llabtlities {1,361,779) _ (1,108,860}
| - 83,269 77,258

Equniy
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17  investment in associates (continued)

17:4.3 Meezan Barik Lid, (continued)

Year anded Year ended
31 Dec, 31 Deg.
2016 2014
KB ‘000 K600

95,955 53,408

: 14,887 225‘1@0
; ! iretignsive incomg for the vear 514 (1..109)
Total comprehiensive income for the year 15,398" 21,361
Dividends récelved from the associate durlng the year &880 2481

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the cartying-amount of the investment
in' Meezan Bank Ltd is set out below:

31 Dec. 31 Dec,
2018 2014
KD 000 KD 000
Net assets of the assoclate attributable to the shareholders of: o
tha agsociate 83,269 17,258
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in the associate 4911%. 49.11%
Interest I the assaciate 40,895 37,941
Goodwill g182 9,262
Carrying value of the investment ' _ o ' ) 50,075 47,203

As at 31 December 2015 the fair value of the Group’s interest in Meezan Bank Ltd, which-is listed on the
Karachi Stock Exchanpe was KI1265,290 thousand (2014 KD67,661 thoysard), based o the guioted market
price available on that éxchange, which is'4 level 1 inputin tetms of IFRS 13,

Share ‘of results of associates includes KD419 thousand (2014; KD4,035 thousand) which represents the
Group’s share of gaits on batgain purchase recogmsed by Megzan Bank Limited, This has been designated as

. distributable only for:stock dividends with prior approval.of the regulator in Pakistan,

17.4.4 Privalization Holding Cornpany - KPSC

31 Dec. 31 Dee.
2015 2014

KD'00e KE000
Nén-carrent assets 114,902 144,313
Cuirent assets 43,262 50,311
Non-current liabilities (11,542) (28, 5143__
Clrrent liabliities (44,628} :
Nan canlrolling interests {2,018) _ (894}
Equlty | e - 99,978 112,586
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17 Investment in associates (continued)

17.4.4 Privafization Holding Company —KPSC' (continued)

Yeéar ended Yéar gnded

31 Dac. 3{ Dec.

2015 2014

KD '000 KO- ‘000
18,316 13,539
Pre forthe year A10Q 4,326
g shigrisive incofite for the year 5,867
Total.comprehensive income for the year 10,193

Dividends recaived front the associate during the year

A reconciliation of the above summarised-financial information to the carrying amount of the investment in

Privatization Holding Company ~ KPSC is set out below:

31: Dec, 3 Dec.
2015 2014

KD:'000 KD 000

Net assets of the associate attributable to the sharehoiders of the o

agsocidte 99,978 112:586
Proportion-of ihe Groug's ownership interest in the associate 33.3% 33.3%
Interest: inthie assaciate 33,293 37491
Other Adjustments _ o (4,871) (3,843)
 Cairying value of the investmerit 28,722 33,648

As at 31 December 2015 the fair value of the Group’s intetest in Privatization Holding Company.— KPSE,
which is listed on the Kuwait Stock Bxchange was KI312,280 thousand (2014 ‘KD12,157 thousand), based on
the quoted market price available on the exchange, which is a level 1 Ihput in terms of IFRS 13.

17.4.5 Aiort International Group P.8.C

31 Dec. : 31'Dbec.
2015 2014
KD ‘000 KB 000
Non-current.assets 274,263 264,283
Current assets: 62,644 41,688
Nan-current llabilities 1126,406) {117,639)
Current liabilities ‘ o {85,878). 52; 737}
Equity - | e 124893 125, 495 )
Year ended Year aridad
31 Dat, 31 Dag.

2018 2044
KD 000 KB 000
Revanue 83,525 56,973
Loss for the year (10,051) (11,379)
QOthier comprehenisive iicome for the yedt 2,384 : {1,570}
Total comprehensive income forthe year _ {1,667) {12,949)




National:indastries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiarios
Conjs_ﬁiidaiedzi?_i:1anr:;‘ial Statements
31 Dacember 204y

5%
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17 Investment in associates (continued)

17.4.5 Airport Infemational Group P.S.C (continued)

A teconciliation of the above summatised firiaricial information to-the catrying amourit of the investmert in

Airport International Group P.S.C Is set out-below:
31 bec.
2018
KD 000
Net assets of the-associate attrbutable-fo the shareholders of the Group 124,623
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 24%
Interest in'the associate 29,910
Other Adjustments o L _ 157

31 Dec.
2014
KD 000

_Cairying value of the investment | 30,667

30,897

Alrport International Group P.S.C, isan unquoted investment,

17.5 Aggrjegate Information of associates that are not individirally material to the Group

3 Dec,
2015
KD ‘000

The Group's share of result for the:year . \ 4,250
The Group's:share of other comprehensive Income for the year (7.741)

The Group's:share of total comprehensive incore {3461}

Aggregate carrying dimatint of the Group's interest In fhese associates aa of the _
reporting date 18,412
Agdregate Dividerids received from the associates during the year 311

17.6 The Group’s. shate. of associates’ contingent liabilities amowmited to KD109,461. thousand {2014:
KI>91,859 thousand). This includes the group’s share of contingent ligbilities related-to 2 foreign bank

(Meezan Bank Ltd.) which amounted o KI65,495 thousand (2014; KD55,875 thousatid),

18  Investment properties
The moyement in investmetitpi ties.is as follows;

‘31 Deg.
2015
KD'000

Fair value as at 1 January 61,426
Additions 4,494
Disposal _ o i
Reclassification from propery, plant:and egtipment © 2,280,
Change in falr value 1,283

2014
KD ‘000

(3.861)
93)

2014
KD.'000

49,943
16,869

4138

69482

615425
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18 Investment properties (continued) _
Lavestment properties comprise of lands and buildings in the following countries:

31 Dec,
2015
KD''000
Kuwait 62,530

-Saudi 6,205

Jordan 431
UAE - 318

52

Kl

54,506
6,163
415
341

Total | ) 69,482

61,426

a) Iavestmient properties are stated at fair value, Which has beeti détermined based on valuations

peiformed by independent viluets. (referriote 36 fot details).

againstbank loans and other Islamic Financing ateangeriients (refer note 27).

b) Investrnents propetties afnotnting to KID39.055 thousand (2014: KD34,040 thousand) are secuged.

¢} -During the yeat, otie of the subsidiaries of the Group has transferved one of its buildings with a
cagiying vilie of KID2,280 thousand from owher ocenpied propety’ to uvestment propetties based on

independent.valuation-obtained as of the transfer date approximates the transfer value:

ange. in use-as it was rented out dusing the Year; The fair value of the: property as per the

d) .During the year, borrowing cost of KID297 thousand (2014: KD280' thousand) has been capitalised to

investment propegties tnder development.

19  Available for:sale investments

Non ‘Current

Msnaged furids
- Loecsl
- Foreign

#1:Das.

2015

KD'000

483
115,303

31 Dec.
2014
KD '000

2,600
120,835

Unquoted-equity participations

- = Eoeal
- Foreign

115,766,

23,779
185,479

123,335

23,781
176,375

Quoted shares
_- . Foreign

189,258

78,736

110,129

200,156

104,398
189,030

188,865

293,428

493,909

616,919

Cuirfent

Quited shafes (a)
- Log
- Foréign

46,851
4Tt

63,081
201

47,328

63,352

541,237

880,271
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

18

%)

b)

d)

g

20

Available for sale investments (continued)

The quoted shares classified as cutrent at 31 December. represents thie femnaining investments from
those which were transferred from investments at fait value through profit ot loss as of 1 July 2008
(vefer nate 23 ).

Managed funds include investinents i piivaté equity funds with a cafrymg salue of KID26,647
thousand (2014: KI»30,559 thousand). Iriformation for these invesiments is limited to. petiodic financial
teports provided by the investment managers. These investments ate carried at neb asset values
reported by the investment inanagets. Due to the natute of these investments; the net asset values
tepoxted by the investmetit inanagets represent the best estimate of faif values available. for these

‘investments.

‘KD12 826 thousand) for certdin local and foreign quoted shares a8 the market value of these shares at

:eportmg dates declined significantly below their costs. Further the Group also recognised an

impaitment losy of KDD5,835 thousand (2014 KD15,379 thousarid) against cestain unquoted shares,

local and foreign: funds based on estitnates made by management as perdnformation available to them

and the net assets values reported by the investment managets:

Utiquoted ifivestments atid mianaged. fanids of KD20,895 thousasid (2014 KD57,520 thousand) are
cattried at cost less impaument in value: if any; since theit fait value cannot be reliably determined. The
Groups management : ds not aware of any circomstance that would indicate impaiement/fisther
impaiement in-value of fhese investments.

During: the year; -one of the local subsidiaties of the Group enteted into an agreement with 2 foreign
pacty o dispose forelgn unquoted shares with a carsying valoe of KID27,624 thousand for a

considetation of KD29,977 thousand (net of taxes) résulting o niet gain: 6f KDD2,353 thousand Beifig
stecognised: in: the consolidated statement of profit ot loss under “profit.on sale of available for: sale
investments™. The Group has: received ant amount of KID7,518- thousand from the total selling price

anid the remaimng balance amounting to K1D22,459 thousand fuided under “accounts receivables
and other assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position,

Duting’the year, the-Group sold (o it§ associates quoted invéstment with a carrying value of KID949
thousand:for a cohsideration of KID975 thousand which resulted in a net gain of KD26 thousand-and
the consideration due has been reduced from the balance dué to associates,

Tnvestments with a fair value.of KID181,450 thousand (2014; KID200,309 thousand) ate secured against
shott:term bosrowings (refer note 30) and long term borsrowings (tefer-note 27).

inventories
31 Deg, 31 Dac.
2015 2014
KD '000 KB 000

Finished goods and worksin-progress 15,578 16,313
Raw materlals and consumables 15,178 13,628

Spare parts-and others

3, 626 3219

Goodsin. trans:t 7 1 032 413

Provision for obsolete and slow moving inventories

33,571
{1, 548}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

21

Financial assets

Net trade receivables

Net amount due on disposal-of forelgn investment properties (b)
Amounts due:on:sale of investments (d)

Due from assoclates

Due from:other related parties

Due fronm key management personriel
Advance payments tosacquire investments

Due from Kuwait Clearirig Company (future trade)
Due from investment brokerage compames
interest and other acorued incorme

Other financial assets

Accounts receivable and other assets

Less: amount due-aftef one year

Z;Non-ﬁnancial assets

_-Other agsets _ _ 5,118 3,479
5118 3,479
87,264 70:609
4)  Trade receivables-are non-interest bearing and geaerally 'on 30 to 90.days terms.
Asat-31 December the aging analysis ‘of trade Feceivables is as follows:
' 3 Q'gsz‘ﬁ.. @1 Dac:
2014
KD '000 KD 000
Neithar past due norimpaired 24,135 18,555
Past:due but not impaired _ _
- lggs than 3 months' 992 3422
=36 motths 7 3,562 4204
Total trade receivables ‘ _ S 28 689 ' 26 271

Trade véceivables that are 1688 than six months past due, are not consic{eled irnpau:ed since thcy relate

customers forwhom there is no:recent history of default.

b)

dy

; , i g"-
dise; 45 of 3.__ ’»ber 2015 an amount of KD972 thousand. is outstandmg and the Groups
management-expects that itwill bessetiled during 2016.

thousand) agamst frade and other 1cce1vabies'

This includes an amount of KD22,459 thousand due onsale of available for sale investments of one of

the local subsidiaties. of the Gmup (refer note 19 ). Subsequent to the reporting date; the Gioup has
received the outstanding balance in full,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

22 Murabaha and wakala investments:

profit fate % (pet annum)

, 31 Dec, 31 Dee:
2015 2014 2018 2014
KD"900 KD'000

Duefiom 4 local Islamic investment company/

due from related parties 14,524
Provision for impairment | in u_raiu_e . o % . ~ {14,324)
Placed with local fslamic beinks _ 1.13% 0.5% 1,000 598
NELaks Rraiad SR — 1,0:0_b o

court of appeal had ordered the- telated parties to pg
‘which: has now been overturned By the Coust of
legal proceedings relating to'the temaining amouht of

No profit was tecognised on impaired wakala investiments duiisig the curfent year (2014: Nil).

Wakala: investments of [KD14,324 thousand (2014: KD14,324 thousan; ) placed with:a local. Islamic inveskment
company matured in the last quarter of 2008, The investee company defaulted on settlement of these ba nces
on the:matutity date: However revised matutity dates were. stipulated by the eourt. "The investee ¢omp
defaulted the pay £ 2nd and 3:d instalment due in June 2014 and 2015 respectively, Full provision
for teceivable in accordance with:the Central Bank of Kuwait prodsion sules,

During prevtous yeats, one of the tacal subsidiary’s of the Group assumed the financia] and legal obligations on
wakala investments, of KI139,968 theusand (in violation of the Commercial Compames Law of 1960) that the
subsmhary had placed witl the aboveinvestment cottipany in a fiduciary capacity under 2 wakala agreement with
certain’related patties, despite haviiig 116 siich obligation under the wakala agreement. The Group initiated legal
proceediigs against the above pattiesto recover the:.amount including profits thereon. During the year 2014, the
128,285 thousand with 7% profit thereon to: the: Group
oni if Favoilr of the related party during the year.. The
KD1,683 theusand is still in process.

23  Investments at fair value throllgh profit of loss

31 Dec, 31 Deg:
2015 2014
KD '000 KD ‘000
16,992 26163
& 8,778
4263 32000
i 7,709 7,936
Intemaﬂonal managed portfoilos and funds _ - 52,0M 18,801
Bo780 28737
84,033 59,708

a} In-2008,as a result of significanit developments in-the global financial matkets, the Group had reclassified

investrients with a faic value of KI3380,755 thousand as at 1 July 2008 from “investiment at fai¢ value
thmugh profit or loss™ category to-“available for-sale” categoty; The Fair value oFremaining reclassified
investments as of 31 December 2015 is K47, 328 thausand (2014: KD63,352 thousand).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

23 Investments at fair value through profit orloss (continued)

b). During 2008 a-local money market Eund in whxch 4 local. subsidiary of the Group has investments
i (2014:. KID1,624 thousand), suspended

t has béen infortned by the manager of the fund that.
redempuons will be. made dependmg on availabd.tty of liquid funds. Fagther; the subsidiagy’s management.
tias also been informed by the manager of the fund that the request made to liquidate the fund has been
accepted by the relevant authorities. The investment has been' fait: valued based on the last-unaudited net
asset value xeported by the fund manager as of 13t Makch 2015. Thé subsidiary’s management expects to
tealize these investments-atnotless than its carrying value.

¢). Quoted shares, held by local subsidiaties, with a fair value of KD3,586 thousand (2014 KD9,840
- thousand) are secured againstishort term borrowings (refer note 30) and long term bortowmgs (refer note
27,

24  Share capital and share premium

a). As of 31 Decetnber 2015, authotized issued and fully paid share. capital in cash of the Parent Compaty
comprised of 1,359,853,075 shares of 100 Fils each (31 December 2014 1,359,853,075 shares).

b) Share Pf’e’mium is not availible for distribution.

¢) At the Anhual General Meeting held on 20 May 2015, the shateholders approved a cash dividend of
12% (201 uivalent'to 12 Fils per shate and bonus share of Nil for the year ended 31 December
2014, Atk fiuial Getieral Meeting held on 28 May 2014, the shareholders approved 5% bonug shares
on outstandmg shares as at the date of the AGM, which represented (64,754,908 shares :of 100 Fils each.
amounting to- KD(S 475 thousand.

25  TreAsury shares

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 014
34,708,079 34,796,079
2,56% " 2.56%
4,245 6,611
§0,378 30375

Reserves of the Parent Company equivalefit:to' the cost of the treasuty shares have been earmarked as non-
distributable.
As.at 31 December 2015 and 2014, one of the agsociate companies of the: Group held 131,599475 (2014
131,599,475) shates of the Patent Company’s shates equivalent to 97% (2014: 9.7%) of the Parent Company’s
shares issued.
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286 Cumulative changes in fair value, other componants of equity and Non-
controlling interests

a) Cumulative chatge in fair valie

Year endad Year ended

[ | .m‘i_.ﬁ R e E| = = W

31 Dec. 31 Deg:
2015 2014
KD '0¢0 KD '000-
Balance at 1 January | - 180,785 164430
Other comprehensive income: ‘ ) '
Netchange in falr vajue of avallable for sale investments {49,252) (6,229)
Transferred to conso[ldated statement of profit of 1685 on disposal of available for o
sale'of investy (11,246} {22,953y
m. Transferred to con olidated statement.of profit-or108s,on impairment in value of _
avallable for sale.investments ) 5,335 23,288
m Ehare-of falr v e adjustment in associates. _ o {9;244) 2 240
Other comprehensive Income for the year o (64,407) o
B Balance at 31 December i 9838
& b) Other components of equity
B .. Fareign
Gainon$ale  ecurrency
H Statutory _of treasury.  translation
reserve sharesreserve  résorve Total
E KD ‘090 KD '000 KD ‘000. KD ‘000
dacember 2014 §,642 1694 18452 (,521) 27,467
a Other comprehensive incorme: N ' o
g Ctirrengy transiafion. differences o T - - (965) (985)
Comprehensivelincome . ) (966)
B Reserve t‘rahsfe’l"’s o 2,625 L - 2628
- o 11467 ' 18,452 (2486) 28,827
m 2,603 18,482 (4.395) 18,552
Reallocaﬂe t6 rigirt contmll g Iinterests of '
subs]drary : . . . 38 38
“Transactions with owners | o . - - 8 a8
- Qther comprehensive incoma:.
i Currengy transtation differences - - - 2,836 2,836
Comprehensive income - - : 28% 2838
i B Transfer from reserve of subsidiary - (680) - - (690)
I  Reserve fransters of subsidiaries 5,939 492 - - ‘6431 )
| | Balances at 31 December2014 @54 1694 18482  (1520) 767
:
e
l
|
| n
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

26 Cumulative changes in fair value, other ¢oniponents of eqiiity and Non:
controlling interests (continued)

Statuiory resere
In sccordance with the Companies Law and the Patent Company’s:atticles of association, 10% of the profit |
for the year before KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors temuneration but after Won:controlling interest is to

be transferred to statutory reserve. The Patent Company may tésolve to - discontinue such antival transfer

when the reserve totals 50% of the paid up-shate capital. Disteibution of the statutory résérve is limited to the
amount requi.t‘ﬁd to eiable the payment of a dividend of 5% of paid-up shate capital to be madein years wher
tetained earnmgs are not sufficient for-the distribution-of a dividend of that amount. No transfer is required
il 2 yearin which the Group has incurred a loss'or where aceumulated losses exist

Gengral reserve

Inaccotdarice with-the Parent Company’s articles of association, 4 certain percentage—of thie profit forthe year
before KPAS, NLST, Zakat and disectots remuneration but affer Non—controllmg Jinterestds to be transferred
to the general. resetve at. the discretion of the Baard of Directors which is to 'be approved at the General
Assembly: For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Boatd of Directors do not propose. any transfer to
general reserve and thisis sub;ect to approval at the General Assembly.

<) Non=controlling intetests.
Yearended  Year ghded
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD ‘000 KB:'000
Balance.at'4 January: 148,729 147,976
Nei decrease in rion controlling: Interes!s on acquisition of subsidiary . {804)
Net increase in non-cantrolling interests of subsidiary. during the year* ;195 .
Increase in share-capitsl of subsidiaties. 2,062 :
Amountdue to non-controlling interests on reduction of share capital of subsidiary ™ {1,732} {3,912)
Redemplion-of share |tal by no .ontrolhng mterest of submd[ary o (18) -
{4,880) (2,075)
. ; : ] s-ofa subsxdlary . - 1,833
‘Other nét chianges In hon-contrdlling interests _ 345 679
Franeaclions with D ETT @
Profit for the year ' S 3483 8,549
Othei cofmprehensiveinidome”’ o )
Exchange dlfferences arising on translation of forgign-operations _(48) 2,138
sale:invesimenis (23,535) (9,367)
Transferred to consolidated statement of profitior foss oii disposal of avilable for . 7
sale investmenits: (1,315) (3,237
Transferreci to consolldate atement of profit or loss onimpairment it value of B
nts 4,516 4,917
_ .of other cq sive incorne of assoclates 125 232
Total ather camprehensive income for the, year - (20,258) (5317
Total comprehensive.income for the year o - {18772) 3232
Balance-at 31 Dectmber . o 128,909 148,720

* Duting theyear onte of the subsidiaries of the Group intreased its share capital from KD11,000 thouisand o
KD15,000 thousand (40,000° thousand shares with a par value 6f 100 fils ad premium of 10 fils per.each.
share). The Group subscribed parﬂauy for this increase through another subsidiary of the Greup and:
consequently the Group’s shareholding in. this subsidiary diluted from 100% to 82,85%. The proportionate
carrying value of net assets on the date of dilution amounting to KD3,195 thousand has been transferred to
non-controlling intetest in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Consequently the difference
between cash proceeds received and non controlling interests share of met assets o the date of dilution
dmounting to KD358 thougand has heen tecognized as a. dilution loss fn the cohsolidated statement of

‘changes in equity as of 31 December 2015,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

26  Cumulative changes in fair value, other components of equity and Non-
 controlling interests (continued)

©) Non-controlling interésts (continued)

** Duting the year, the shareholders of one of the local subsidiaries of the Group, decided ¢ hér decrease
its share capital by KD4,000 thousand (2014: KD9,000 thousand) out of which KD1,732 and (2014
KD3,912 thousand) pettains to non-controlling interests, After completing its: necessary Formalities an
amount of KI>1,726 thousand (2014: K13,937 thousand) in¢luding prior capital reductions dias been paid to
non-controlling interests and the balance atfisi shown-under accounts payable and-othet liabilities.

27  Long:term barrowings:
' Effective
€urrency Interest rate

31 Peg..
2014
KD '000

Gonventfonal loans )
Kuwalti-Cinars: (note 27¢) 3.5% .« 5%
US Dollars 2,39% - 4%

349,330
56,274
- 1.281

304253 406,085
Less | Due within one year. _ (83348) (86472

........ 390,9'05- 320,413,

Other lslami

Islamié finandin arrangements
Murabaha payzbles (fiote 27c) 3.06%-4% 80,153 101,563
anGing arrandsments . 38%-5.5% 62,858 61,712

143,008 163,275,

_Less: Due within one year (6,068)  (113,434)

136,940 40,841

Tofal | - 437,845 370,254

A -D:ufing 2011 and 2012, one of the local sibsidiaries of the Grolip resttuctured its. -_me‘ancing

arraﬁgéments with some local banks and accordingly loans:amounting to KI2154,710 thousand {out.of
which KD53,702 thousand has been paid till reporting date‘and KID4,314 thousand subgeqiient to the
teporting date) were converted into secured long term facilities: As pe loan £estructuting: agreements;
these loans are required to'be 100% secuted. As of 31 Dacember 2015, these are partly secured (sefer
notes 18, 19 and 23) and the identification. and secutitization of the requited balance is still in piocess.

‘The third instalment of the loan of KDD38,677 thousand fell duc in 2014 and 2015 and the lenders
agreed for paymerit of 50% of that amount within. four months from the original de date, K1 5,024
thousand was paid in 2015 and the balance KDD4,314 thousand lias been settled subsequent to the
repotting date,

housand as of the reporting: date out of
rtihg date-and the process of rescheduling
e remaining 50% (KID19,339 thousand) of
instaltnent is ongoing, )
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27

Long-term borrowings (continued)

The local subsidiary had submitteda debt sescheduling plan to all its lenders and had, alsa:requested from
all of the lenders to extend the standstill as the restructuring is stll in process and to continue
negotiaticng: to reach an acceptable debt rescheduling solution. Subsequent to the reporting date, the:
lenders have confirmed that they will continue to-negotiate the terms and conditions of the restructuting

to bring:itto'a successful closure. Accordingly, the local subsidiary’s management expects to finalize the

28

debt teschedulinig within. the next few months.

The Euto loans are secured against pioperty, plant-and equipment with. a book value of KIDB04 thousand
(2014: KID934 thousitidy, Alse, othé Islamic financing arrangement-amounting to KD8,869 thoiisa
(2014 KDG6,905 thausand) are secured against property, plant and &quipment with 4 book valie
KI311,130 thousand (2014: KD4,605 thousand),

of
Short tettn borrowitigs as: of 31 December 2014 included an amount: of KID101,563 thousanid of an
Islatnic syndicated loan and KD25,000 thousand ofa cofventional loan which matired in. Algust 2015.

Duting the year; the Parent Cotnpany has. rescheduled the conventiondl loan amountitip to KD25,000
thousand with: the same. local bank and it is now due in 2 years. Furthet; the Tslitni¢ syndicated loan.

-amounting to KD 101,563 thousand have been settled froim the proceeds: obtained through two new

tacilities entered iritt, on¢ of which is 2 Musabaha facility comptising of local and regional banks for an
amount of KID86,153 thousand due in 3 yeats and the other is a convetitional loan facility with a pew
foreign bank fot an amount:of {20,000 thousand due in one year., Undet the terms of the new facilities
agreements, shates of on e listed associates having a carrying valoe:of KD123,959 thousand are
kept in a cusrody portfeliviiccount with specialised institutions (refer note 17.2).

Pravisions
31 D 31 Dea.
2018 2014
KD'000 KD:'000

Pension liability (fefer note 33) ' 3,784 4,359
Provision for staff iidemnity 10,890 10,837
Provisionfor iand-fillexpenses 742 724

Provision for Ental property 224 285

15640 16,015

Less: Pravision for rental property = amount due in less than orfe:year (204) (208)

15436 15,809

The
and

provision for tental property telates to onerons property rental costs {fet of estimated rent receivable)
dilapidations obligations of foteign subsidiaries-which are payable over various:petiods up to 2017;
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

29 Accotints payable and other liabilities

31 Dec
2014
_ KD ‘000
Financial liabilities
Trade payabtes 14,830
Accrued interest 2729
Dividend payable 960
Leaging crednsrs -amount due In fess than one year 238.
Provision for refil ty ~ amaount due'in fess than one year 206:
Payable on acquisition of subsidiary 1,508
Payabile on aequisition of intangible assets 3,604
Natienal fabour.support tax S 4,682
Kuwalt Foundation for the Advancement of Sclences. anid Zakat: 1,004
Provision for foreign taxation 1,500
Qither acerurals 6_,94,4‘
Due to-assoclates (refer note 35) 1418
Dus to: other related partigs (rafer nots-35) 2456
Amounts payableto ndn caritrolling interest due fo capital reduction of one of the _
local subsidiaties 1,236
Other labllities 5,885
T #9375
Nonsfinancial liabilities: _
Othet craditors 4,157 5,676
Accruals 207 227
4,364 5,903
49,621 66,178
30  Short-term borrowings.
Effective 3 Dec. 3 Dec..
Curreney Interest rate 2015 2014
KD "000 KD 009
Conventional loans : S
Kuwaiti Dinars 4% - 4.75% 89,108 41,187
U8 Dollars 1:33% - 5:88% 70,770 76;085
Sterling & Euro 2% - 3:5% - 657
. - — — ‘ 1?9;’_8I5f: —
Long teri borrowings due within one year 83,348 86 472
- | 243228 04411
4,5% 13,896 17,608
Léng tefri Eslarmc f inancing arrangements due within one year
{rafer. note 27 ¢y 6,068 113,434
N 19,964 131,042
Total 283,190 335,453
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

30  Short-term borrowings (continued).

4 Tslamic financing arrangements include Tjara payables-oEKD17,825 thousand (2014: KID17:785 thousdnd)
which is secured against investment propeities-oF local subsidiaries (zefer note 18),

As of 31 Decembet’ 2015, ofie of the local subsidiaries had ugilised KD1,050 thousand (net) (2014::
KID1,500. thousand) from the KD7,000: thousand loan facility from:a. local bank which is secured against
local quoted investments witha Fair value-of IK1D7,676 thousand (2014 : KID8,260 thousand).

US Dollas loani equivalent i_to~“I§D69‘,52"30' thousand (2014: KD66,793 thousand) and Kuwait Dinar loans of
KID44,854 thousand (2014 KD74,371 thousand) ate secured by cettainn available for sale investments

(cefer mote 19).

3 Cash and cash equivalents

Effective:

interestiprofit. 31 Dec.
rate % 2015

KD-'000

Short lerm deposits 0.41% - 1.35% 16,661
Bank balanda and cash 0.62% - 1.36% 43,383
5.6% - 6.0% (18,915)

40,429

Less: Blocked balances _ (325)

Cash and casﬁ_*equivalents forthe purpose of consolidated '_ _
statement of cash flows ' 39,804

32 Dividend distribution
Subject to the requisite consent. of the releva
Company’s Board of Directors propose a ca
Fils) per share.

nt authotities and approval from the general asseinibly, the Patent
sh dividend of 10% (2014:-12%) eqirtiralent to 10 Fils (2014: 12

At the Annual General Meeting held on’ 20 May 2015, the sha_rchoide;'f;‘é appibyed 2 cash 'dividcgd of 12%
(2013: Nil) equivalent to 12 Fils per share amourtirig to KD15,901 thousand and bonus:shate of Nil for the

yeat ended.31 December 2014,

33 Defined berefit pensions schemes _
Thie Group has defined benefit pension, schemes for the employees of ceitain subsidiaries in the United
Kingdom, Thg Scheimes provide benefiis based on final and length of setvice on tetitement. The
Schemes are subject 1o the Statutory Funding Objective undék the United Kingdom Pensions Act 2004, A
valuation of the:schemes is catried out at least-once every three yeass to detettning whether the Statutory
Fundihg Objéctive is met. As part of the process the. Group must agree with the Trusteés of thé Schetiies
the contributions o be-paid to address any shortfall- against the Stanitory Funding Objective.

The Schemes are managed by a professional trustee appointed by the Group. The Ttustee has
responsibility for obtainiag valuation of the fund, administering benefit payments and investing the
Schemes' assets. The Trustee delepates sorie of these functions to theis professi

onial ‘advivers where

appropriate.
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33  Defined benefit pensions schemes (continued)

The Schemes expose the Group to 2 numbes of risks:

. Investment risk: The Scheme holds investments in asset classes, sucly 4 equities, which have volatile
matket:values and while theg t$ ate expected o provide the real returny over the long-term the
shoitt term vo]aﬁ_;ljjg can cause additional funding to be requiredif deficit-etnetges.

. Interest rate tisk: The Schemes' liabilities ace assessed. using market yields: on high quality cotporate
bonds to discouint the liabilities. As the Schemes hold assets such as equities the value of the assets and,

TN

liabilities may not move in the same way, _

’ Inflation risk: A significant proportion of the benefits under thf; Schemes are linked to inflation,
Although the Schemes' assets are eXpected fo provide a good hedge against inflation over the long
tertn, movements over the shott-term could lead to dafieits emerging,

. Mottality tisk: In the event that members live longet than assumed a deficit will emergein thie Schemies.

®  Fof cettaitt sections of the Schemes, membets ate asstirtied to-comimute 20% of their pensiti for cash
at vetiremrient: [fon average less pension s taken this would lead to: déficit etnetging,

*  The Tiustee holds insurance policies forsome members of the Schenes; Thetre is a-very small risk that
the insurers may default.on thelr peliciés which-would.canse additional funding to be required;

Eiffect of the Schemes on the Gronp's fiture ash flows

The Group is required to agree Schedules of Contsibutions with the T'tustee of the Schernes following the
valuation which must be cattled out at least once every three years: In the event the valuation reveals a
larger deficit than expected the Group may be required to increasé conttibutions above those set out in the
existing Schedules of Contributions. Conversely if the position is better than expected contiibutions miay
be reduced. '

The Group expects to: contribute KD753 thotisand to its. defined henefit plans annually which has ‘béca

agreed with the pension tustee iy line with actuarial advice and aims to. elimingte the deficit within an
acceptable periodiof time.

The following disclosures coverall the scheimes-on arragpregated basis; Acrusrial g’alch_iI_atio.lj.si have heen made
in order to deterthine pension Habilities und pension xperises in conngctich with the Group’s defined benefit
pensién schemes. )

The following dssumptiods have been used in caleulating the labilities atid xpenses incurred:

31 Dec, 3 De.
2015 2014
Discount rate &t 31 Deceriber 3.45% 3.50%
Inflation assumption (RPIY 3.20% 3.16%
Revaluation in deferment:(CPI) 2.50% 2:15%
Expected returnon plan assets 3.45% 3.50%
Future salanyincreases NiA N/A
Future pension ifereases. 3.20% 3.15%
Mortality after retireffisnt SAPS (SINA) tables with mediurn cohort-year of birth projsctions.
and niinimurm of 1.25% (2014 1.25%) par annuim:improvement,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

33  Defined benefit pensions schemes (cbﬁfi'n'ued)

Eiffect of the Seheres on 2he Growp's futurs cash ). flows. (ontinued)
Under the mortality tables adopted, the expected age at death for 2 member at age 65 is as follows:

31 Dec.. 31 Dee;
2015 2014
_ 894 89.3
Famale ciirtahtly dged 45 9.7 g1.9
Maie currently aged 65 87.3 B7.8
Fefale currently aged 65 89.7 0.0

Theaverage of the weighted average duration of the liabilities of each of the schemes-is 16 years (2014: 17
yeats).

Consolidated statementof profit or logs

Yeareénded  Year ended

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD 000 KD 000
(836) (956)
700
, e 12 (3}
et aﬂnua‘l c,h-arge lnc‘!_uded in genaral and administragiye_'_éxgemes_;_ __ o (124) (161).

A reconciliation of the movement in the liability for defined benefit pension scheme is a5 follows:

Consolidated statement of financial position

31 Dec:
2015

KD '000
Brought forward Hability 4,359
Consolidated statement of profit or loss (naf) A4
Contributions - (837) (744)
Actuarial losses 167 ‘966
'Fcrelgn Exchange adjus!ments o (29) {68)
Carned forward habrhl:__i_ --'3;784 4,359




o

=1

Nationa!l Indusiries Group Holding - KPS and Subsidiaries
Gansolidated Financial Statemanis

31 Dlecember 2018

55

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

33. Defined benefit pensions schemes (continued)

Reconciliation of consolidated statemetit of financial position liability

31 Deg. 3 Dec.
2015 2014
KD '000 KD 0ne
Present value: ef obligations 23,396 24,330
1 4 (19,748) (20.082).
- 3,651 4,248
Unrecogmsed actuariaE losses 133 -
Net ||ablltty recognised in the consoiidated s!atemem of financial position. 3,784 4,359,
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KDago: KD ‘000
24,330 21,948
536 956
ial (ga (112) 2, 564
Accrued (mcome)i expenses {12)
Bereflis and expenses pald {1,567) (913)
Foreign exchan_ge‘adius'tmeni _(73_)_ (228}
Closing defined benefit obligation 23,398 24,330
Changes in the faii-value of the plan asseis
31 Dec,
2014
KD.'060
Opening fair value-of plan assets 18,030
Intesrest on-assats 708
Actuarial (losses)/ gains 1,615
Contribiutions by emplayar 744
Benefits and expenséspaid (918)
Foreign exchange atjustment (192)
Closing falr value of plan assets 20,082
“The fair value of the plan assets, by category is as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD'000 KD600
Plari assets: N
Equitics 8073
Bonds 11,424
Other assets . 588
__ 20,082

Thé dctual return on the Scheries' assets figtof expenses over the periodwas 23% (2013: 13.2%).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

33  Defined benefit pensions schemes (continued)

Sensitivity of the vabire plaved on Kabilittes
The defined benefit obligation would be:affected by changes in the actuarial assumptions. The table below
shows the potential impact of relatively small changes in-the-key assumptions:

Approximate.
effectoni
Adjustment to-agsumptions liabllities
‘KD:'000

{1,120
1264

Inftation i
Plus 0:25% 305
Miniis 0:25% (302)

Life expactanay. ‘
Plus 1 year 548
Minus 1 year (548)

Notg thé above setisitivities are approximate and only show the likely &ffeet of an assumption being adjusted
whilst:all other assumptions:remain the sami,

34 Segmental sis :

The Group activities aré ‘concentrated in four main segments: investment; building materal, specialist
engineering and hotel and I'T opérations. The segments’ results are repotted to the higher manhagerefit in the
Group. Iti addition, the segments results, assets and liabilities are reported based on the geographic locations
which the Group operates in, '
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34  Segmental analysis (Continued)

Propetty, plant arid equipment of the Group are primarily utilised by the building materials segmenf, hote] &
IT services segment and the specialist engineetihg segment, The additions and depreciation relating. to:
property; plant and equipment along with-impaitmentiin vilues by each segment, in-which the assets are used,

are as follows: B o )
_ Buliding  Spediallst  Holel & IT
lnvestment  mateifals. ‘enginesring sarvices Total.
KO 000 KD ‘000 KD ‘040 KD-‘000 KD 000,

At 31 December 2015

Additions to properiy, plant and eguipment 75 2,148 6,179 194 8,594
Depreciation 261 3,243 - 2,903 79 6,506
Imipairment in-value of available for sale o

investments 9,851 - . . 9,857
At31 December 2014 | __ | o y
Additions to property, plant and equipment 81 1,404 3228 2377 7,160
Dapreclation 313, 3548 2809 90 6,548
Impairment invalue of available for sale

investiments; 27490 . - 715 128,205

Geographical segments
The geographical analysis is as follows;

Assels ‘Sailes
Year endéd Year Ghded
31 Dac. 3 Dec, 31 Deg:
2015, 2014 2015
KD '000 KD 000 KD"600:
Kuwaltt 638,173 646,407 61,842 58,042
Qutside Kuwalt 661,169 739541 78088 67621
| | 1,209,342 1,085,048 139877 126563

35 Related party transactions

Related parties represent as 'oclat'r:s directots and: key. tanagement petsonitel of the Group, and other related
patties such as tnajor sl hies in which difettors and. kéy: managemetit personnel of the
Group ate principal owners. ot ovet whi they are able to-exercise. significint influence.or joint control. Pricing
policies aridterms of these transactions #te-approved by the Group’s management.

Details of significant related party transactions and balances are as follows:

31 Dee. 3% Dec.
2’01_5‘_"_ 2014
KD ‘000 KD-000
Transactions.and balanees included in the consolldated statement of
financtal posttion _
Due from related parties fincluded in-accounits receivable and other assets)
- Duefrtim assoclate:companigs 1,870 1,724
= Due from other related parties 2,476 955
#  [u from key managements personal a3 233
Bué fo telaled parties (intluded pecduiite payableand other liabilities) »
~  Due'to associates 238

% Duélo othér related paitles 514
Cureent pértion of the long terr borfowitigs:- miurabaha payable fo an
‘agsociate: (snc!ude-:l inshod:term borrowings) -




-

-

o W s o e

- B W e N N e

Realised gain on sale of available-forsale investfments —to associate 2

National Industries Group -H’gie_l'i_ng; «HPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Finangial Statements
#1 Degemiber 2015

35 Related party fransactions (continued)
' Yearended
3 Dec.
2018
. L , K000

Transactions ificluded ifi the'éonsdlidated statement of profitorloss

Management-and plagement foes earned from rélated parties 4
Finance cost—charged by an associate ' 466.

69

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Year ended

31 Dec
2014
KD'000.

2
774

Riurchas‘e}éiéf"raw matgrfafé. -“‘fram associates 3,932

4204

Compensation of key management personnel of the Gréup V
‘Short term employee bensfits and directors" refmuneration 3,454
End ofservice bengfits 421

3,843
3 2,139

3,875

5,082

36  Suminary of assets and liabilities by category dnd fair value

¥

measurement.

361  Categoties of financial assets afd liabilities

The caz;rying'amqun_t_s of the: Group’s financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position. may also be categotized as follows:
' 31 Deg.

2015

KD'go0
Finariglal assets:
Loansand recelvables (at:amaortised cost);
o Accounts receivable and other financlal assets {refernote'21)
‘Murabaha andwékala- nvestments
Shiort teriri deposits
Bank balance:and cash

83,696

1,000
18,661
43,388

A1 Dec.
2014
KD 000

- 130,190!

Assets at fair {J:_aj_ue {hrough profit or foss:
» Investments at fair value through profit of loss (refer note 23)

-Held for rading 24,253

56,780

32,960
26,737

- Desgnated on initial recognition
h 84,033

58, 706:

§20;342
20,805

622,751
57,520

54,287

680,271

Total '.ﬁfnancial assets 710,010

870,176

Financial labilities:

At:aniortised cost

+  Long term borrowings 437,845
Leasing creditors 44
Accolints payable and other finaricial liabilities (refer note:29) 45,267
Shott termiborrowings ' 2?-3»19.?2

e o & &

370,254

478

49,275
‘335,453
21,674

Dusé to banks
Total financialiiabilities 766,831
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

36 Summary of assets and liabilities by category (continued)

36.2  Fair value measurément

Fair value represents the price: that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market patticipants at the measuretnent date. Investments'at fair value though
profit. or loss and available for sale investriignts (exCludmg certain available for sale investments which ‘are
carried at cost/cost less itnpaifment for reisons spec1ﬂed in Note 19 to the consolidated fAnancial statemnents)
are carried at fair value and measurement details are disclosed in note 36,3 to the consolidated financial
statements. I the opition of the Group’s management, the catrying amounts of all other finaricial assets and
liabilities which are at amiortised costs is consideied a teasonable approximation of their fair vilues,

The Group dlso measures non-financial asset such. as investmenit properties at fair-value 4t each annual
reporting date (réfer 36.4):

36,3 Fairvalie hierarchy

All assets and libilities foiwhich fait value is sieasured gt disclosed in the findnclal statements ate. grouped
into three Levels of a fair value hieracchy. The thtee Levels. are defined based on the observability of
significant inputs to the thedsurement, 4§ follows:

- Level 1; quoted prices (unadjusted) ih-active markets for identical assets o liabilities;

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that ate observable for the asset o¢
habmty, either direetly (l.e. as prices) orinditctly (e, derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset.or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs).

The'level within whiclr the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of significant
input to the fair value nieasuremnent.

The financial assets and liabilitles measured at fait value on a tecurting basls in. the statement of consolidated
financial positioh are grouped into the faik-value hietarchiy as follows;

At-31 Dacember 2015
Total
o Level1 = Level2  Level3 Balance
Nofe KD'000 RO'000 KD'000 KD'000

. 28,847 26,647

a
OYfer ianaged funds ¢ . 7; 174‘ 78,105 85,279
:»Unqu ed-equlty participations d - 14,268 157,955 172,223
“Quioted shares a 222,282 882 13,049 236,183,
“Invastment at fair value through profit or foss ‘ ' -
-Quoted shares a 24,253 - . 24,253
-Local funds ' ' b - 7,708 . 7,708
“Internatianal managed portfolios and funds e 5,490 35,7500 10,831 52,071
Total assets 252,025 65,763 286,587 604,375
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

36  Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category (continued)

36,3  Fait value hierarchy (continued)

At 31 December 2014
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
Note KD'000  KD000 KD'000 KEQ00

.Asséts at fair value
Avallable for sale: investmerits

- 30,659 30:558
- 10628 77428 87,951
: - 147461 147481
T .. 956,780

[ - TR 3 )

366,780

32,969 o - 32,969
~Local funds ‘ - 7,936 - 7,936
-International mariaged porffoiios and funds 3 E < 18,801 18,801
“Total assets S 989,749 18464 274244 682,457

W@ LW

Measurement at fairvalue _

The Gropp’s finance team Peétforms valiations of finaficial items for financial reporting purposes, including,
Level 3 falt values, in consultation with thitd party valuation specialists for complex. valuatiosis, where
required. Valuation techriques are selected based on the chatacteristics of each instrument, with the overall
objective of maximising the use-6f fatket-based information.

The methods ahd valuation techniques used for the putpose of measuring fair values, are unchanged
compared to-the previous reporting year, except for cettain-quoted shates that have been fait valied bagsd on
valuation techniques as the Group’s management believes that such valuations ate thgie reptesentative of the
Fair: valiles of such investmenits based on-the information available to the: management. Accordingly these
investments with a carrying value of KD862 thousand and KID13,049 thousand have bees included under
level 2 83 respectively a5 of 31 December 2015,

a)Quoted shares & debt insttuments (level 1, 2 & 3) S _
Quoted shares represent -all listed equity securities which are publicly traded in stock exchanges. Where
quoted prices in an:active market are available, the fair value of such Inveéstavents Have been determined by

refetence to theéirqiioted bid piices at the reéort’i’r}g-dafe {Level 1) andif th mgrket for an investmetit-istiot
active, the Group has established fair value'by using valuation techniques {level 2-or 3)

b) Local funds (level2)

The undeilying investments of these funds mainly comprise of local quoted shares and motiey market
instruments and thie:fair value of the investment has beer determined based on net asset values fepotted by
the fund mianageras.of the repostiig date,

(fevel 2) _

ivestinents fn these private: equity funds mainly represert foreign quoted and unquoted
et ormation for -these. investments is limited to periodic financial repotts provided. by the
investment managers. These investments are carried at net assetvalues repotted by the investment imanagess.
Diné to the hatore of these investments, the net asset values repotted by the ifivestmént rianagers represent
thie best esfimate of fair values available for these investments. N
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
36 Summary of assets and liabilities by category (continued)

36,5  Fairvalne hierarchy (continued)

Other managed porsfolios (leve! 3) ‘

The undezlying investments of other managed poxtfolios represent foreign quoted and unquoted secutities
mianiaged by specialized portfolio manapets. They ate valued based on petiodic reports teceived from the
portfolio managers:

d) Uniquoted equity participations (le o
The consolidated financish statetaents include holdings-in vnlisted securities whichare measured at-fair value,
Fait value is estitated using discounted cash flow modél of-Sthet valuation: techniques which include some
agsumptiofs that are not supportable by obsctvable market prices ot rites,

e) International managed portfolios and funds (level3)
The undeslying investments-of internationsl managed portfolios and funds représent quoted and unquoted

secutities: ‘Theyate valued based on fund managers” report.

e techniques inputs
el can b tecoriciled

41 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
‘KD'000 KD'000
Opening balance 274,244 279,517
7,393 39,166

Met charige in fair vélue recognised:in ofher-comprehensive income:

Impairment recognised:in profitor loss (2,164) {8,560).
Net-change in fair value recognised in profit or loss : 1;156 1:202)
Net disposale:during the year {8,431) (34,667)
Retlassification 14,389 .

286,687 274244

Closirig balance

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to' teasonably. possible altetnative assumiption would not change:

significantly amounts tecogrised in profit or loss, total assefs or total liabilities or total equity.

The following table provides infottnation about the sensitivity of the fair values measurement to changes:in
the most significant unobservable inputs:

31 December 2015
Financialagset  Valuation Significant Sensitivity of'the fair value
tachnique  unobservable input Range megsisreniént fo the fnput
“Unquofed Equity  DGF Method Longerm growth rate for T o
participatiotis: cash flows for subsequent 3% -58%  Higher the: growth rate; ‘higher
years the valug '
WACC 12.6%-164% Higher ‘the WACC, fower the
valug:
Discount’ for lack of Higherthie discount rate, lower
marketability 10% -25%  the value
Private equity MNAV reported 3 .
and direct by Investment Fairmarket value of the _ Higher the FMV of the-assets,
equity funds manager underlying assets NIA higher the value
Other managed  NAVieforted _
portiolios by investiment  Fair market value of the By Highar the FMV of the assets,
' manager underlying assets , NIA higher the value
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

36  Summary of assets and liabilities by category (continued)

363  Fairvalue hietatchy (continued)

31 December 2014
Financial asset.  Valuation Stgnlflcant o Sensitlvity of the fair vaiue

technique ' __Range measuremant to the:lnptit
Unqioted Equity  DCF Method - eme nptt
participations.

2%-42%  Higher the growth:rate, higher

1he valie
9.8%-17%  Higher the WACC; lower the
_ velue
Discount for lack of Higher-the discaurit rate, lower
marketability ) 18% -25%.  thevalue
Private-squlty NAV reported ‘ .
and direct by investment Fair markel valué of the N Higher the FMV of the assets;
equity funds:  -manager underlying.assets WA higfier the valie
Other managed:  NAV reported
portfolios: by nvestment

NA

manager

The impact o profit ot loss and other comprehensive fiicome would be. immaterial if the relevant risk
variable used to fair value the level 3 investments were changed by 5%.

Discount for lack of marketability teptesents the amounts that the Group has determined -that market
participants would take ifito account these premiuins. and discoutits when pricing the i invéstments.

In case of AFS assets, the i impaitment charge in the profit or loss would depend on whether the declinie s
significatit or prolonged. An increase i the fair valiae would only. impact equity (through OCI) and, would
06t havean etfect on profit or loss.

364  Fairvalue measurement of non-financial assets

The followmg table:shows the Levels within the hiesarchy of non-finaricial-assets measured at Fait value on
a recutring ‘basis at 31 De<:ember 2014 and 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level & Total .
KID'000 K000 KD'000 K000
31 December 2015
Investment property _
= Lands arid bulldings in Kuwait - . 39,826 39,826
~Lands and buildings in-Saudi Arabla - - 6,208 6,205
~Lands and bulidings in UAE - - 316 316
- Propertigs under devélopinsnt in Kuwait . - 10,602 10,602
- Land In-Jordan - - 431 431
ands Ir . - 1202 12,102
- 689,482 69,482
31 December 2014
Investinent property _ _
- Lands anid bulldings in Kuwait . - 43,926 43926
- Lands and buildings in Saudi Arabia - - 6163 8,163
- Lands and buildings in UAE - - 341 341
- Land in Jordan - - 415 415
-Lands in Kuwait - - 16,580 10,580
- - 61,425 61,426
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

36  Summary of assets and liabilities by ¢category (continued)
364  Fairvalue measurement of non-financial asseti (continued):

The above buildings represent tetital propetties on freehold land cateporized as “Investment Lands” (Le land
which can be used to con multiple vesidential vitig buildings, apastments, villas, Duplex atid Studigs), it
Kuwrit, Jordan, UAE snd Saudi Arabia, The freehold land above also represents land categorized as
investiment lands. The falt value of the investment property has been determnined based on valuatons
obtaingd from two. mdependent valuers, who age specxahsed in valuing these types of investment properties.
The. sxgmficant inputs and.assumptions are developed in close consultation with management. One.of these
valuets is a local bank (for loeal investment properties) who has valued the investment. propetties using
prlmarl!y two methads; one of which is the Yield Method and ¢i -'g a cornbmauon of the markct
companson approach fof the land and cost minis depregiat '
who is & local teputahle valuer has also valned the i investment propi es--:prlmatliy by uslng a combination of
the methods noted above When the marker comparxson approach Is used adjustments have been
incorporate' ¢

valuatio i
valuations). Fhrtherinf‘onmuon regafdmg_the level 3 fair value measiuremnents lenebon i tho tabie beiow'

31 Decembies 2015
Significant Range of
uhobseérvable unobservable  ungl }
__Description Valuationtechnique  inputs Inputs - fa!f value
) Land and buildihgs - Yield method and  Markst ‘ S
in Kuwait and - comparison approach for  Eslimated marker ) The higher the price.per
Saudi Arabla land & costdess price for land (per KD1,202:t0 square meter; the higher
(rental propserties)y  depfeciation for buildings §Giri) KD8,B57 the f4if value
Constrlictioh cost KD&g1d ‘The higher the-corstriction
(persgm} KD284 cost per square meter, the

highei:the fali value

Average:monthly KD2.46 1o KD The:igher the rént per-
tent (per sqm) square meter; the higher
_the fair value

Yield rate The higher the yield rate,
the higher the value
Vdcancy raté The higher the vacancy
raterthe lowet the fait velug
Freehold land Market comparison Estimated market KD1,5674 to. The:higher the price per-
Kuwalt and approach prica for tand (per KD8,350 sqtiare.meler, the higher
: ! sgr) ' the fair value
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36  Summary of assets and liabilities by category (continued)
36.4- Fait value measurement of non-financial assets (continued)
Significant Range of 'Re!étionsﬁip of

Jescriptl . unobesrvable. unobservable  unobservable inputs to
Description Valuation tochnique  _ifjputs. “inputs fair value

Land and bulldings Yield methodand Market _ 4
in Kuwait and comparison-approach.for  Estimated marker - “The higher the price per:
Baudi Argbia land & cosf less piice for land (per KL3,200— ‘square meter, the higher
{rental properties) depreciaiion forbulidings  sqm) ' KDg.837 tha fair value
Eonstruction cost KD38-KD247 The higher the gonstruction:
{(persqm) ‘cost-persquars meter, the
‘ higher the fair value

Average manthly Kbz - KDS. The highef the rent per
rent:(persgm). square: meter, the higher
the falr ‘value
38%107:5%  The higher the yield rate,
the higher the value
Vacanoy rate 10% The higherthe vacancy
rate'the lowerthe falr vajue

Frechold land -Markst comparison Egtimated market KD1,.300.t0 the price per
Kuwait and a@pproach ‘price-for fand (per KD8;500 square meter, the higher:
Jordap ' $gm) the fairvalue

Level 3:Fair value measuréments

Group measutement of ifivestment propetties classified in level 3 uses vluation techniques inputs: that
‘ot 'based on observable matket data. The movement in the investmient propesties i disclosed i tiote 18.

37 Risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial liabilities comptise due to banks, short term anid long term borrowings, leasing
creditors andiaccounts payable and other liabilities. The main puspose of these financial labilities is to- raise
finance for Group: opetations. The Group has various finaticial assets'such ds agcbunts tecéivable and other
assets, bank bulaiice and cash, murabsha and wakala investments; short tébm deposits and investment
secutities-which arise directly from eperations. '

The: Group’s activities expose it tovariety of financial tisks; market fsk (fcluding cutiency vigk, infevest rate
Xp , g 3

risk and peice risk), crediv risk and liquidity risk.

The board of directors sets out policies for feducing eacly of the risks discussed below.

The Group dlso enters into derivative transactions, ptithdrily iriterest iate swaps. The putposeis to manage
the:interest fate risks arising from the Group’s sources of 'finance, The Group’s policy s not to trade in
detivative financial instruments.

Thé most significatit fiiancial risks to-which the Group is exia_.osedAto ate described below.

371  Markettisk
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
37 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
371  Market tisk (continued)

a) Fotreign curtency rlsk (continued)

‘The Group mamly opetates in the Middle Bast, USA 4nd United Kingdom and is exposed to foreign

cusrency tisk atising, primatily fiom US: Dollat, Se,udx Riyal 2 P, The consolidated statement of finaticial
hese currencies. To mitigate the Group’s-exposure

to foreign cutrency risk, non-Kuswaiti Dinar cash flows are monitored.

Generally, the Group's. risk management proceduces distinguish shott-teem foreign cuerency cash flows (due
within twelve mo fror longer-term cash- flows. Foreigh cucrency risk is managed on the basis of limits
deteimiined by the: patéiit company’s hoatd of ditectots and a continucus assesstnent of the consolidated

opefi pisitighs.

QUp’s stgmﬁcant net exposute to foreign currency denominated. monetaty assets less monetary
abilities at the tepotting date, translated intg Kuwaiti Dinars at the closing tates ate as follows:

31 Des. 31 D,
2015 2014
Eqiiivafent Equivalent
KD '000 KB+000
US Dollars (103,734) (46,;521)
SaudiRivals 15,240 3,197
GBP 7,078 {14,285)
The Parent Company’s management estimates that'a reasonable possible change ity the above exchiange rite.
wouldibée 5%,

difist the foreign cuerencies assutmng the above serisitivity (8%),

If the Kuwaiti Diriar had strenpthened ag
i the profit for the yeat. There it fio itipact on the Group’s other

thien this would have the following impact'o

comprehensive:dncome.
Profit increase!:
(decrease).

31 Dag. 31 Deg,

2015 2014
KD'000  KD'000
US Dollars , 5,187 2,306
Saudi Riyals (762} (‘!60)
GBP (364) 714
' 407y 2, 880

If'the Kuwaiti Dinay:
there would bé-an equal and opposlte impact on th
Dollars and positive for Saudi] __

g d weakened agamst the foteign currencles assufning the above sensitivity (5%) then
ofit, for the year, and thebalances shown above would

d GBP (2014: negative for US Diollits, GBP and

Exposutes to foreign exchange rates vaty dutmg the year depending on the volutne and nature of the
nis. Nonetheless, the analysis abeve is considered to beirepresentative of the Group’s exposure to

‘the foreign curtency risk.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

37 Risk management objectives and policies {continued)
371  Markettisk (continued)

by Interest.rate risk

Interest rate tisk atises fiom.the possibility that changes i interest rates will affect Future profitability or the
fair values of financial instruments: The Group iy exposed tointerest tate tisk on its short term deposits {tefer
note 31), short-and long tesm botrowings (tefer note 30 and 27) anid due to banks which are both at fixed atid
floating fnterest rates: The risk is managed by the Group by managing an appropiate ix between fxed and
tloating vate, shortterm deposits and borrowings.

Positions are monitored regulat to ensuré positions ate:maintained within esfablished limifs,
The following table flustrates the sensitivity of the profit for the year to reasonable possible change of
interest rate of +25 (0.25%) and -75 (0.75%) basis points with effect from the begitining of the year. The.
calculation is’ based on the Group’s financial instruments held at each reporting date. All other vatiables.are
held cotistant There is no itpact on Group’s othét comprehensive income.

. Increase in interest rates Degrease invinterest rates
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2015 2014 2018 2014
KD 000 KD 000 KD '000 KD 000

Effect on profit fot the year (1,850) (594). 4,949 1,782

¢)  Equityprice tisk
This is a tisk that the value of finaricial insteimetits will Auctuate as 4 fesult of chanigés in mirket prices,

whether these changes are caused by factors specific to individual instrument of its issue o fatots affecting.
all instroments; téded in the: iarket: The Group is exposed to: equity price risk with respect to-its listed:
equity inivestments which are pritarily located in Kuwait, Jordan, Baheaist, Abu Dhabi, Saudi Atabiz and
USA. Equity Investments are classified either as “Investments av fali value through piofit ot loss” ot
“available for sale investments”,

To manage its price tisk agising fom investments in.equity secutities, the Group: diversifies its porifolio,

Diversification of the portfolio is done'in accotdance with the limits detesmined by the Group.

The equi.fty....igxi'e:e risk-sensitivity is determined oit the exposuse at‘o..equity‘_ggriée tisks af the reporting. date; If
equity prices had been 10% higher/lowet, the effect on the loss for the year and ather-comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December would have been as follows:

A positive number below indicates a increase profie'and other-comptehensive income whete the equity ptices
incease by 10%, All sther vatiables are held constant.

Profit for the yeaf Other comprehensivé incorne
31 Dec, 31 Dec: 3 Dec, 31 Dec:
2015 2014 201§ 2014
KD '000 Kb'000 KD *000 KD "000

4,091

jaijug through-profit-of 16ss: ‘ - -
3897 23,619 35678

Available for sale-lyestments®

7988 23619 36678
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Notes to the consolidated fi'niariééial‘ statements (continued)

37 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
371  Market risk (continued)

¢) Equity price risk (continued) o
* Had equity prices been highet by 10% the impairment loss which Was tecognised in the congolidated
statement.of profit or loss would be reduced and consequently the profit fo¥ the year 2015 and 2014-viould be
higher.,

an: equal and opposite impact on e loises for the

For a 10% decrease iy the equity prices there would be
hewn above would be negative.

‘yeats and-other-comp hiehsive income and the amounts’s

37.2  Creditrisk N
Credit risk s the fisk that one party {0 afinatictal instroment will fai to dischatgie an obligation and caugethe
athet party to'ingur a finaticial loss. The Group credit policy and--:expasura;.;to_--étédif tisk-is monitored-6n -an
ongt ';_g basis. The Group segks to: ay_oid‘gndue_‘concentfaitior_is_of":ri$,ks‘ with individuals orgroups of customers
in specific locations ot business through divetsification of its activites.

The Group’s exposute to ciedit sk is limited to the carryifig amounts of financia) agsets recognised at: the
reporting date, 28 surirnarized below: :
31 Deg. 31 Dec:
2018 2014
Kb 000 KD '000.

880,274
69,632
598
58,706
6,715
53,354

770,010 870,176

Available for sale investments 4

Acciaunts receivable and other assets (refer note 21)
Murabaha gnd wakala investments _
Investments at fair value through profit or joss
Shortterm deposits

The Geoup continuously mionitots defaults of customers and cithe,_s_:-cﬁunt'ergafﬁcs,-idgntiﬁ_ed either individually
orby Group, and. incorporate this. infotmation into its credit sk controls. Where available at reasosiable cost,
external credit fatings and/for reports on customets and ‘other countetpirfies ate obtained -and, used, The
Growip’s policy is to-deal only with reditworthy countetpatties. Notie of the above finaticial assets are past dug
not impaired except for certain. Jeala investnents referred to in fiote:22, gertain available for saleinvestments,
account receivable and otherasset and investiiehit at fair value through profit oeloss tefetred tod note 1921
and 23 respectively, The Group's management considess that gll the-abave firiancial assets that-are neither past

due fiot impaired for each of the teporting dates under review ate: ‘oood credit quality.

Noiie of th‘e--G-r:oup?sfﬁ:hﬁficial assets are secuted by collatéral or-other credit entiancetnefits,

) élvables, the ‘Group is not exposed: to: any significanit credit cisk expostite to any single
counterparty: The credit tisk for bank balances agd shott term deposits is considered neglipible, since the
countetparties ate reputable fifanicial fnstitation with high credit quality. Tiifotmation: on other significant
concentrations-of ctedit rigkis setioutdh note 37.3.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

37 Risk management objectives and. p_q:i es (continued)

37.3  Concentration of assets’ o
The distribution of financial assets by geograpkil¢ rejgion was-as follows:

Other
Middie »
o Eastern Asia & UK &. !
Kuiwalt Counirles Afrloa Europe usa Total
KD '000 KD"000 ‘Ko'oo KD '000 KD 000 KD 'go0

At 31 December 2045

Geographic region: o

Available for sale investments 168,196 163,144 106,351 15,248 88,298 541,237

Accounts recelvable-and other ‘ o
gesets 29,418 42,394 1,294 10,290 302 83,696

Investivients. at fair valie through ‘ _
profit or loss 20,224 10,399 3,874 40,690 8,846 84,083

Murabaha and wakala investments 1,000 - - - : 1,000

Short-term: deposits . 10,672 213 - . 8,778 16,661

ash 36,786 2,081 604 3,761 152 43,383

266,293 218,231 112423 69989 103374 770,010

Bhot-term deposits: 6,716

At 31 Decerhber 2014

Geographic reglon:. '
Avallablefor saleinvestments 188,950 270,240 107,192 18,755 84,134 680,271
Accounts recelvable and other ‘ _
assels _ 24,715 3538 1,404 31,362 8,513 69,632
Investments:at falr value through L ‘
profitorloss 29,843 7,768 2,818 15,643 -3.-739
Mursbaha:and wakala investment 598 - .

Bank balances and caisti 20177 2,080 1465 28023 609 53354

Liiquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet.

282098 283621 . 112879 03883 96,995 870476

374 Liquidity risk .
dbilities when:they fall:due. To limit:this
tigk, ‘mdnagement has atfanged diversified funding sources, wmandges assets with liquidity in mind, and
fionitors liquidity on a regular basis.

The contractual maturities of financial liabilities bised on unié ited cash flows até as follows:
Upto 1 143 312 15 '
month ‘months: months Years Total
KD 000 KD '000 KD"'000 KD '00d KD ‘000

31 December 2015

Financial llabilities {undiscounted) - _
Long-tefm borrowings: - 2,602 7,584 473,122 483,308
Leasing credifors . 44 199 424
Accounts payable and other liabilities 9,563 22,365 -
Short-term borrowings 72,338 114,058 ‘
Pue tobanks: -

84548 144203 413,546
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

37 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

374  Eiquidity risk (continued)
Upto 1 13 312 1.5
month onthg months Years Total
KD '000. KD."00o. KD 000 KD 000 KD'000.

31 December 2014 _
Finarnicial liabilitles (undisgoimited)

Longsterm borrowlngs, 6,659 1812 8,097 413,448 427,018
Leasing creditors - 236 478 714
Accounts.payable and other llabilities ‘23,143 4,828 21,304 - 49,275
Short-term borrowings: 44,804 87,820 219,757 - 349,381

Due to:hiitks 21674 - < 21,874

93,280 94460 246394 413,026 848,080

The Group's short. term botrowings principally represent revolving facilities with local and foreign banks and
financial institutions. The Group’s management has successfully denewed all shoet term facilities which were
classified as falling due within one mionth and oiie to thiee rionths.

38  Staff shaves

The Parent:Company hias ‘an approved share issuance schieme todts senior management, whete the: patént
company’s shares.can be issued to staff'as bonus shares by utilizing its wreasury shares, and the scheme will
expire in 2016. However no staff shates were issued.during the year 2014 and 2015.

39 Capital risk management
The Grqup s capxtal manhagément ob] ectives ate:to ensre that the Group malitains astrong credit rating and
healthy ratios in-order to. suppott its business and maximise shazeholder value:

The Group manages the capital stiucture and makes adjuséments in the light of changes in economic
conditions and tisk characteristics of ihe underlying assets. In order to mintait or: adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount-of dividends:paid to shareholders, buyback shiates, issue new shares ot sell
assets toteduce debt;

The capital structure for the Group consists of the following:

A1 Deg: 31 Dec.,
2015 2014
KD 000 KD ‘000,
Long term borrawings:{fefer note:27) 437,845 370 254
Shott term horrowings (refér rigte:30) 263,190 45
Duefobanks 19,915
720,950 72'? 381
Less: - . . .
Murabaha and wakala investments {1,000) (598)
Shart - -tert depoesits (16,661) 8.715)
~ Bank balances and cash (43,383) (83,354}
Net debt | ' 659,908 eee714

Total equity 81291t 587,102

Consistent with dthess in the industry; the Group.motiitors capital on the basis:of the gearing ratio,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

39 Capital risk management (continued) _
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by the tofal ‘equity as follows:
31.Dee 31 Dec
2015 2014
ﬂ/a %

Net.debt to:equity ratio 129 114

40  Contingent liabilities
4 ip. had contingent labilities in tespect of cutstanding bank guaratitees
amoeunting to KD20,773 thousand (2014: KID30,589 thousand), ' '

41  Fiduciary assets
One of the-subsidiaties 6f the Geoup mianages mutual funds, portfolios on behalf of related-and third parties,
and maintdins securities in fiduciaty agcounts whicl ate not reflected in the consolidated. statement: of
financial ‘position, Assets vedes magiagement at 31 December: 2015 amounted ‘to' KD4,712 thousand (2014
KDG:906 thousand) of which assets managed on behalf of related patties amounted to KD2,113 thousand

e X

(2014: KID5,085 thousand).

42  Capital commitments
At the reporting date the Group had commitments: for the puich
propesty, plant and equipment totalling KID36,481 thonsand (20

erof ifvestments and the acquisition of
K1324,510 thoussnd).

At the reporting date, the Group had commitment to pay lease rentals amounting to. KD5,329 thousand
(2014: KID4,868 thousand),

43  Comparative information _

Ceitain othier compatative figures has been reclassified to conform t the presentation in. the: cutrent year,
and such reclassification does not affect previously reported net assets, net equity and net results for the year
ot net decredse in cash and cash equivalerirs.
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Independent auditors’ report

To the shareholders of
National Industries Group Holding — KPSC
Kuwait

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of National Industries Group Holding —
KPSC (“The Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries, (together “the Group”) which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolsdated Financial Statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such intetnal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. ‘Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
frand ot error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s interal control. An audit also includes evaluating the approptiateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of National Industties Group Holding and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014, and their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Boatd of Directors
relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we
obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the
consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No 25 of
2012 and its Executive regulations and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Atticles
of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly catried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, no violations of the Companies Law No. 25 of 2012 and its Executive regulations nor of the Parent
Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during
the year ended 31 December 2014 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position
of the Group.

— o

~ _‘_DJI%
Abdullatif M. Al-Aiban (CPA) Abdullatif A.-H. Al-Majid
(Licence No. 94-A) (Licence No. 70-A)
of Grant Thomnton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners of Parker Randall (Allied Accountants)
Kuwait

29 March 2015
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Continuing operations
Sales 126,563 116,857
Cost of sales (96,918) (89,965)
Gross profit 29,645 26,892
Income from investments 8 56,016 48,659
Share of results of associates 17 41,720 18,398
Profit on disposal of associates 17 1,140 889
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 16 8 1,693
Realised gain on disposal of investment properties 18 740 -
Changes in fair value of investment properties 18 4,138 1,891
Rental income 1,553 1,683
Interest and other income 9 1,351 4,559
Distribution costs (6,651) (5,427)
General, administrative and other expenses (23,857) (21,524)
105,803 77,713
Finance costs 11 (30,520) (34,841)
Impairment in value of available for sale investments 19 (28,205) (24,706)
Impairment in value of investment in associates (2,171) (118)
Impairment in value of receivables and other assets 21 (1,441) (898)
Loss on foreign currency exchange (3,752) (862)
Profit before taxation, other statutory contributions and directors’
remunerations 39,714 16,288
Taxation and other statutory contributions 12 (2,453) (1,375)
Directors’ remuneration (430) (90)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 36,831 14,823
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 34 - 1,824
Profit for the year 13 36,831 16,647
Attributable to :
Owners of the Parent 28,282 10,176
Non-controlling interests 8,549 6,471
36,831 16,647
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Parent 14
- From continuing operations 21.3 Fils 6.3 Fils
- From discontinued operations - 1.4 Fils
Total 21.3 Fils 7.7 Fils

The notes set out on pages 10 to 81 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Profit for the year 36,831 16,647
Other comprehensive income:
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations 4,974 (2,959)
Available for sale investments:
- Net changes in fair value arising during the year (15,596) 29,255
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal (26,190) (22,147)
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on impairment 28,205 24,706
Share of other comprehensive income of associates
- Changes in fair value 2,472 2,702
Total other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods (6,135) 31,557
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Defined benefit plan actuarial (losses)/gains (966) 13
Total other comprehensive income not being reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods (966) 13
Total other comprehensive income for the year (7,101) 31,570
Total comprehensive income for the year 29,730 48,217
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 26,498 33,304
Non-controlling interests 3,232 14,913
29,730 48,217

The notes set out on pages 10 10 81 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 15 17,530 9,221
Property, plant and equipment 16 70,647 70,712
Investment in associates 17 330,968 294,406
Investment properties 18 61,425 49,943
Available for sale investments 19 616,919 673,285
Accounts receivable 21 2,102 2,086
Total non-current assets 1,099,591 1,099,653
Current assets
Inventories 20 32,023 31,908
Available for sale investments 19 63,352 75,958
Accounts receivable and other assets 21 70,609 66,174
Murabaha and wakala investments 22 598 4,500
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 23 59,706 65,199
Short-term deposits 31 6,715 2,061
Bank balances and cash 3 53,354 32,253
Total current assets 286,357 278,053
Total assets 1,385,948 1,377,706
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 24 135,985 129,510
Treasury shares 25 (30,375) (30,375)
Share premium 24 122,962 122,962
Cumuiative changes in fair value 26 160,785 164,439
Other components of equity 26 27,167 18,552
Retained earnings 23,849 10,344
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 440,373 415,432
Non-controlling interests 26 146,729 147,976
Total equity 587,102 563,408
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 27 370,254 529,632
Leasing creditors 478 131
Provisions 28 15,809 12,688
Total non-current liabilities 386,541 542,451
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 29 55,178 48,398
Short-term borrowings 30 335,453 200,375
Due to banks 31 21,674 23,074
Total current liabilities 412,305 271,847
Total fiabilities 798,846 814208
Total equity and liabilities 1,366,948 1,377,706
7
4
| ’/ e
N %
Q‘ ? D
Sa’ad Mohammed Al-Sa’ad AhmadoRammedHassan
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

The notes set out on pages 10 1o 81 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2014

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation, other statutory contributions and directors’
remuneration 39,714 16,288

Adjustments:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,848 9,646
Changes in fair value of investment properties (4,138) (1,891)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (8) (1,693)
Gain on disposal of associates (1,140) (889)
Realised gain on disposal of investment properties (740) -
Impairment in value of investment in associates 2,171 118
Share of results of associates (41,720) (18,398)
Reversal of impairment provision of wakala investment - (874)
Dividend income from available for sale investments (13,997) (19,583)
Profit on sale of available for sale investments (37,597) (21,902)
Impairment in value of receivable and other assets 1,441 898
Effect of unwinding discount on receivable - (401)
Impairment in value of available for sale investments 28,205 24,706
Deemed gain on acquisition of available for sale investments - (2,880)
Net provisions charged/(released) 3,121 (2,451)
Finance costs 30,520 34,841
Interest/profit on bank balances, short-term deposits, wakala and

murabaha investments (504) (631)

12,176 15,004

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories (115) (6,264)
Accounts receivable and other assets (8,434) (8,710)
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 5,493 (3,207)
Accounts payable and other liabilities (1,104) 2,906
Cash from/(used in) operations 8,016 (271)
KFAS and Zakat contribution paid (453) (482)
NLST paid (543) (33)
Taxation paid (601) (249)
Net cash from/(used in) continuing operations 6,419 (1,035)
Net cash from discontinuing operations - (190)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 6,419 (1,225)

The notes set ont on pages 10 to 81 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2014

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,160) (8,363)
Proceeds from disposal of property, piant and equipment 214 2,471
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 10,265 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (2,267)
Additions to investment properties (16,869) (17,814)
Investment in associates (2,490) (10,820)
Dividend received from associate companies 9,122 8,201
Proceeds from disposal of associate 4,424 7,020
Cash received from impaired wakala investment - 874
Decrease in wakala investments maturing after three months 3,902 6,793
(Increase)/decrease in blocked deposits (1,413) 6,272
Purchase of available for sale investments (22,446) (27,559)
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments 87,228 80,416
Dividend income received from available for sale investments 13,997 19,583
Interest/profit on bank balances, short-term deposits, wakala and
murabaha investments 453 548
Net cash from investing activities 79,227 65,355
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (decrease)/increase in long-term borrowings (32,815) (72,123)
Finance lease payments 457 (49)
Net increase/(decrease) in short-term borrowings 8,515 21,872
Dividend paid to the owners of the parent (36) 47
Finance costs paid (30,030) (32,841)
Decrease in non-controlling interests (6,112) (8,727)
Net cash used in financing activities (60,021) (91,915)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25,625 (27,785)
Translation difference 117 @)
25,742 (27,792)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 9,816 37,608
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31 35,558 9,816

The notes set ont on pages 10 to 81 form an integral part of these consolidated financial siatements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities

National Industries Group Holding — KPSC (“the Parent Company™) was incorporated in 1961 as a Kuwaiti
shareholding company in accordance with the Commetcial Companies Law in the State of Kuwait and in
April 2003, its status was transformed to a “Holding Company”. The Patent Company along with its
subsidiaries are jointly referred to as “the Group”. The Parent Company’s shates are traded on the Kuwait
Stock Exchange and Dubai Financial Market.

The main objectives of the Parent Company ate as follows:

- Owning stocks and shares in Kuwaiti or non-Kuwaiti shareholding companies and shares in Kuwaiti or
non-Kuwaiti limited liability companies and participating in the establishment of, lending to and
managing of these companies and acting as a guarantor fot these companies.

- Lending money to companies in which it owns 20% or more of the capital of the borrowing company,
along with acting as guarantor on behalf of these companies.

- Owning industrial equities such as patents, industrial trademarks, royalties, or any other related rights,
and franchising them to other companies or using them within or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Owning real estate and moveable property to conduct its operations within the limits as stipulated by
law.

- Employing excess funds available with the group by investing them in investment and real estate
portfolios managed by specialised companies.

The address of the parent company’s registered office is PO Box 417, Safat 13005, State of Kuwait.

The Companies Law issued on 26 November 2012 by Decree Law no 25 of 2012 (the “Companies Law™),
which was published in the Official Gazette on 29 November 2012, cancelled the Commercial Companies
Law No 15 of 1960. The Companies Law was subsequently amended on 27 March 2013 by Law No. 97 of
2013.

On 29 September 2013, Ministry of Commerce and Industry issued its regulation No. 425/2013 regarding the
Executive by-laws of the Companies Law. All existing companies are required to comply with articles of these
by-laws within one year from the date of its issuance. The Parent Company has amended its Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association according to the new Law and it was approved by the shareholders
at the Extraordinary General Assembly held on 28 May 2014.

The board of directors of the Parent Company approved these consolidated financial statements for issuance
on 29 March 2015. The general assembly of the Parent Company’s shareholders has the power to amend
these consolidated financial statements after issuance.

2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include
the revaluation of freehold and leasehold properties, the measurement at fair value of investments at fair
value through profit or loss, available for sale financial assets and investment properties.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (KD) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (KD ‘000), except when otherwise indicated.

The Group has elected to present the “statement of comprehensive income” in two statements: the
“statement of profit or loss” and a “statement of comprehensive income”.

3 Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those used in previous year except as discussed below:

4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the group
A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Information, on these new standards which are relevant to the Group, is presented below:

Effective for annual periods

Standard or Interpretation beginning
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Amendments 1 January 2014
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets- Amendments 1 January 2014
IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting —
Amendments 1 January 2014
Investment Entities —~ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 1 January 2014
IFRIC 21 Levies 1 January 2014

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Amendments
The amendments to IAS 32 add application guidance to address inconsistencies in applying TAS 32’s critetia
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the following two areas:

* the meaning of currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off;
® that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement.

The amendments are required to be applied retrospectively. The adoption of the amendments had no
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for any periods presented.

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets - Amendments

The amendments to IAS 36 reduces the circumstances in which the recoverable amount of assets or cash-
generating units is required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosutes required, and to introduce an explicit
requirement to disclose the discount rate used in determining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable
amount (based on fair value less costs of disposal) is determined using a present value technique.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively in accordance with their transitional provisions. The
adoption of the amendments had no material effect on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for any petiod presented.

IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting - Amendments
The Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement make it clear that there is no need
to discontinue hedge accounting if a hedging derivative is novated, provided certain criteria are met.

A novation indicates an event where the original parties to a derivative agree that one or more clearing
counterpatties replace their original counterparty to become the new counterparty to each of the parties. In
order to apply the amendments and continue hedge accounting, novation to a central counterparty (CCP)
must happen as a consequence of laws or regulations or the introduction of laws or regulations.

The adoption of the amendments had no material effect on the Group’s financial statements for any period
presented.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

Investment Entities - Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27

The Amendments define the term ‘investment entity’, provide supporting guidance and require investment
entities to measure investments in the form of controlling interests in another entity at fair value through
profit or loss.

The adoption of the amendment did not result in any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 clarifies that:

a) the obligating event that gives rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy, as
identified by the government’s legislation. If this activity arises on a specific date within an accounting
period then the entire obligation is recognised on that date

b) the same recognition principles apply in the annual and interim financial statements.

IFRIC 21 is required to be applied retrospectively in accordance with its transitional provisions, but had no
material effect on the Group’s financial statements for any period presented.

4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but ate not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Group’s financial
statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Standard or Interpretation Effective for annual periods beginning

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments 1 January 2016
IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations -

Amendments 1 January 2016
IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative - Amendments 1 January 2016
IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depteciation

and Amortisation - Amendments 1 January 2016

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments 1 January 2016
IFRS 10, TFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception - Amendments 1 January 2016
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The IASB has replaced IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ (IAS 39) in its entirety
with IFRS 9. IFRS 9 (2014) incorporates the final requirements on all three phases of the financial
instruments projects: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The new standard
introduces extensive changes to ISA 39’s guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets
and introduces a new ‘expected credit loss’ model for the impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 also provides
new guidance on application of hedge accounting,

Although eatlier application of this standard is permitted, the Technical Committee of the Ministry of
Commerce and Industry of Kuwait decided on 30 December 2009, to postpone this early application till
further notice.

The Group’s management have yet to assess the impact of this new standard on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts and provides a new control-based
revenue recognition model using five step approach to all contracts with customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:

Identify the contract with the customer

Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts

Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligations.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The standard includes important guidance, such as

® Contracts involving the delivery of two or more goods or services — when to account separately for
the individual performance obligations in a multiple element arrangement, how to allocate the
transaction price, and when to combine contracts

® timing — whether revenue is required to be recognized over time or at a single point in time

® variable pricing and credit risk — addressing how to treat arrangements with variable or contingent
(e.g. performance-based) pricing, and introducing an overall constraint on revenue

¢ time value — when to adjust a contract price for a financing component

®  specific issues, including —
- non-cash consideration and asset exchanges
- contract costs
- rights of return and other customet options
- supplier repurchase options
- warranties
- principal versus agent
- licencing
- breakage
- non-refundable upfront fees, and
- consignment and bill-and-hold arrangements.

The Group’s management have yet to assess the impact of this standard on these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 TASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments

The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011) clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its
associate or joint venture, as follows:

® require full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)

® require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, i.e. 2
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture.

These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale ot contribution
of assets occurs by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of
control of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves.

These amendments are not expected to have any matetial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations - Amendments

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Atrangements require an acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations) to apply all of the business
combinations accounting principles in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs, except for those principles that conflict with
the guidance in IFRS 11. It also requires disclosute of the information required by IFRS 3 and other IFRSs
for business combinations.

The amendments apply both to the initial acquisition of an interest in joint operation, and the acquisition of
an additional interest in a joint operation (in the latter case, previously held interests are not remeasured).
The amendments apply prospectively to acquisitions of interests in joint operations.

These amendments are not expected to have any material on the Group‘s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative - Amendments
The Amendments to IAS 1 make the following changes:

®  Mareriality. The amendments clarify that (1) information should not be obscured by aggregating or by
providing immaterial information, (2) materiality considerations apply to all the parts of the financial
statements, and (3) even when a standard requires 2 specific disclosure, materiality considerations do
apply.

o Statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprebensive income: The amendments (1)
inttoduce a clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be
disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these statements and
(2) clatify that an entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures should be
presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified
to profit or loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative - Amendments (continued)

® Notes: The amendments add additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify
understandability and comparability should be considered when determining the order of the notes
and to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the order so far listed in paragraph 114
of IAS 1. The IASB also removed guidance and examples with regard to the identification of
significant accounting policies that were perceived as being potentially unhelpful.

IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation -
Amendments

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets address the following
matters:

* adepreciation method that is based on revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use
of an asset is not appropriate for property, plant and equipment

® an amortisation method that is based on the revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of
an intangible asset is generally inappropriate except for limited circumstances

® expected future reductions in the selling price of an item that was produced using an asset could
indicate the expectation of technological or commercial obsolescence of the asset, which, in turn,
might reflect a reduction of the futute economic benefits embodied in the asset.

These amendments are not expected to have any martial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments
The Amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements permit investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates to be optionally accounted for using the equity method in separate financial statements.

These amendments are not expected to have any martial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 'Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception -
Amendments
The Amendments are aimed at clarifying the following aspects:

®  Exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements. The amendments confirm that the exemption
from prepating consolidated financial statements for an intermediate parent entity is available to a
parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment entity measures all of
its subsidiaries at fair value.

® A subsidiary providing services that relate 1o the parent's invesiment activities. A subsidiary that provides
setvices related to the parent's investment activities should not be consolidated if the subsidiary itself
is an investment entity.

®  Application of the equity method by a non-investment entity investor to an invesiment entity investee. When applying
the equity method to an associate or a joint venture, a non-investment entity investor in an
investment entity may retain the fair value measurement applied by the associate ot joint venture to
its interests in subsidiaries.

®  Disdlosures required. An investment entity measuring all of its subsidiaries at fair value provides the
disclosures relating to investment entities required by IFRS 12.

These amendments are not expected to have any martial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 TASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

(§) Amendmenis 1o IFRS 5 - Adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which an entity reclassifies an asset
from held for sale to held for distribution or vice versa and cases in which held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued.

(if) Amendments to IFRS 7 - Additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing
involvement in a transferred asset, and clatification on offsetting disclosures in condensed interim financial
statements.

(1ti) Armendments to LAS 19 - Clarify that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the discount rate
for post-employment benefits should be denominated in the same currency as the benefits to be paid.

(iv) Amendments to LAS 34 - Clarify the meaning of 'elsewhere in the interim report' and require a cross-
reference.

These amendments are not expected to have any materal impact to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle:

(i) Amendmenis 1o IFRS 3-Contingent consideration that does not meet the definition of an equity instrument is
subsequently measured at each reporting date fair value, with changes recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(t1) Amendments to IFRS 13- The addition to the Basis for Conclusions confirms the existing measurement
treatment of short-term receivables and payables.

(i11) Amendments to IFRS 8- Disclosures are required regarding judgements made by management in aggregating
operating segments (i.e. description, economic indicators).

A reconciliation of reportable segments” assets to total entity assets is required if this is regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maket.

(iv) Amendments 1o LAS 16 and LAS 38- When items are revalued, the gross cattying amount is adjusted on a
consistent basis to the revaluation of the net carrying amount.

(v) Amendments to LAS 24- Entities that provide key management personnel setvices to a repotting entity, or
the reporting entity’s parent, are considered to be related parties of the reporting entity.

These amendments are not expected to have any martial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle
(1) Amendments 1o IFRS 1-the amendment to the Basis for Conclusions clarifies that an entity prepating its
IFRS financial statements in accordance with IFRS 1 is able to use both:

e IFRSs that are currently effective
® IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, that permits early adoption
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle (continued)
The same version of each IFRS must be applied to all petiods presented.

(1) Amendments to IFRS 3- IFRS 3 is not applied to the formation of a joint arrangement in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself.

(ii) Amendments fo IFRS 13- the scope of the portfolio exemption (IFRS 13.52) includes all items that have
offsetting positions in market and/or counterparty credit risk that are recognised and measured in accordance
with IAS 39/IFRS 9, itrespective of whether they meet the definition of a financial asset/liability.

1) Amendments 1o LAS 40 - Clarifying the interrelationship of IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when classifying property as
an investment property or owner-occupied property

These amendments are not expected to have any martial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

5 Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies and measurements bases adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are summarised below:

5.1. Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Parent Company and all of its subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and they are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for reporting dates
which are typically not more than three months from that of the Parent Company, using consistent
accounting policies. Adjustments are made for the effect of any significant transactions or events that occur
between that date and the reporting date of the Parent Company’s financial statements. The details of the
significant subsidiaries are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

All transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between Group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset
sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a Group
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are recognised from the date the Group gains control, ot until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary, as applicable.
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5.1. Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net assets that is not held by the Group. The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of
subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownership interests. Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

®  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
® Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

® Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity

® Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

® Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

® Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

® Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income
to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group has directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

5.2.  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes
the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs
are expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquiter measures the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the propottionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in 2 business combination regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the
acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be
asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as change to other
comprehensives income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it should not be remeasured
until it is finally settled within other comptehensive income.
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5.2. Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of
the sum of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non controlling interest
in the acquiree and c) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the
acquisition-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum
calculated above, the excess amount (ie. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

5.3.  Goodwill and intangible assets

5.3.1 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognised. See note 5.2 for information on how goodwill is initially
determined. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Refer to note 5.13 for a
description of impairment testing procedures.

5.3.2 Intangible assets
Identifiable non-monetary assets acquired in as business combination and from which future benefits are

expected to flow are treated as intangible assets. Intangible assets comprise of Indefeasible Rights of Use
(IRU).

Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized over their useful lives. For acquired network
businesses whose operations are governed by fixed term licenses, the amortisation period is determined
primarily by reference to the unexpired license petiod and the conditions for license renewal.

IRU are the rights to use a portion of the capacity of a terrestrial or submarine transmission cable granted for
a fixed period. IRUs are recognised at cost as an asset when the Group has the specific indefeasible right to
use an identified portion of the undetlying asset, generally optical fibres or dedicated wave length bandwidth
and the duration of the right is for the major part of the underlying asset’s economic life. They are amortised
on a straight line basis over the shorter of the expected period of use and the life of the contract which ranges
between 10 to 15 years.

5.4.  Investment in associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence but which are neither
subsidiaties nor joint ventures. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any goodwill or fair value adjustment attributable to the Group’s
share in the associate is not recognised separately and is included in the amount recognised as investment in
associates.

Under the equity method, the carrying amount of the investment in associates is increased or decreased to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit ot loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, adjusted
Wwhere necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the Group.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in those entities. Where unrealised losses are eliminated, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment.

The share of results of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statements of income. This is the
profit attributable to equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit after tax and non-controlling
interests in the subsidiaties of the associate.
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5.4 Investment in associates (continued)

The difference in reporting dates of the associates and the Group is not more than three months.
Adjustments are made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date and
the date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The associate’s accounting policies conform to
those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessaty to tecognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associate. The Group determines at each
reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount under a separate heading in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

5.5.  Segment reporting

The Group has four operating segments: Investment, building materials, specialist engineering and hotel and
IT services segments. In identifying these operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s
service lines representing its main products and services. Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each requires different approaches and other resources.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its financial
statements. In addition, assets or liabilities which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

5.6. Profit or loss from discontinued opetations
A discontinued operation is 2 component of the Group that has either been disposed of, ot is classified as
held for sale, and:
- represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations
- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations or
- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with 2 view to resale.

Profit or loss from discontinued operations, including prior year components of profit or loss, is presented in
a single amount in the consolidated statements of profit or loss. This amount, which comprises the post-tax
profit or loss of discontinued operations and the post tax gain or loss resulting from the measurement and
disposal of assets classified as assets held for sale, is further analysed in note 34.

The disclosures for discontinued operations in the pror year relate to all operations that have been
discontinued by the reporting date of the latest period presented.

5.7. Revenue

Revenue arises from the sale of goods, rendering of services, investing activities and real estate activities. It is
measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or teceivable, excluding sales taxes, rebates
and trade discounts.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
tevenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made. The following specific tecognition
criteria should also be met before revenue is recognised;
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5.7. Revenue (continued)

5.7.1. Sale of goods
Sale of goods is recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership, generally when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods with no significant service obligation is recognised on delivery.

When goods are sold together with customer loyalty incentives, the consideration receivable is allocated
between the sale of goods and sale of incentives based on theit fair values. Revenue from sale of incentives is
recognised when they are redeemed by customers in exchange for products supplied by the Group.

5.7.2.Rendering of services

The Group generates revenues from after-sales service and maintenance, consulting and construction
contracts. Consideration received for these services is initially deferred, included in other liabilities and is
recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed.

In recognising after-sales setvice and maintenance revenues, the Group considers the nature of the services
and the customer’s use of the related products, based on historical experience.

The Group also earns rental income from operating leases of its investment properties. Rental income is
tecognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The Group earns fees and commission income from diverse range of asset management, investment banking,
custody and brokerage setvices provided to its customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two
categories:

®  Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time
Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees
include commission income and asset management, custody and other management fees.

o Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising for rendering specific advisory services, brokerage services, equity and debt placement
transactions for a third party or arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for
a third party are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.

5.7.3. Interest and similar income
Intetest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

Mutrabaha income is recognised on a time proportion basis so as to yield a constant petiodic rate of return based
on the balance outstanding.

5.7.4.Dividend income

Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, are recognised at the time the right to
receive payment is established.

5.7.5. Revenue from sale of investment properties

Revenue from sale of investment properties is recognised on completion of sale contract and after
transferring the risk and rewards associated with the real estate to the purchaser and the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured.
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5.8. Operating expenses
Operating expenses ate recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or at the date of their

origin.

5.9.  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the petiod of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in finance
costs.

5.10.  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less the estimated residual value of
property, plant and equipment, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings Lower of 50 years or temaining useful life
Long leasehold property Lower of 50 years or remaining lease term
Short leasehold property Lease tetm

Property on leasehold land 4 to 20 years

Plant and machinery 1 to 15 years

Motor vehicles 2 to 10 years

Furniture and equipment 4 to 10 years

Any increase arising on revaluation is credited ditectly to other comprehensive income as “revaluation
reserve” except to the extent where the increase reverses a revaluaton decrease related to the same asset for
which a decrease in valuation has previously been recognised as an expense, it is credited to the consolidated
statement of income. Any decrease in the net catrying amount arising on revaluation is charged directly to the
consolidated statement of income, or charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that the decrease is
related to an increase for the same asset which was previously recorded as a credit to the revaluation surplus.

Depreciation on the re-valued properties is charged to the consolidated statement of income over their
remaining estimated useful lives and an amount equivalent to the excess depreciation charge relating to the
increase in carrying amount is transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to retained carnings.

No depreciation is provided on frechold land. Properties in the course of construction for production or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation of these assets,
which is on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

5.11. Leased assets

5.11.1. Finance lease

The economic ownership of a leased asset is transferred to the lessee if the lessee bears substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset. Where the Group is a lessee in this type of arrangement,
the related asset is recognised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the lease payments plus incidental payments, if any. A cotresponding amount is recognised as
a finance lease liability. Leases of land and buildings are classified separately and are split into a land and a
building element, in accordance with the relative fair values of the leasehold interests at the date the asset is
recognised initially.

See note 5.10 for the depreciation methods and useful lives for assets held under finance lease. The
corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments net of finance charges. The intetest element
of lease payments represents a constant proportion of the outstanding capital balance and is charged to profit
or loss, as finance costs over the petiod of the lease.
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5.11.  Leased assets (continued)

5.11.2. Operating lease

All other leases are treated as operating leases. Where the Group is a lessee, payments on operating lease
agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except where the lease
terms are onerous in which case the provision is made for the net present value of the probable liability.
Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

5.12.  Investment property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are accounted
for using the fair value model.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently, investment
properties are re-measured at fair value on an individual basis based on valuations by independent real estate
valuers and are included in the consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in fair value are taken to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties are de-recognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income in the year of retitement or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied propetty, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to
the date of change in use.

5.13. Impairment testing of goodwill and non financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from synetgies of the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Group’s management as
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or
cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in citcumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, To
determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from the asset or each cash-
generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures ate directly linked to the Group’s latest approved
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements,

Discount factors are determined individually for each asset or cash-generating unit and reflect management’s
assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risks factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-

generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its catrying amount.
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5.14. Financial instruments

5.14.1. Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a patty to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs,
except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described below.

All ‘regular way’ purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date ie. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

A financial asset (o, where applicable a part of financial asset ot patt of group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised when:

® rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;

® the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’
arrangement; and either
(8) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset ot has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

5.14.2. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:

* loans and receivables

* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
* held-to-maturity (HTM) investments

* available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.
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5.14. Financial instruments (continued)

5.14.2. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting
date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which
are described below.

All material income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within income from investments, interest & other income or under a separate heading in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

e Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is
immaterial. They are included in current assets, except for matutities greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other
objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. Receivables that are not considered to
be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in groups, which are determined by refetence to the
industry and region of a counterparty and other shared credit risk characteristics. The impairment loss
estimate is then based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group.

The Group categorises loans and receivables into following categories:

o Murababa investments | receivables

Murabaha is an Islamic transaction involving the purchase and immediate sale of an asset at cost plus an
agreed profit. The amount due is settled on a deferred payment basis. When the credit risk of the transaction
is attributable to a financial institution, the amount due under Murabaha contracts is classified as a Murabaha
investment. Whereas, when the credit risk of transaction is attributable to counterparties other than banks
and financial institutions, the amount due is classified as Murabaha receivable.

Mutabaha teceivables which atise from the Group’s financing of long-term transactions on an Islamic basis
are classified as Murabaha receivables originated by the Group and are carried at the principal amount less
provision for credit risks to meet any decline in value. Third party expenses such as legal fees, incurred in
granting a Murabaha are treated as part of the cost of the transaction.

All Murabaha receivables are recognized when the legal right to control the use of the underlying asset is
transferred to the customer.

o Wakala invesiments

Wakala is an agreement whereby the Group provides a sum of money to a financial institution under an
agency arrangement, who invests it according to specific conditions in return for a fee. The agent is obliged to
return the amount is case of default, negligence or violation of any terms and conditions of the Wakala.

o L oans and advances
Loans and advances are financial assets originated by the Group by providing money directly to the borrower
that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market.
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5.14. Financial instruments (continued)
5.14.2. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

o Bank balances cash and Short term deposits
Cash on hand and demand deposits are classified under bank balances and cash and short term deposits
represent deposits placed with financial institutions with a maturity of less than one year.

o Receivables and other financial assets

Trade receivable are stated at original invoice amount less allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are
written off as incurred.

Loans and receivables which are not categorised under any of the above are classified as “Other
receivables/Other financial assets”

o Financial assets at FVTPL

Classification of investments as financial assets at FVIPL depends on how management monitor the
performance of these investments. Investments at FVTPL are either "held for trading" or "designated" as
such on initial recognition.

The Group classifies investments as trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or are a
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit taking. When they ate not classified as held for trading
but have readily available reliable fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of statement of
profit or loss in the management accounts, they are as designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition.

All detivative financial instruments fall into the category of FVTPL, except for those designated and effective
as hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements apply.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The fair
values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a
valuation technique where no active market exists. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they ate classified as non-current.

e HTM investments

HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
other than loans and receivables. Investments are classified as HTM if the Group has the intention and ability
to hold them until maturity.

HTM investments are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. If there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired, determined by reference to external credit ratings, the
financial asset is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. Any changes to the carrying
amount of the investment, including impairment losses, are recognised in profit o loss. The Group currently
has not classified any assets in to this category.

o AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this category or do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets.
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5.14. Financial instruments (continued)
5.14.2. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

o AFS financial assets (continued)

Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Impairment charges are recognised in profit or loss. All other AFS financial assets are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and reported within the fair value reserve
within equity, except for impairment losses, and foreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity resetve to profit or loss
and presented as a reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset available
for sale or a group of financial assets available for sale is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified
as financial assets available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the equity investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for financial assets that
are debt securities which are recognised in profit or loss only if the reversal can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.

AFS financial assets are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends
to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

5.14.3. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include trust certificates issued, borrowings, leasing creditors, due to banks,
trade payables and other liabilities s and derivative financial instruments.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

e Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL)
These are stated at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. The Group categorises financial
liabilities other than at FVTPL into the following categories:

o Borrowings

All borrowings ate subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

o Wakala payables
Wakala payables represent short-term borrowings under Islamic principles, whereby the Group receives
funds for the purpose of financing its investment activities and are stated at amortised cost.

o Murabaha finance payables

Murabaha finance payables represent amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased
under murabaha arrangements. Murabaha finance payables are stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of
deferred finance cost. Deferred finance cost is expensed on a time apportionment basis taking into account the
borrowing rate attributable and the balance outstanding.
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5.14. Financial instruments (continued)

5.14.3. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities (continued)

o ljara financing

ljara finance payable ending with ownership is an Islamic financing arrangement through which a financial
institution provides finance to purchase an asset by way of renting the asset ending with transferring its
ownership. This jjara finance payable is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of deferred finance
cost. Deferred finance costs are expensed on a time apportionment basis taking into account the borrowing
rate attributable and the balance outstanding.

o Leasing and hire purchase payables

Assets acquired under finance leases and hire purchase arrangements are capitalised and the related liabilities,
excluding finance charges. Finance charges in respect of such liabilities are charged to the consolidated
statement of income as incutred.

®  _Accounts payables and other financial liabilities

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed
by the supplier or not, and classified as trade payables. Financial liabilities other than at FVTPL which ate
not categorised under any of the above are classified as “Other financial liabilities”

All derivative financial instruments that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments are accounted
for at FVIPL.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit
ot loss, are included within finance costs or other income.

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are either held for trading or designated as such on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, are catried subsequently at fair value with gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. All derivative financial instruments that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments are accounted for at FVTPL.

o Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps to mitigate its risks associated
with interest rate fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at cost, being the
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into, and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. The fair value of a derivative is the equivalent of the unrealised gain or loss from marking to market
the derivative using valuation quotes provided by financial institutions, based on prevailing market
information. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative. The Group does not adopt hedge accounting, and any realised and unrealised (from
changes in fair value) gain or losses are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of income.

5.14.4. Amortised cost of financial instruments

This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The calculation takes
into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
5.14. Financial instruments (continued)

5.14.5. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount repotted in the consolidated statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5.14.6. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined
by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for
short positions), without any deduction fot transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis or
other valuation models.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are
provided in Note 37.

5.15. Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses directly
attributable to the manufacturing process as well as suitable portions of related production overheads, based
on notmal operating capacity. Costs of ordinarily interchangeable items are assigned using the weighted
average cost formula.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling
expenses.

5.16. Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of shate capital. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium.

Statutory and voluntary reserves comprise appropriations of cutrent and prior period profits in accordance
with the requirements of the companies’ law and the Patent Company’s articles of association.

Other components of equity include the following:

* foreign cutrency translation reserve — comprises foreign cutrency translation differences arising from the
translation of financial statements of the Group’s foreign entities into KD and the Group’s share of
foreign currency translation reserves shown in the associates statement of financial position.

*  Fair value reserve — comprises gains and losses telating to available for sale financial assets

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with owners of the
Parent Company are recorded sepatately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have
been approved in a general meeting.

5.17. Ttreasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group
and not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this
method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity.
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5.17. Treasury shares (continued)

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in equity, (the “gain on sale of
treasury shares reserve”), which is not distributable. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to
the extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to
the voluntary reserve and statutory reserve. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of stock
dividend shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per
share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

5.18. Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions ate
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

5.19. Foreign currency translation

5.19.1. Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in cutrency Kuwait Dinar (KD), which is also the
functional currency of the parent company. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional cutrency.

5.19.2. Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective Group entity, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary
items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates
at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined. Translation difference on non-monetary asset
classified as, “fair value through profit or loss” is reported as patt of the fair value gain or loss in the
consolidated statement of income and “available for sale” are reported as part of the cumulative change in
fair value reserve within other comprehensive income.

5.19.3. Foreign operations
In the Group’s financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a functional
cutrency other than the KD are translated into KD upon consolidation.
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519, Foreign currency translation (continued)

5.19.3. Foreign operations (continued)

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into KD at the closing rate at the reporting date.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into KD at the closing rate. Income and expenses have been
translated into KD at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are charged/credited
to other comprehensive income and recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are
reclassified to profit ot loss and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

5.20. End of setvice indemnity

The parent and its local subsidiaries provides end of setvice benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these
benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum
service period in accordance with relevant labout law and the employees’ contracts. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of employment. This liability, which is unfunded, represents the amount
payable to each employee as a result of termination on the reporting date.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group makes contributions to the Public Institution for
Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

5.21. Pensions (Related to the foreign subsidiaries)
Contributions are paid to both defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes in accordance with
the recommendations of independent actuaries and advisors.

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged to the consolidated statement of income on an
accrual basis.

In respect of defined benefit schemes a defined benefit liability (or asset) is recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and it is calculated as the present value of the defined benefit obligation using
the projected unit credit method plus any unrecognised actuarial gains ot losses less any past service cost not
recognised less the market value of the plan assets.

Pension expense is charged to the consolidated statement of income and is calculated as the aggregate of
current service cost (using the projected unit credit method), a net interest cost on the discounted defined
benefit obligation net of the expected return on plan assets, recognised actuarial gains and losses, recognised
past service costs and the effect of curtailments or settlements.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in full in other comprehensive income.

5.22. Share-based Payment
Certain employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby the employees render services in exchange for shares (“equity settled transactions”).

Egquity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured under the intrinsic value method. Under
this method, the cost is determined by comparing the period end matket value of the company’s shares with
the issue price. The cost of equity settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
shares vest.
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5.23. ‘Taxation

5.23.1. National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

NLST is calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No. 24
of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the Group. As per law, allowable deductions include, share of profits of
listed associates and cash dividends from listed companies which ate subjected to NLST.

5.23.2. Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution to KFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the Group in accordance with the modified
calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors’ resolution, which states that income from Kuwaiti
shareholding associates and subsidiaries and transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for
the year when determining the contribution.

5.23.3. Zakat
Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group in accordance with the Ministry of
Finance resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Parent Company has no liability towards NLST, KFAS
and Zakat due to tax losses incurred. Under the NLST and Zakat regulations no catry forward of losses to
the future years nor any carry back to prior years is permitted.

5.23.4. Taxation on overseas subsidiaries

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries is calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable and prescribed
according to the prevailing laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where these subsidiaries
operate.

Deferred taxation is provided in respect of all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised in
respect of unutilised tax losses when it is probable that the loss will be used against future profits.

5.24. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
bank balances, short-term deposits, murabaha and wakala investments and short term highly liquid
investments maturing within three months from the date of inception less due to banks and blocked bank
balances.

5.25. Fiduciary assets
Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity ate not treated as assets of the Group and accordingly are not
included in these consolidated financial statements.

6 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset or liability affected in future periods.
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6 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)

6.1. Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

6.1.1. Classification of financial instruments

Judgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management’s intention at
acquisition. Such judgement determines whether it is subsequently measured at cost, amortised cost or at fair
value and if the changes in fair value of instruments are reported in the statement of income ot other
comprehensive income.

The Group classifies financial assets as held for trading if they are acquired primarily for the purpose of short
term profit making.

Classification of financial assets as fair value through profit or loss depends on how management monitors
the performance of these financial assets. When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily
available fair values and the changes in fair values are repotted as part of profit or loss in the management
accounts, they are classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Classification of assets as loans and receivables depends on the nature of the asset. If the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive market and the intention is to receive fixed or determinable
payments the financial asset is classified as loans and receivables.

All other financial assets are classified as available for sale.

6.1.2. Classification of real estate

Management decides on acquisition of a real estate whether it should be classified as trading or investment
property. Such judgement at acquisition determines whether these properties are subsequently measured at
cost ot net realisable value whichever is lower or fair value and if the changes in fair value of these properties
are reported in the statement of income.

The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary course of

business.

The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquited to generate rental income ot for capital
appreciation, or for undetermined future use.

6.1.3 Control assessment

When determining control, management considers whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The assessment of relevant activities
and ability to use its power to affect vatiable return requires considerable judgement.

6.1.4. Equity method accounting for entities in which the Group holds less that 20% of the voting
rights

Management has assessed the level of influence that the Group has over its material associate, Mabanee
Company - KPSC and determined that it has significant influence even though the share holding in this
associate is below 20%, because of the factors mentioned in note 17.3. Consequently, this investment has
been classified as an associate and has been accounted for using the equity method.
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(continued)
6.2.  Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substantially
different.

6.2.1 Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangible assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

6.2.2. Impairment of associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associated companies, at each reporting date based on
existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of income.

During the 2014 the Group recognised an impairment loss of KD2,171 thousand (2013: KD118 thousand)
against investments in associates.

6.2.3. Impairment of available for sale equity investments

The Group treats available for sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or whete other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In 2014 the Group
recognised an impairment loss on available for sale investments (see note 19).

6.2.4. Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group’s management reviews periodically items classified as loans and receivables (including wakala
investments note 22) to assess whether a provision for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. In particular, considerable judgement by management is required in the estimation
of amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provisions required. Such estimates
are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving varying degrees of judgement and
uncertainty. In 2014 the Group has recognised impairment losses on loans and receivables of KD1,441
thousand (2013: KD898 thousand).

6.2.5. Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventoties become old or obsolete,
an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is
performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or
obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of
ageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventoties, taking into account the most reliable evidence
available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by future
technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.
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(continued)
6.2.  Estimates uncertainty (continued)

6.2.5. Impairment of inventories (continued)

At the financial position date, gross inventories were KD33,571 thousand (2013: KD33,142 thousand), with
provision for old and obsolete inventories of KD1,548 thousand (2013: KDD1,234 thousand). Any difference
between the amounts actually realised in future periods and the amount expected will be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

6.2.6. Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and othet obsolescence that
may change the utility of certain software and property, plant and equipment.

6.2.7. Fair value of financial instruments

Management apply valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments where active
market quotes are not available. This requires management to develop estimates and assumptions based on
market inputs, using observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where
such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values of financial instruments
may vaty from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

6.2.8. Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit ot loss. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine
fair values and the valuers have used valuation techniques to artive at these fair values. These estimated fair
values of investment properties may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in a arm’s length
transaction at the reporting date.

6.2.9. Defined benefits obligation

Management’s estimate of the defined benefit obligation is based on number of critical underlying
assumption such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future pension
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the defined benefit obligations and amount
and the annual defined benefits expenses (as analysed in note 33).

6.2.10. Provision for Taxation

The Group has made provision for potential tax liabilities which may arise on foreign income. These
provisions have been assessed based on information available to management as of the reporting date. The
actual liability which may or may not arise if and when the relevant tax authorities make an official assessment
may substantially differ from the actual provision made (refer note 12.c).
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7 Subsidiary companies

7.1 Details of the Group’s material consolidated subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:
Country of

registration and
place of business

Al Durra National Real Estate — KSC

(Closed) Kuwait
National Combined Industries Holding
Company for Energy — KSC (Closed) Kuwait
Pearl National Holding — KSC (Closed) Kuwait
Economic Holding Company — KSC (Closed) Kuwait
NIG (Guernsey) Limited Guernsey
NIC Holdings (UK) Plc United Kingdom
BI Group Plc United Kingdom
Proclad Group Limited UAE
NI Group (Bahrain) EC Bahrain
Eagle Proprietary Investments Limited UAE
Pearl Offshore Enterprises Limited BVI

Denham Investment Limited
Ikarus Petroleum Industries Company —

Cayman Islands

KPSC Kuwait
National Industries Company - KPSC Kuwait
Noor Financial Investment Company — Kuwait

KPSC

Nature of business

Real Estate

Investments
Investments
Investments
Specialist Engineering
Specialist Engineering
Specialist Engineering
Specialist Engineering
Investments
Investments
Investments Holdings
Investments

Petroleum
Industrial
Investments

Proportion of
ownership interest

held by the Group
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
% %
100* 100
100* 100
100* 100
100* 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
85 85
72 72
51 51
51 51

* The Parent Company’s direct holding of the above fully owned subsidiaries are 97%, 96%, 99% and 97%

respectively.

7.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests
The Group includes three subsidiaties, with material non-controlling interests (NCI):

Proportion of

ownership interests

Name and voting rights Profit allocated to NCI Accumulated NCI
held by the NCI
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000
Noor Financial Investment
Company - KPSC (NFI) 49% 49% 2,349 3,966 438,377 45,884
National Industries Company -
KPSC (NIC) 49% 49% 3,418 (34) 51,444 46,945
lkarus Petroleum industries
Company — KPSC (IPI) 28% 28% 2,831 3,074 41,123 49,317
Individual immaterial
subsidiaries with non- (49) (535) 5,785 5,830
controlling interests
8,549 6,471 146,729 147,976




National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries 37
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2014

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

7 Subsidiary companies (continued)

7.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarised financial information for the above subsidiaries, before intragroup eliminations, is set out below:

31 December 2014

NFI NIC IPI
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000

Non-current assets 143,232 69,061 165,838
Current assets 57,341 41,887 15,502
Total assets 200,573 110,948 181,340
Non-current liabilities 106,909 5,451 30,364
Current liabilities 29,985 13,299 6,681
Total liabilities 136,894 18,750 37,045
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company 22,962 45,298 103,454
Non-controlling interest (including non controlling interests in

the subsidiary’s statement of financial position) 40,717 46,900 40,841

31 December 2013

NFI NIC IPI
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000
Non-current assets 143,556 70,701 190,694
Current assets 62,535 36,481 15,874
Total assets 206,091 107,182 206,568
Non-current liabilities 102,425 5,153 32,364
Current liabilities 39,089 18,793 961
Total liabilities 141,514 23,946 33,325
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 22,532 40,787 124,208

Non-controlling interest(including non controlling interests in
the subsidiary’s statement of financial position) 42,045 42,449 49,035
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7.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014
NFI NIC IPI
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000
Revenue 31,610 48,865 14,212
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Parent Company 466 3,731 7,251
Profit for the year attributable to NCI (414) 3,629 2,862
Profit for the year 52 7,360 10,113
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to
the shareholders of the parent company 1,559 743 (22,668)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributabte to
NCI 1,637 786 (8,949)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 3,196 1,529 (31,617)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
the shareholders of the parent company 2,025 4,474 (15,417)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
NCI 1,223 4,415 (6,087)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,248 8,889 (21,504)
Dividends paid to non controlling interests - - (2,075)
For the year ended 31 December 2013
NFI NIC Pl
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000
Revenue 30,165 45,675 13,852
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the 4,587 315 7,906
Parent Company
Profit for the year attributable to NCI 2,637 364 3,121
Profit for the year 7,224 679 11,027
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to
the shareholders of the Parent Company (2,743) 1,315 28,275
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to
NCI (53) 1,282 11,162
Total other comprehensive income for the year (2,796) 2,597 39,437
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
the shareholders of the parent company 1,844 1,630 36,181
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
NCI 2,584 1,646 14,283
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,428 3,276 50,464

Dividends paid to non controlling interests - (2,053) (2,505)
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7.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014
NFI NIC IPI
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000
Net cash flow from operating activities 12,404 15,171 (1,262)
Net cash flow from investing activities 5,106 (3,660) 8,192
Net cash flow from financing activities (19,084) (6,367) (7,208)
Net cash (outflow)/ inflow (1,574) 5,144 (278)
For the year ended 31 December 2013
NFI NIC IPI
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,089 8,804 1,529
Net cash flow from investing activities 20,446 (423) 13,717
Net cash flow from financing activities (25,007) (11,423) (15,760)
Net cash outflow (3,472) (3,042) (514)

7.3. Acquisition of subsidiary

During the current year, one of the Group’s local subsidiaries acquired 60% equity stake in Cable Sat Satellite
Service Company, a Kuwait Limited Liability Company (engaged in renting and sale of indefeasible right of
use) and the acquisition was accounted in accordance with IFRS 3 as follows:

KD ‘000
Total consideration 2,511
Value of non-controlling interests 638
3,149
Less : Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and Bank balances 1
Trade and other receivable 46
Intangible assets (note 15.2) 8,326
Trade and other payable (5,224)
Total identifiable net assets 3,149

Goodwill .

The initial accounting for business combination is provisional due to its complexity, and will be adjusted
retrospectively (if required) when the final Purchase Price Allocation is completed during the one year
measurement period from the acquisition date.

The result of the newly acquired subsidiary was consolidated to the Group’s results effective from 1 July 2014
and the financial position as at 31 December 2014 was consolidated with the Group’s financial position as of that
date. Accordingly, Cable Sat Satellite Service Company WLL as a subsidiary contributed revenue and profit of
KID204 thousand and KID38 thousand to the net result of the Group respectively.
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7.4 Certain non-controlling interests in the above subsidiary companies are held on behalf of the Parent

Company by third party nominees.

7.5 Pear] Offshore Enterprises Limited is a special purpose vehicle (SPV) which was incorporated during
the year 2011 and total assets with a carrying value of KDD103,631 thousand (2013: KDD86,156 thousand)
and total liabilities of KID66,876 thousand (2013: KD47,044 thousand) of the Parent Company are held

by the SPV.
8 Income from investments
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Dividend income:
- From investments at fair value through profit or loss 1,633 233
- From available for sale investments 13,997 19,583
Profit on sale of available for sale investments 37,597 21,902
Realised gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss 1,617 114
Unrealised gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss 1,172 3,947
Deemed gain on acquisition of available for sale investments - 2,880
56,016 48,659
9 Interest and other income
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Interest/profit on bank balances, short term deposits, murabaha and wakala
investments 504 531
Income from financing of future trade by customers 351 355
Effect of unwinding of discount on receivables - 401
Reversal of impairment provision on wakala investment (note 22) - 874
Management and placement fees 54 306
Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary - 194
Reversal of provision for onerous property leases and dilapidations - - 138
Others 442 1,760
1,351 4,559
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10 Net gain or (loss) on financial assets
Net gain or (loss) on financial assets, analysed by category, is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Loans and receivables
- bank balances and short term deposits 326 339
- murabaha and wakala investments 178 192
- accounts receivable and other assets (income from future trade) 351 355
- impairment in value of receivable and other assets (1,441) (898)
- effect on unwinding of discount on receivable - 401
- Reversal of impairment provision on wakala investment - 874
At fair value through profit or loss
- held for trading 3,172 2,628
- designated as such on initial recognition 1,250 1,666
Available for sale investments
- recognised in other comprehensive income (including non-controlling interests
share) (13,581) 31,814
- recycled from other comprehensive income to consolidated statement of profit or
loss
s  Onimpairment (28,205) (24,706)
e Ondisposal 26,190 22,147
- recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss 25,404 22,218
13,644 57,030
Net gain recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 27,225 25,216
Net (loss)/gain recognised in the other comprehensive income (13,581) 31,814
13,644 57,030

11 Finance costs
Finance costs relate mainly to due to banks, short and long term borrowings, and lease creditors. All these
financial liabilities are stated at amortised cost.

12 Taxation and other statutory contributions

(a) Taxation of foreign subsidiaries*

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD ‘000 KD '000
Current tax expense
Current year charge (56) (676)

Deferred tax expense
Current year (charge)/credit (211) 208

(267) (468)
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12 Taxation and other statutory contributions (continued)

(b) KFAS, NLST and Zakat of local subsidiaries **

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Contributions to Kuwait Foundation for Advancement of Science (KFAS) (173) (196)
Provision for National Labour Support Tax (NLST) (470) (513)
Provision for Zakat (220) (198)
(863) (907)
(c) Other taxation - local subsidiary ***
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Current year charge (334) -
Under provision in relation to previous years (989) -
(1,323) -
(2,453) (1,375)

*The above tax is calculated based on the tax law adopted in United Kingdom.

**The contributions and provisions are on profit of local subsidiaties, whereas no contribution and provision
for the Parent Company was recognised in the current year (2013: Nil) as the net taxable results attributable
to the Parent Company was a loss.

***The above represents tax related to dividend income received from investments in 2 GCC Country.
During the year one of the local subsidiaries has discovered that there may be a potential tax liability on
dividend income received from foreign entities located in a GCC country (at the rate of 5%), which the
subsidiary’s management was not aware of in the past. No tax claims or assessments have been made by any
regulatory authority as of reporting date. However based on advice received from consultants and other
information available to the management, on a conservative basis, the Group has decided to make 2 provision
of KID1,323 thousand for any potential liability which may arise on the dividends received from the foreign
entities during the current and previous years. The provision has been included under accounts payable and
other liabilities.

13 Profit for the year
Profit for the year is stated after charging:

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Staff costs 32,712 27,553
Depreciation 6,848 9,646

The number of staff employed by the Parent Company at 31 December 2014 was 73 (2013: 67).



National Industries Group Holding - KPSC and Subsidiaries 43
Consoclidated Financial Statements
31 December 2014

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

14 Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Parent

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Parent
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Parent (KD '000)

- from continuing operations 28,282 8,352

- from discontinued operations - 1,824
Total 28,282 10,176
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year

(excluding treasury shares) ~ shares 1,325,056,996 1,325,056,996

Basic and diluted earnings per share

- from continuing operations 21.3 Fils 6.3 Fils

- from discontinued operations - 1.4 Fils
Total 21.3 Fils 7.7 Fils

The weighted average numbers of shares outstanding during the previous year have been restated to add the
bonus shares issued during the year (Note 32).

The earnings per share reported during the ptrevious year from continuing operations and discontinued
operations were 6.7 Fils and 1.4 Fils respectively.

15 Goodwill and intangible assets
15.1  Goodwill

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Balance at 1 January 9,221 7,083
Additions - 1,990
Adjustments 34 -
Foreign exchange adjustment (10) 148
9,245 9,221

15.2  Intangible assets - Indefeasible right of use (IRU)

The Intangible assets comprise of indefeasible tight of use and the movement is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2014 2013
KD '000 KD '000
Cost
At the beginning of the year - -
Addition due to acquisition of a subsidiary (note 7.3) 8,326 -
Balance at the end of the year 8,326 -
Accumuiated amortization
At the beginning of the year - -
Charge for the year (41) -
At the end of the year (41) -
Net book value at the end of the year 8,285 -

Total goodwill and intangible assets 17,530 9,221
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